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Key Business Structure
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INFRASTRUCTURE OPERATIONS E 223 M 278

Operations/ Share-
Investments holding Company Name Principal Activities
W% RE BFRES DEEE FTEEK
PORT SERVICES 62.78%  Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited Provision of port services in the port of
7 0 R A% RAEBERIZERER AR Tianjin
RREB DRSO RS
ROAD OPERATION 83.93% Tianjin Jin Zheng Transportation Operation of Eastern Outer Ring Road
DL Development Co, Ltd. EINRR B
RERBBEERARAF
6.62% 14 equity joint ventures in the PRC Operation of Tang Jin Expressway
REABE14REE AR REERRDEN
24%  Tianjin Mass Transit (Group) Development Co, Ltd. ~ Operation e_f Jinbin Expressway
RERE(EE) ZERBRAA KRB RN

UTILITY OPERATIONS 2 iR e %78

Operations/

Investments Company Name Principal Activities

% RE I FTEEK

ELECTRICITY Tianjin TEDA Tsinlien Electric Power Distribution of electricity in TEDA

OPERATION Company Limited RRERERHEES S

EWES: S REFRERBMENERAF

WATER OPERATION Tianjin TEDA Tsinlien Water Supply Distribution of water in TEDA

EB¥E S Company Limited AR BRI R (R B 2K
RAEZREEH B HKERAA

HEAT AND THERMAL Tianjin TEDA Tsinlien Heat & Power Co,, Ltd. Distribution of steam in TEDA

POWER OPERATION RERFEFHABERA WRZEREEREEEA

HEETS

Operations/ Share-

Investments holding Company Name Principal Activities

Y RE BRES  DEEE FTEXEK

WINERY 44.82%  Dynasty Fine Wines Group Limited Manufacture and sale of winery products

2] THEXEEERAR A S B R EE i

ELEVATOR & 16.55%  Ofis Elevator (China) Investment Manufacture and sale of elevator and

ESCALATOR Company Limited escalator

FHEEMR KT EH BEVHETER (M) REFRAQA] HEENHEABRBEKTE

HOTELS & 100%  Tsinlien Realty Limited* Operation of Courtyard by Marriott

HOSPITALITY- EEBEX AR AR Hong Kong

RELATED REEEBRBIE

PROPERTIES 100% Lethia Limited’ Operation of Hyatt Regency Tianjin Hotel

B E R AR B Y 3 BAENSFRRAR B R RYOB S

GAS FUEL SUPPLY 22.79%  Wah Sang Gas Holdmgs Limited Production and sale of

R R B FELIRTIER AR A liquefied petroleum gas and piped gas

FENMHERRRNEBRR

Notes: The above percentages represent ef‘fective percentage of equity interest in respective companies or group of companies.

i REZESHRRAKEEEHER

RAEBZ IS BERBER DL -

Acquisition comp\eted in March 2008.
WHEERZZEZNF=A%HK -

Acquisition completed in January 2008.

WHEER - ZENF—A%K -

= ow ok %
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Financial Highlights
MERE

Profit Attributable to Equity

Turnover Holders
proy 3
SR RESRE ARGZET
HK$million HK$million
BEET BEBT
(for the years ended 31st December) (for the years ended 31st December)
(BE+ZA=+—HBLEFHE) (BE+ZA=+—RHIEFE)
3,388 690
573
2,688 o0 553
2,239
2,102
1,927
‘ 213
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Turnover by Activities
EREUXRBES
(for the year ended 31st December 2007)
(BE-ZTLFE+-_A=+—HALLFE)
Infrastructure
AR
Utilities 61% 39%

NS




Financial Highlights
MG REE

SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS BY OPERATIONS
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EHES D

Turnover = -0
Year ended 31st December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2007 2006
—EELEF ZETRF Changes
HKS$million HKS$million #E
BEETT AEBT (+/-)
Roads NS 177 207 -14%
Port Services B ORI 1,157 1,005 +15%
Supply of Utilities YN B i 2,054 1,468 +40%
Property Development EHEERE - 8 NA
3,388 2,688 +26%
Profit Attributable to Equity Holders RERFHE ABGER
Year ended 31st December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2007 2006
—EBELEF ZETRF Changes
HKS$million HKS$million BE
BEET AEBT (+/-)
Roads NS 211 39 +441%
Port Services B0 RS 151 372 -59%
Supply of Utilities VN E9ii) 171 123 +39%
Winery* iz 57 53 +8%
Elevator and Escalator* TP R R F B * 132 107 +23%
Property Development EiEERE 6 24 -75%
Net Corporate Expenses NS FEEE R EHAD
and Others (38) (165) -77%
690 553 +25%

*

The winery operation and the elevator and escalator operation are conducted
through associates, and the group only shares the profits of these operations in

proportion to it's equity interests in the associates.

r BBRBRITERRAT EGERTIEBYN SR A
77 AEEERRERZ SR ER G HEZ#RRIT

SRBHF -

P2 E5%




[ﬂ
8 Tianjin Development Holdings Limited K33 RiZRER D T

Annual Report 2007 —EE-FETR

Mr. Yu Rumin Acting Chairman
THREE RIEBEE



Chairman’s Statement

ETREHRESE

PROFIT AND DIVIDEND FOR THE YEAR

| am pleased to present the 2007 annual report of the Group. The
audited consolidated profit attributable to shareholders and earnings
per share for the year ended 31st December 2007 were HK$690,301,000
and HK67.42 cents respectively, representing respective increase of 25%
and 16% over prior year. The board of directors proposed the payment
of a final dividend of HK5.6 cents per share at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Together with the interim dividend of HK5.4 cents per
share, the total dividend for 2007 will amount to HK11 cents per share,
representing an increase of 20% as compared to 2006.

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT

As disclosed in the last annual report, the Group is actively exploring the
opportunities in commercial property business with focus to be put on
hotel projects. Near the end of 2007, the Group acquired the interests in
Courtyard by Marriott Hong Kong (“Courtyard Hotel”) and Hyatt Regency
Tianjin Hotel (“Hyatt Hotel”). In Hong Kong, the Group has entered into
an agreement to acquire a 100% interest in Courtyard Hotel from the
parent company, Tsinlien Group Company Limited, at a consideration
of HK$825 million. It is a 4-star hotel with 245 guest rooms situated
in a prime location on the Hong Kong Island. The Courtyard Hotel is
positioned as the upper moderate lodging tier for business individuals
and leisure travelers. The transaction was completed at the end of March
2008 and it started to contribute to the results of the Group since then.
In Tianjin, the Group has acquired a 75% equity interests in a sino-foreign
joint venture holding the Hyatt Hotel property managed by the Hyatt
Group at a total consideration of approximately HK$230 million. It is a
5-star hotel with 428 guest rooms situated in a prime location in the city
centre. The Group is planning for a major renovation to upgrade the
Hyatt Hotel.

During the year, the toll road segment was restructured. As a result,
it enabled the Company to continue to own and operate the better
performed toll road (i.e. Eastern Outer Ring Road). The management of
the Company will also have more flexibility to apply the cash resources
and retained earnings of the business segment. Looking forward, further
restructuring of the business segment may be instigated if it would

bring better return to our shareholders.

Tianjin Development Holdings Limited XZ2ZERER DT
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FERNEKRE

RAMRAMSMNREAEE ST LFFR - A5E
HEZZZLF+ A=+ HUEFELERZE
A RE RN & B IR & T 9 Rl & 690,301,000 7 7T K&
674278+ B EFDRI EF25% K 16% o EEEER
R BRNBRRAFAE LEERERPRSER
SEAL - ATIAR BAER P EARR B AR S 478l - =2 F
TEE2FARXREAER 1B - REZTTARFER
20% °

REERRE

B E—FE2FRAEE - AEEEEEFERUR
JETE AR OHEHEXEEHEK - i —TT+4F
FE  AEERBEESBRSBEE ([8REE]) RXZE
SUSOEE (SR D Btz o TR - REBEER]
a5 LA 825,000,000 B TR BHR B A RIEBER AR
AABAERBEE 22 ER - ZBEUNESSH
B - BA—FUELRE - WEEB245MEE ©
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BIEE R ING B E 75% S - SUBIE A —FTAE
BBIE - BEE428EERE MR TR LESHE o K
EEFAHERBRAEETIRSIPBEAR
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRHRESE

INTERNAL CONTROL

With a view to improving our internal control systems, the Company,
Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited (“TPD") and Dynasty Fine
Wines Group Limited ("Dynasty”), being the listed subsidiary and
associated company of the Company, have engaged external audit firm/
consultancy firm to review their systems of internal control up to 31st
December 2007. The review has covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management

functions.

The Group will continue to conduct regular review of the Group's
internal control system and its effectiveness to ensure the interests of

shareholders are safeguarded.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

In addition to arranging site visits and attending luncheons and
conferences, the top management took initiative to meet with the
investment community by performing non-deal global roadshow in
April and September 2007. The global roadshows provided an excellent
opportunity for the top and senior management of the Group to
communicate with worldwide investors from London, New York, San
Francisco, Continental Europe, Japan and Singapore. The management
team including the Vice Chairman and the Group Financial Controller of
the Company as well as the top management of TPD and Dynasty were
able to meet with fund managers and analysts to explain the strategy
of the Group. Through such interactive and keen communication
with investors, management benefited considerably from a better

understanding of the interests and concerns of investors.

We believe that regular communication with the investment community
is extremely important and our goal is to create sustainable growth to

shareholders’ value in the long term.

A

REZENMERZRS - ARE - REBERERBER
RAN([RFEER]) RERAEXEEARAR ([ EH
BE]) (ARR 2z ETHB AR RBERR) BRI
BEREE T EEARRNEEE _TELF+ A
=+ —BIEMAMEERL - KRRREREEKX
B BREFE - 2ERAREDREAREERE -

AEEREET RN ARENANEZERGRES
Bt ARERIRR A RIS EIRE

REEBE

BRLZHRE2BRIETEGREHRI  &RE ’Efl'
TR-ZETLFNARNAETEHEMERE
BEEEERE - 2HRBERLAEERSREER
REREREERE M AL =FH - BMJ‘IU(
B~ AARRHINEM2RIREEETERNRE - &
EEER(BRARFRREIFEAEEBRAEARK
REBRRNIABXNZESREE) THESKLER
DTEEME  BIASERRE o BIBREEENHE
BESHRANER EEEEERS  HIREERME
BEEYINEIRA T BB o

BAAEEREENTEHEBBAEER - MARMD
BERTRRNEETREHELR -



Chairman’s Statement
FEHRES

OUTLOOK

Given the focus of the “11th Five Year Plan (2006-2010)" on infrastructure
development, the Group will continue to increase investment in our
core businesses including port services and utilities operations.

The Group will continue to expand its port operations through TPD.
This is evidenced by its investments in joint ventures engaging in
the construction, management and operation of container handling
terminals at the Beigangchi area of the port of Tianjin. In addition, TPD
has formed a joint venture which is principally engaged in the provision
of logistics services in the Dongjiang Port. The long term strategic goal
is to integrate container handling and port logistics as drivers of future

growth.

The Tianjin Economic-Technological Development Area (“TEDA"),
being one of the key districts in the Tianjin Binhai New Area (“TBNA")
and having enjoyed double digit annual growth since 1998, has huge
development potential. The Group will increase investment in our core

utilities operations to capture the robust economic growth of TEDA.

In view of the potential economic development of Tianjin, it is expected
that more and more investors would set up their offices and more
business travelers will be visiting and working in Tianjin. This would
definitely lead to huge demand for commercial property including
hotels and offices. Around the year end of 2007, the Group has
successfully acquired a majority stake in the Hyatt Hotel and is actively
exploring the opportunities in the commercial property market in
Tianjin.

2007 was the tenth anniversary of the Company’s listing on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in Hong Kong.
Looking forward, our staff will together devote their best efforts to grasp
the business opportunities arising from TBNA - the third engine of the
economic development in the PRC, in order to pursue higher return to
shareholders.

Tianjin Development Holdings Limited XZ2ZERER DT
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRES

APPRECIATION

I'would also like to take this opportunity to express our gratitude to a
team of dedicated employees for their outstanding performance and to
our shareholders for their strong support.

Yu Rumin
Acting Chairman

Hong Kong, 17th April 2008
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DM

Revenue Segment results
L ON DHEEE
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EEEF T RF  ZEEEFE T RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T T FE T FABIT
Provision of port services BB DR 1,157,430 1,005,001 269,820 230,761
Operation of toll roads LB BB 177,156 207,101 93,477 91,675
Supply of utilities HEE AR e 2,053,077 1467672 198,579 160973
Sales of properties (Note 1) MEHE (MisE1) - 8,683 - 1,161
3,387,663 2,688,457 561,876 484,570
Gain on toll roads restructuring BANEBBERKE 165,913 -
Gain on deemed disposal of partial interest 4% £ & [ B A &
in subsidiaries fD#ess 2 Was - 109,235
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR Z WS - 22,993
Provision for impairment of investment MN—FKEENF)IEE
in an associate BB E (38,261) -
Interest income F B A 53,352 148,727
Net corporate income/(expenses) ARMA () F58 46,499 (18,587)
Operating profit ARSI 789,379 746,938
Finance costs Bi5E B (101,130) (149,293)
Net loss on convertible bonds ATRRES FEE - (63,847)
Share of profits/(losses) of JE(DER] (F518)
Associates (Note 2) B N A (PR 2) 220,651 181,215
Jointly controlled entities HEEH EE (9,831) (11,779)
Profit before tax A& A 899,069 703,234
Tax expense mMESZE (71,830) (66,053)
Profit for the year FEmA 827,239 637,181
Notes: PI3E -

1. Property development is no longer considered as a business segment of the

Group in 2007 but the comparatives were not adjusted for this change.

2. Share of profits/(losses) of associates

. FHERRR _ZELFOIEREA/TERNERKD

B BHERBTF ARG EEELFE -

2. JEREEEQRDEF(EE)

2007 2006

—EETLHF —EERF

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FHERT FHT

Manufacturing and sales of winery B mAE

products 56,576 52,618
Elevator and escalator FHEEM R R F E b 159,293 129,071
Others Hth 4,782 474)
220,651 181,215
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DM

INFRASTRUCTURE OPERATIONS
Port services

The revenue of Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited (“TPD")
(stock code: 3382) increased by 15% from approximately HK$1,005.0
million in 2006 to approximately HK$1,157.4 million in 2007. The growth
in revenue was driven by an 11% increase in our container throughput
from 2,490,000 TEUs in 2006 to 2,762,000 TEUs in 2007. For the same
period, the total throughput of bulk cargo decreased by 22% from 16.6
million tonnes to 13.0 million tonnes.

The segment profit increased by 17% from approximately HK$230.8
million for 2006 to approximately HK$269.8 million for 2007. The
encouraging results of TPD in 2007 was brought about by enhanced
handling efficiency, improved product mix and effective cost controls.
The synergy of these internal improvements alongside the favorable
external market environment of robust GDP growth and expanding
trade volumes in China, especially in the Bohai region, have greatly
benefited TPD.

Road Operations

In 2007, road operations achieved a toll revenue of approximately HK$177.2
million and realised a segment profit of approximately HK$93.5 million,

representing a decrease of 14% and an increase of 2% over last year.

During the year, the Group has undergone a restructuring of its road
operations (the “Restructuring”). The effective interest in Eastern Outer
Ring Road increased from approximately 65.5% to approximately
83.9%. At the same time, the effective interest in Jinbin Expressway was

reduced from approximately 46.8% to approximately 24% and Jinbin

ER iR
B0 R

%’%?ﬁ%? RAERAE(REEZERE] (RMHK

1 3382) WA I = ZZ7NF 491,005,000,000 78 7T

Ew%% TE L 491,157,40000078 TC ° WAL K

TZBRMMEREETTEHR T T/NF /2,490,000 12

*ﬁi‘% 1% E - TTHFH 2,762,000 ZFFEH) [

C R E WA 2 16,600,000 BER 4 220% 2
13,000,000 148 °

K
P

o]
r%%ﬁ

ﬂﬁt_ TN EHY#9 230,800,000 78 TCIE HN17%

T 149 269,800,000 7T « KIEHERENZ
FRMBNLS ABENRRTIESALRERE
- BRREES R 2E A B AN 1 I 8 4
RN EREEEMN EERNEEBEBRDERR
FE(RFRIRRIEE) B 558 EAEKMEFINDT
BREMEENHRS G  KKEET REEEED
BRE o

Eﬂl AP

NEES

*??tfﬁ P& EEFSEVIE 49 177,200,000 78 JT HY 15 B Uk
HIR4793,500,000/8 TRy D FEEF) - B FFARUR
)\&“*Emﬂ DRI A 149% F2 380 2% o

FRN - AEEHEREERETTEAR(EAR]) - 5
IREIE AT FRHE S B 4965.5% 18 A1 2= 4983.9% ° £t
FE  EEERED Ekm,\ﬁfa“—i*%ﬁnm%ﬁ%g%mfﬁi “
24% o EB =R EXEALAEEIJJ%ZKEIE@WJ%

WEKBHEAR] - AEBEGRIES IMSZ 4
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DM

Expressway, previously accounted for as a subsidiary of the Group,
became an associate. The Group realised a one-off gain of approximately
HKS$165.9 million on this exercise. This also explained the decrease in
revenue as Jinbin Expressway ceased its contribution to the Group's
revenue since September 2007.

Since the opening of other expressways in the city, diversion of traffic
from the Eastern Outer Ring Road continued. The average daily traffic
flow on the Eastern Outer Ring Road has declined by 39% to 18,111
vehicles during the year. However, more larger/heavier vehicles returned
after the major repairs and maintenance last year. As a result, there
was an improvement of vehicle mix and the toll revenue decreased by
only 7% to approximately HK$119.7 million as a result of the change in

vehicle mix.

The Jinbin Expressway operated with satisfactory performance in 2007
as evidenced by an average daily traffic flow of 24,810 vehicles and
toll revenue of approximately HK$93.8 million (with contribution of
approximately HKS$57.5 million to the Group’s revenue as a subsidiary
before the Restructuring), representing respective increases of 17% and

19% over last year.

Utility operations

The Group’s utility businesses are operating in the Tianjin Economic-
Technological Development Area (“TEDA"), supplying electricity, water,

heat and thermal power to industrial, commercial and residential
sectors.

Electricity Operation

Electricity Company is principally engaged in the supply of electricity in

165,900,000/8 7T © L IREIRR T AR D 2R AEES
BARA-_TELFNARTBAANEE BRI
AFTEL ©

BEMANEMSEAKRIBE  INRREREOBRE
BEWO R - IRERNEBATFHRBRAEREART
P& 39% = 18111 20K » SR » B AR SR EIHH
EFLPBBERRERE R - Bt BRMAEEAT

HWE EBWANMEERAGREME TR /%EL
119,700,000 /87T °

BESRABN_ZEZELFNRES A
FHRBREE248108 m&&’lﬁu&)\iﬁ%sooooo

BIT(REARTANBRARNS D AREEEEY
57,500,000/ TCHIURA) - BEF DRI EFH17% 52 19% ©

VB
AR E A RIEER EBAEREEHE R RITHAEE

(IRzR#ER DKL RIBEREERAES - B
HROKFNZREE -

ENEK

ENRRIEFREREMBEREEHERS - THEHM

B
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DM

the TEDA. It also provides services in relation to maintenance of power

supply equipment and electric power related technological consulting.
Currently, the installed capacity of electricity transmission of Electricity
Company is approximately 470,000 kVA.

In 2007, the Group's electricity operation reported a revenue of
approximately HK$1,308.4 million and a segment profit of approximately
HK$105.9 million, representing an increase of 28% and 29% over last year
respectively. The increase in segment profit was mainly attributable to
the increase in quantity sold and effective control over indirect costs.
The total quantity of electricity sold for the year was approximately
1,992,803,000 kWh, representing an increase of 17% over last year.

Water Operation

Water Company is principally engaged in the supply of tap water in the
TEDA. It is also engaged in installation and maintenance of water pipes,
tap water related technological consulting, and retail and wholesale of
water pipes and related parts. The daily water supply capacity of the
Water Company has reached approximately 220,000 tonnes.

In 2007, the Group’s water operation reported a revenue of
approximately HK$258.5 million and a segment profit of approximately
HK$68.8 million, resulted in the respective increase of 19% and a
decrease of 12% over the corresponding period last year. The total
quantity of water sold for this year was approximately 39,236,000 tonnes,
representing an increase of 1% over last year. In order to ensure water
supply capability, a new source of supply was secured from a supplier of
underground water. Part of the purchase was made from this supplier in
2007. Since underground water cost more than self-produced water, it
resulted in a decrease of segment profit.
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Heat and Thermal Power Operation

Heat & Power Company is principally engaged in the production and
distribution of steam for industrial users and heating for commercial and
residential purposes within the TEDA. The Heat & Power Company has
currently made a connection to a total of approximately 300 kilometers
steam transmission pipelines and more than 60 processing stations
in the TEDA, with a daily distribution capacity reaching approximately
21,400 tonnes of steam.

In 2007, the Group's heat and thermal power operation reported a
revenue of approximately HK$486.2 million and a segment profit of
approximately HK$23.8 million. Since the acquisition of Heat & Power
Company was completed in late April 2006, the Heat & Power Company
only contributed 8 months’ results in 2006. Nevertheless, the increase
in segment profit was driven by the increase in quantity sold. The total
quantity of steam sold for the year was approximately 2,675,000 tonnes,
representing an increase of 11% over last year.

Locating at the TEDA with a planned site area of 33 square kilometers
in the east area and 48 square kilometers in the west area, Electricity
Company, Water Company and Heat & Power Company have been
benefiting from the prosperous growth of consumption in TEDA.
Leveraging on their well-established supply network, management
expertise and customer base, the Group believes that the utility
operations will continue to be one of the growth drivers of the Group.

BERNRTENEEXRERBEERANATIERFEEM
R EAARBERREETRAR - AERRENA
KEMBBERARLN300 A BN ERE B NE60E
BRIBUL - BEIREE LD 21,400 EE R ©

RIZEZTLF AEEMBEEEHSRAYLY
486,200,000 7 7T K& 53 28 % F1] 49 23,800,000 8 7T ° AR

WERE NG IR ST RNFHNARTEK - AEQR
RZZEZTRFEFER/\ERAEE - A \*E/ﬁnﬂ
EEEE EAFSSmMEMm - FAHSEEABRENE

2,675,000 + BXEFIENN11% ©

BHRR - BAOKARRMEA AN E BB
BEHAEREBH BT FHABNTRHE
B —ESERRRHEEARDOESR  BELY
FEOGEBE  SRERREREPER - A%E
AL BN AR RS N2 — -

17




18

Tianjin Development Holdings Limited XZ%RIZERER QT
Annual Report 2007 —EBEAFFR

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DM

STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS
Winery Operation

Sales volume of Dynasty Fine Wines Group Limited (“Dynasty”) (stock code:
828) remained basically stable at approximately 48.8 million bottles in 2007
as compared to 49.5 million bottles in 2006 because of keen competition
in the market. Red wine contributed over 91% of total sales volume. The
revenue and profit attributable to equity holders of Dynasty amounted to
approximately HK$1,123.3 million and HK$126.3 million respectively, which
represented a corresponding increase of 1% and 10% over last year. The
increase in the profit was mainly attributable to the decrease in distribution
costs as the management had taken strong measures to control advertising
and promotion expenses. Gross profit margin improved slightly due to
declining purchase cost of grape juice as compared to 2006.

Dynasty contributed to the Group a profit of approximately HK$56.6
million in 2007, as compared to approximately HK$52.6 million in 2006,
representing an increase of 8%.

Elevator and Escalator Operation

OTIS China, an associate of the Group, has recorded continuous
satisfactory growth during the year. The revenue of OTIS China for
2007 amounted to approximately HK$9,337.2 million, achieving a 25%
increase over last year.

For 2007, the contribution of OTIS China to the profit of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$159.3 million, representing a 23% increase
over last year. The growth was contributed by strong demand in both
domestic and overseas markets. Demand in both domestic and overseas
markets remained solid and OTIS China has increased its marketing efforts
to expand the business. The Group believes that the investment in OTIS

China will continue to bring in sustainable earnings in the future.
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PROSPECTS

Given the focus of the “11th Five Year Plan (2006-2010)" on infrastructure
development, the Group will continue to increase investment in our
core businesses including port services and utilities operations.

The Group will continue to expand its port operations through TPD.
This is evidenced by its investments in joint ventures engaging in
the construction, management and operation of container handling
terminals at the Beigangchi area of the port of Tianjin. In addition, TPD
has formed a joint venture which is principally engaged in the provision
of logistics services in the Dongjiang Port. The long term strategic goal
is to integrate container handling and port logistics as drivers of future
growth.

TEDA, being one of the key districts in the Tianjin Binhai New Area
("TBNA") and having enjoyed double digit annual growth since 1998, has
huge development potential. The Group will increase investment in our
core utilities operations to capture the robust economic growth of TEDA.

In view of the potential economic development of Tianjin, it is expected
that more and more investors would set up their offices and more
business travelers will be visiting and working in Tianjin. This would
definitely lead to huge demand for commercial property including hotels
and offices. Around the year end of 2007, the Group has successfully
acquired a majority stake in the Hyatt Regency Tianjin Hotel and is actively
exploring the opportunities in the commercial property market in Tianjin.

2007 was the tenth anniversary of the Company’s listing on the Main

Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in Hong Kong.
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Looking forward, our staff will together devote their best efforts to grasp
the business opportunities arising from TBNA — the third engine of the
economic development in the PRC, in order to pursue higher return to
shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
ANALYSIS

As at 31st December 2007, the Group's total cash on hand and total
bank borrowings stood at about approximately HK$3,236 million and
approximately HK$ 1,304 million respectively (2006: HKS$3,304 million and
HK$1,807 million respectively) of which approximately HK$58 million
bank borrowings will be matured within one year. Convertible bonds
were fully converted during the year (outstanding amount as at 31st
December 2006: HK$212 million). Loan from a minority shareholder of
a subsidiary amounted to approximately HK$165 million (2006: HK$260
million) which bore interest at the rate of 6.4% per annum and have no
fixed terms of repayment.

The gearing ratio as measured by total borrowings to shareholders’
funds is approximately 18% at the end of 2007, compared to
approximately 33% at the end of 2006.

All of the total HK$ 1,304 million bank borrowings outstanding at the end
of 2007 were subject to floating rates with spread of 0.44% to 0.47% over
HIBOR (or LIBOR where applicable) of relevant interest periods.

As at the end of 2007, 100% of the Group's total bank borrowings was
denominated in HK dollars (2006: 55% was denominated in HK dollars, 42%
was denominated in Renminbi and 3% was denominated in US dollars).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Company and its subsidiary companies had a total of approximately
3,100 employees at the end of the period, of which approximately
910 were management and technical staff, with the balance being
production workers.
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The Group contributes to an employee pension scheme established
by the PRC Government which undertakes to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired employees of the
Group in the PRC. The Group also contributes to a mandatory provident
fund scheme for all Hong Kong employees. The contributions are
based on a fixed percentage of the members’ salaries.

DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

The Directors have resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK5.6 cents per share to the shareholders of the Company.
The proposed final dividend of HK5.6 cents per share and the payment
of which is subject to approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 30th May 2008.
The final dividend will be paid to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on 30th May 2008 and the
payment date will be on or about Wednesday, 25th June 2008.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 28th May 2008 to Friday, 30th May 2008, both days
inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will be registered. In order
to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all share certificates with
completed transfer forms either overleaf or separately, must be lodged
with the Company's share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at 26/F.,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 27th May 2008.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

None of the Group's assets are charged or subject to any encumbrance.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YU Rumin, aged 58, was appointed as the Vice Chairman and
Executive Director of the Company in November 1997. On 31st January
2008, he was appointed as the acting Chairman of the Company. He
was appointed as an executive director of Tianjin Port Development
Holdings Limited (“TPD") (Stock code 3382), the listed subsidiary of the
Company and the shares of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), on 24th November 2006 and
the chairman of TPD on 7th May 2007. Mr. Yu graduated from Shanghai
Haiyun College in 1975 and obtained a Master degree in international
transport engineering management. He had been the assistant to the
head of Tianjin Port Authority from March 1986 to December 1988.
He had been the deputy head of the Tianjin Port Authority since
December 1988, the executive deputy head since July 1996 and the
head of Tianjin Port Authority since June 2002. He was the deputy head
of the Regulatory Commission of Tianjin Port Tax Concession (K&
RIFREEELZEE) from July 1996 to June 2002. Subsequent to the
reorganization of Tianjin Port Authority in June 2004, he acted as the
vice chairman and chief executive officer of K&/ (£E) GFE AT
(Tianjin Port (Group) Co., Ltd.) ("Tianjin Port Group”). Mr. Yu is currently
the chairman of Tianjin Port Group. He is also the chairman of K;ZER%
BB AF] (Tianjin Port Holdings Co,, Ltd), a company whose shares
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, PRC. Mr. Yu has extensive
experience in port management for over 20 years.

Mr. WU Xuemin, aged 54, was appointed as an Executive Director
and deputy general manager of the Company on 31st January 2008.
He is a director of Tsinlien Group Company Limited (“Tsinlien”), the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Wu is a senior economist
and possesses a university degree. From July 1987 to November 1996,
he acted as the deputy manager and manager of Hainan office and
import and export office of Li Da Group. In November 1996, he acted
as the deputy general manager of Li Da Group. During the period,
he also acted as the chairman of Hai He Trading Company and Jin
Rong International Company of Li Da Group in Hong Kong. In 1999,
he completed the postgraduate course of international trade in the
Tianjin Economics and Finance Institute. In September 2002, he acted as
the general manager of Tianjin Li He Group. Mr. Wu worked in foreign
trading corporations for many years and is experienced with foreign
economy and import and export business.
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Mr. NIE Jiansheng, aged 53, was appointed as an Executive Director
and Deputy General Manager of the Company in February 2004. He
is also a director and deputy general manager of Tsinlien. He was
appointed as a director of TPD on 26th August 2005 and was designated
as an executive director and vice chairman of the Company on 8th
September 2005. Mr. Nie graduated from the School of Politics at the
Tianjin Normal College in 1980, majoring in economics and philosophy
and completed a postgraduate course in international trade at the
Tianjin Economics and Finance Institute in 1999. Mr. Nie was the deputy
department head of the Liaison department of the Foreign Affairs
Office of the Tianjin Municipal People’s Government from 1991 to 1992,
the deputy head of the department of Foreign-invested Enterprises
Management of the Tianjin Foreign Economic and Trade Commission
from 1992 to 1996 and the head of the Tianjin Foreign Investment
Enterprises Management Office and the general secretariat of the
Foreign Investment Office of Tianjin Municipal People's Government
from 1998 to 2001. He has been the vice chairman of Tianjin Heavenly
Palace Winery Co., Ltd. since July 2003. Mr. Nie has over 10 years of
experience in management and in particular in managing roles within

government.

Mr. DAI Yan, aged 55, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in July 2006. He is a senior economist and also a director
of Tsinlien. Mr. Dai graduated from Beijing Foreign Economic Trade
University in 1980. In 1998, he completed the professional course in
law in the School of Central Committee of the Communist Party of
PRC and the postgraduate course of international trade in the Tianjin
Economics and Finance Institute, respectively. From 1988 to 2002, he
acted as the deputy general manager of Tianjin Garment Import &
Export Corporation; the deputy general manager of Tianjin Garment
Associate Corporation; the director, deputy general manager and
general manager of Tianjin Zhong Fu International Group Company
Limited and acted as the director and deputy general manager of Tianjin
Textile (Holdings) Group Limited. In June 2007, he was also appointed
as an executive director of Wah Sang Gas Holdings Limited (Stock code
8035), a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Dai

has solid experience in management for over 20 years.

BEERE RFESH R_TTNF_AEZRER
ARARATESRENBLIE - WITREBHES REIE
K12 RN —ERRFENAZTRARZERREE
BR2EE IR _ZTERFNAAN\BEZER/RT
BERFRATE - BEEAR - NN\TFERENRZMME
BRERL R TREESEREE - YR—AANFR
REFEER TR BERE S EEMELERE - |MAL
R—NN—FE- AN FEEERETARBFFIN
EMRERXBRREER  R—NANZFE-NNAKREF
BEXETEHINEEE DL BRI ECXEEEER
£ WR—NANFZE BT -FHEEREDING
REGEERRRERRXENARBMINGRERD
EMER - B-ZT=FLAR  RAREXRSEE
BEERARREER - BELEEETHERE T
FiE5 - FHRREERTHRMFNER -

BEXE BFESSm R_TERFLARZER
ARBHITES - WA —BERKER - TAREZ
B2 BRER-NN\TFEERUEREINEEE S
RE - R—=ANNEF - FORIRPRERTTKRATAE
FEEXRERNREM BRI R ERRE S
R FER—NNNFEZZTTF  LRELER
ERFEL O RFRIBLIE  RETREMESERF
BIAERE  REFZEREEBERARES - BIAK
B TR BRI (R SEBER AR EEME
BEBERN - R-TELFRA WIIEZERE
ZMRIERBR QA (B R5E8035) (RA B Z M
MR ET) 2HITESE - BAEREETEAA
B-tEZEEER -

23




24

Tianjin Development Holdings Limited XZ%RIZERER QT
Annual Report 2007 —ZE+EER

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERGNREEAERBE

Mr. HU Chengli, aged 51, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in July 2006. He is also a director of Tsinlien. Mr. Hu graduated
from Tianjin Textile Industrial College in 1980, majoring in textile
automation. In 1985, he completed professional course in business
management in Tianjin Administration College and completed the
postgraduate course of theory in set-up of the party at School of Tianjin
Committee of the Communist Party in 2001. He obtained a master
degree in business administration from the National University of South
Australia in 2003. From 1979 to 1982, he was engaged in the research
and development in the Tianjin Textile R&D Centre. From 1985 to 1992,
he acted as the department chief and deputy head in the research &
development department, news and information centre and secretarial
department of Tianjin Committee Office. From 1992 to 1999, he joined
the Liaison Office of The Central People’s Government in the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (formerly known as Xinhua News
Agency, Hong Kong Branch) and acted as deputy head and head of
the Administrative Division. From 1999 to 2002, he acted as the chief of
Second Administrative Division of Tianjin Committee Office. Mr. Hu has

solid experience in administration and management for over 20 years.

Dr. WANG Jiandong, aged 45, was appointed as an Executive Director
and Deputy General Manager of the Company in July 2003. He
graduated from the Faculty of Financial and Law of Nankai University
in 1989 and obtained a Master degree and a Doctorate degree in
economics from Nankai University in 1997 and 2002 respectively. He is
a senior economist. He worked with the Bank of China, Tianjin Branch
from 1989 to 1993, and became the general manager of Shanghai
Department of Securities Business of Tianjin International Trust &
Investment Company Limited (Bank of China) from 1993 to 1996.
Dr. Wang joined Tsinlien in 1996 as secretary of the Board and was
appointed as the general manager of department of financial market of
the Company and Tianjin Development Assets Management Company
Limited in 1998.

Mr. BAI Zhisheng, aged 52, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in January 2006. Mr. Bai graduated in 1984 from the
undergraduate programme of Peking University where he studied in
international politics. He completed a postgraduate course specializing
in law at the School of Central Committee of the Communist Party,
the PRC in 1998. He is the chairman and executive director of Dynasty
Fine Wines Group Limited (Stock code 828), the listed associate of the
Company and the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Bai has solid experience in corporate management for over 10 years.
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Mr. ZHANG Wenli, aged 53, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company in March 2006. Mr. Zhang graduated from the Faculty of
Electrical Engineering of Harbin Electrical Engineering Institute in 1982.
He completed a postgraduate course specializing in law at the School
of Central Committee of the Communist Party, the PRC in 1999. He got
the EMBA degree of Tianjin University in 2006. He was the deputy head
of Tianjin Electrical and Mechanical Research Institute from 1982 to
1993. From 1993 to 1995, he was the deputy head of Tianjin Electricity
Control and Mechanic Transmission Institute. From 1996 to 2000, he was
the assistant general manager and deputy general manager of Tianjin
Electrical and Mechanical Industrial Company (currently known as Tianjin
Machinery & Electric Industry Holding Group Company). Since July 2000,
he was appointed as the general manager and chairman of Tianjin
Machinery & Electric Industry Holding Group Company. He is also the
chairman of Tianjin Benefo Teling Electric Company Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, PRC and a
director of CFHI-National Heavy Industries R & D Center. Mr. Zhang has

solid experience in research and development for over 10 years.

Mr. SUN Zengyin, aged 62, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in May 2000. He graduated from the Faculty of Water
Engineering of Tianjin University. After his graduation, he was appointed
as the head of Construction Section in the Drainage Administration
Department in Tianjin Municipal Bureau, chief director of the Drainage
Administration Department, assistant director of Tianjin Municipal
Bureau, deputy director of Tianjin Municipal Bureau and then the
director of Tianjin Municipal Bureau. He has served Tianjin government
for over 30 years and has been in charge of many large infrastructure
projects. He is extremely familiar with Tianjin’s economic structure and

development.

Dr. ZONG Guoying, aged 44, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in July 2006. Dr. Zong Guoying is a part-time university
professor. He obtained his doctorate in Economics from Nankai
University in 2000. He completed his post-doctorate research in the
School of Economics of the Beijing University in 2004. He is a part-time
Professor of the Economics College of the Beijing Normal College. He
was the deputy general manager and committee member of China
Geoengg Corporation Limited (FRiEEE) from 1996 to 2002. During
1999 to 2001, he was appointed as city committee standing member
and vice mayor of Dezhou, Shandong Province. From 2002 to 2006, he
was the deputy head of The Administrative Commission of Tianjin Hi-
Tech Industrial Park. In March 2006, he was appointed as the chairman
and general manager of Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding Limited. In October
2006, he was appointed as the chairman and general manager of Binhai
New Area Development and Infrastructure Company Limited. Dr. Zong

has solid experience in management for over 10 years.
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Mr. ZHENG Daoquan, aged 58, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in December 2006. Mr. Zheng is a senior economist and
possesses tertiary academic qualification. From 1982 to 1998, he was
the official, deputy head and head of administration section of Tianjin
Engineering and Industrial Bureau. Besides, he was also the general
manager of Tianjin Tai Guang Industrial and Trade Company at the
same period. From 1998 to March 2006, he was the head of Tianjin's
representative office of Tsinlien. Mr. Zheng is a director and deputy
general manager of Tsinlien and the head of Tianjin's representative
office of Tsinlien. Mr. Zheng has solid experience in management for
over 20 years.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. CHEUNG Wing Yui, aged 58, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in November 1997 and re-
designated as Non-Executive Director of the Company in September
2004. He received a Bachelor of Commerce degree in accountancy from
the University of New South Wales, Australia. Mr. Cheung is a member
of CPA Australia. He has been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong since
1979 and is consultant of the law firm Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo. He has been
admitted as a solicitor in the United Kingdom and as an advocate and
solicitor in Singapore. Mr. Cheung is also an independent non-executive
director of a number of companies listed on the Stock Exchange, namely
Hop Hing Holdings Limited (Stock code 47), Agile Property Holding
Limited (Stock code 3383) and Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of
China, Ltd. (Stock code 2318). He is also a non-executive director of a
number of companies listed on the Stock Exchange, namely SmarTone
Telecommunications Holdings Limited (Stock code 315), Sunevision
Holdings Limited (Stock code 8008), Tai Sang Land Development
Limited (Stock code 89) and SRE Group Limited (Stock code 1207).
In addition, he is a member of the Board of Review (Inland Revenue
Ordinance), a director of the Community Chest, a council member of the
Open University of Hong Kong, a director of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors Limited and a member of the Appeal Board established under

the Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. KWONG Che Keung, Gordon, aged 58, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 1998. Mr. Kwong has also
been serving as the chairman of the audit committee and a member
of the remuneration committee of the Company since 1998 and 2005
respectively. He is also an independent non-executive director of a
number of companies listed on the Stock Exchange, namely COSCO
International Holdings Limited, Beijing Capital International Airport
Company Limited, Frasers Property (China) Limited, NWS Holdings
Limited, China Oilfield Services Limited, OP Financial Investments
Limited (formerly known as Concepta Investments Limited), China
Chengtong Development Group Limited, Global Digital Creations
Holdings Limited, Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China,
Limited, Quam Limited, China Power International Development
Limited, Henderson Land Development Company Limited, Henderson
Investment Limited, Agile Property Holdings Limited and CITIC 1616
Holdings Limited. From 1984 to 1998, Mr. Kwong was a partner of
Pricewaterhouse and was a council member of the Stock Exchange
from 1992 to 1997. He has a Bachelor of Social Science degree from the
University of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of both the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. LAU Wai Kit, aged 45, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company in March 1998. He is a principal
of Gobi Partners, Inc,, a venture capital firm focuses on technology
investments in China. He has over 12 years of experience in investment
banking and direct investment. Mr. Lau is a solicitor of the Supreme
Court of Hong Kong, an attorney and counselor at law of the Supreme
Court of the State of California, a solicitor of the Supreme Court of
England and Wales, and an advocate and solicitor of the Supreme
Court of Singapore. Mr. Lau is an independent non-executive director
of China Insurance International Holdings Co. Limited (Stock code 966)
and Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Co. Limited (Stock code
8199) and WSP Holdings Limited (Stock code WH). China Insurance
International Holdings Co. Limited and Shandong Weigao Group
Medical Polymer Co. Limited are listed on the Stock Exchange. WSP
Holdings Limited is listed on the New York Stock Exchange.
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Dr. CHENG Hon Kwan, GBS, JP, aged 80, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in June 2001. Dr.
Cheng obtained his Bachelor's Degree in Civil Engineering from Tianjin
University and a DIC from Imperial College of Science and Technology,
London. He has been awarded Honorary Doctor's Degrees from Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology, City University of Hong
Kong, Open University of Hong Kong, and Open University, UK. He is a
Fellow of Imperial College and City and Guilds London Institute. He is a
Past President, Honorary Fellow and Gold Medallist of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers; Past Vice President, Fellow and Gold Medallist
of the Institution of Structural Engineers, Fellow of the Institution of
Civil Engineers and of the American Society of Civil Engineers and
Honorary Fellow of Engineers Australia. He is also an Honorary Member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Planners and the Hong Kong Institute of
Architects. Dr. Cheng is an authorised person and registered structural
engineer; Former Chairman of Hong Kong Housing Authority and
Transport Advisory Committee. He is a member of the Standing
Committee of the Tianjin CPPCC, Chairman of Tianjin Ganglin Architects
& Engineers Ltd. and a permanent Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong
Tianjin Friendship Association. Currently Dr. Cheng is a non-executive
director of Wing Hang Bank Limited, Hang Lung Group Limited, Agile
Property Holdings Limited and Hang Lung Properties Limited, all
companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. GE Luncan, aged 57, is the Deputy General Manager of the
Company. Ms. Ge possesses accounting qualification and tertiary
academic qualification. From 1978 to January 1997, she was engaged
in accounting and financial management of the various departments
of the Tianjin Branch of Bank of China including the Departments of
Non-trading Foreign Currency Clearing, Audit, Deposit and Accounts.
She has been the officer of the aforesaid departments, the Manager of
the Non-trading Foreign Currency Clearing Department and the Audit
Department, and the Deputy Head of the Deposit Department and the
Audit Department. In January 1997, she was re-designated to act as
the Deputy General Manager of the Accounts Department of Tsinlien.
In January 1998, she acted as the Head and the Chief Representative
of the Tianjin representative office of the Company. In 2005, she acted
as the acting general manager of the Investment and Development
Department. In April 2006, she acted as the Deputy General Manager of
the Company and the Head of the representative office of the Company
in Tianjin. Ms. Ge has working experience in banking and corporate

financial management for over 20 years.

Mr. TSANG Wai Yip, Patrick, aged 39, is the Group Financial Controller
and Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Tsang holds a bachelor
degree in accountancy and is a fellow member of both the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Tsang started his career with
PricewaterhouseCoopers (formerly known as Price Waterhouse) from
1990 to 1994. From January 1995 to June 1996, he was the senior
accountant for The Sincere Co,, Ltd. Prior to joining the Company in
November 2003, Mr. Tsang served as an accounting manager and
financial controller of China Resources Breweries Ltd. (a brewery joint
venture between China Resources Enterprises Ltd. and SABMiller) in
1996 and 2001 respectively. Mr. Tsang has over 17 years of experience in

auditing, accounting and corporate finance.

Mr. CHAN Ho Wah, Terence, aged 37, is the Investment Director of the
Company. Mr. Chan is a Chartered Financial Analyst. He holds a bachelor
of engineering degree and a master of science degree in real estate
(general practice surveying) from the University of Hong Kong. Prior
to joining the Company in July 1998, Mr. Chan was personal assistant
to chairman of Nan Fung Group, a well-established local property
developer. Mr. Chan has over 15 years of experience in real estate

investment and project financing.
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MAINTAINING HIGH STANDARDS OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE IN EVERYTHING
WE DO

Sound corporate governance practices are crucial to the smooth,
effective and transparent operation of a company and its ability to
attract investment, protect rights of shareholders and stakeholders, and
enhance shareholder value. The Company is committed to maintaining
a high standard of corporate governance with a view to being

transparent, open and accountable to our shareholders.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31st December 2007,
except for the following deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1

The code provision A.2.1 of the Code provides that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

On 21st September 2007, Mr. Wang Guanghao, due to retirement,
resigned as Chairman of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the
Company and was re-designated as a non-executive Director of the
Company. Dr. Ren Xuefeng, the then Vice Chairman of the Board
and general manager of the Company was appointed as Chairman
of the Board with effect from 21st September 2007. Consequently,
the positions of Chairman of the Board and general manager of the

Company were held by Dr. Ren Xuefeng.

On 31st January 2008, due to job re-arrangement, Dr. Ren Xuefeng
resigned as Chairman of the Board, executive Director and general
manager of the Company; Mr. Yu Rumin, the Vice Chairman of the Board,
was appointed as acting Chairman of the Board of the Company. The
position of general manager of the Company would be filled up in due

course.
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE {¥&34a%#~8|(58)
PRACTICES (Cont’d)

Code Provision A.4.2 SFAMESLE A2 15

The code provision A4.2 of the Code provides that every director, STRIZ STREMEX B AA2IGHRTE  BREE (BIENUE
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to EEREE 2 EF)ER VB =FHEER—K -
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

As disclosed in the Company's 2006 Annual Report, the Directors have MR RR T NFFRATIFEE - ARBEHEER
not been required by the Company's articles of association (the "Articles 4R (Hﬁiﬁﬁiﬁiﬁﬂﬁuﬁjﬂﬁ%ﬁmﬁ$2 5:’/ B=FH
of Association”) to retire by rotation at least once every three years. FER—IN - AT - BIBEAQEAMERER - TF
However, in accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the =Yy i_"Z MES  NWEEAHWIE=sk=2
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple =8 QBT =227 MNEFAE  BRSERE
of three, then the number nearest one-third, shall retire from office AFRE EHELSR At ARARAER LBEE
by rotation at each annual general meeting. It is therefore considered AR EA42EZIRTE - Al - EBLRE B
that code provision A4.2 has been followed in practice. Nevertheless, THREZE f@Lﬁ—r,ﬁ\'J C WBIERTHRBERR A2
the Board opined that in order to ensure better compliance with the ETEN - RARIR_ZEEZ+FRA-+HBETZ

Code, appropriate amendment of certain articles should be made in the h%ﬁik@(fﬁxiﬁﬂiﬁéj)t C ARARIREE R
Articles of Association. At the annual general meeting of the Company BEBILE FMEE 2 RESE  MENEEREES
on 25th May 2007 (the "AGM"), the resolution approving the aforesaid K&t =pr—2EFEEERAREBERSHE
was approved by shareholders of the Company to provide that at each BRE MBUEZEZVE=FHERT K-
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being

shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be

subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Code Provision E.1.2 FAMRZ S EN.2 1%
The code provision E.1.2 of the Code provides that the chairman of the SFAZTFAMENELI2GRTE EFEERALER
board shall attend the annual general meeting of the Company. NRAIZBREBERE o

Due to business reason, Mr. Wang Guanghao, the former Chairman of BRESEE  AIEREeXFEIESLERELFER
the Board, was unable to attend the AGM. Dr. Ren Xuefeng, the then HBAFARE  HIEFCREF ISR LREAE
Vice Chairman of the Board, was elected to take the chair at the AGM BRMAERTIFRRABAFRE -

pursuant to the Articles of Association.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

During the year ended 31st December 2007, the Board comprises
sixteen members. Dr. Ren Xuefeng acts as the Chairman of the Board
and general manager of the Company. Mr. Yu Rumin acts as the Vice
Chairman of the Board. Other executive Directors are Mr. Nie Jiansheng,
Mr. Dai Yan, Mr. Hu Chengli, Dr Wang Jiandong, Mr. Bai Zhisheng,
Mr. Zhang Wenli, Mr. Sun Zengyin, Dr. Zong Guoying and Mr. Zheng
Daoquan. The Company has two non-executive Directors, Mr. Wang
Guanghao and Mr. Cheung Wing Yui, and three independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon, Mr. Lau Wai Kit and
Dr. Cheng Hon Kwan, one of whom namely, Mr. Kwong Che Keung,
Gordon has appropriate professional accounting experience and

expertise.

On 31st January 2008, due to job re-arrangement, Dr. Ren Xuefeng
resigned as Chairman of the Board, general manager, executive Director,
authorised representative and remuneration committee member of
the Company; due to retirement, Mr. Wang Guanghao resigned as non-
executive Director and authorised representative of the Company;
Mr. Yu Rumin, the Vice Chairman of the Board of the Company, was
appointed as acting Chairman of the Board of the Company; and Mr. Wu
Xuemin was appointed as executive Director, deputy general manager,
authorised representative and remuneration committee member of the

Company.

All directors have distinguished themselves in their field of expertise,
and have exhibited high standards of personal and professional ethics
and integrity. The biographical details of each Director are disclosed on
pages 22 to 29 of this Annual Report.

Each independent non-executive Director has, pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules, confirmed that he is independent of the Company and

the Board also considers that they are independent.

A letter of appointment or service agreement has been entered into
between the Company with each of the independent non-executive
Directors and non-executive Directors for a term of three years with
effect from 1st January 2007, except for Mr. Wang Guanghao who has
entered into the service agreement with the Company in December
1997 and a supplemental service agreement in September 2007, unless
terminated by one month's notice in writing served by either party prior
to the expiry of the term. Moreover, they are subject to retirement by

rotation at the annual general meeting of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d) EEE(H)

Composition (Cont’d) HAE ()

In accordance with the amended Articles of Association, at each annual RBELSTAMBERER)  NEERFRRAFAS L -
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire =Hr—EFEFAERERE  EEBMLEFAEED

from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject B=FHERT R EFeNFREFEZEME
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Any Directors FHERBEBESEZTERZARR T —EREX
appointed by the Board during the year is required to retire and submit @ (INAEHEREHRE) A QR T —ERERFE LR
himself for re-election at the next following general meeting of the G (NRBESEIMINAE) DRERBEREET -
Company (in case of filling a casual vacancy) or at the next following

annual general meeting of the Company (in case of an addition to the

existing Board) immediately following their appointments.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no relationship BRARFAA  EFSSKEBLBEBR(REY
(including financial, business, family or other material relationship) 2% RESHMEAREER) -
among members of the Board.

Function BB RE

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for formulation and FERHRIFRE  BERBEMGSEMAIIER
approval of the Group’s development and business strategies and SEERREBRERECE  #UEEKE - 23k
policies, approval of business plans, recommendation of dividend BB NEREIRE o

and supervision of management in accordance with the Articles of

Association.

The executive Directors are responsible for day-to-day management of WITEZAEARAEB2ARER - WEHEAR

the Company's operations and to conduct regular meetings with the A ENE AR NBE AR EREEABSE K
senior management of the Company, its subsidiaries and associated BEE LM IERBEL A -

companies, at which operational issues and financial performance are
evaluated.

The Company views well-developed and timely reporting systems and RN B8 5T 5 B 3 B FE SR 6| 2 N2 (N 2P BS 3 AR — A
internal controls are essential, and the Board plays a key role in the 2N EREEE MM NS S EL i R i R R
implementation and monitoring of internal financial controls. BAG -

The Board has established procedure to enable Directors, upon EESEEVRF  FESITRNREEEERENE
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in BEBRATESRBUEXER BARAQARAEE -
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

The Articles of Association contain description of responsibilities and A ERERESEEETSEAREERF S - &
operation procedures of the Board. The Board holds regular meetings to FerHRTeRUT R EEEERMBE G EENES

discuss and consider significant matters relating to existing operations EENAEIZEEEH -EEeeZREETHLT
and proposals for new operations and projects. Board meetings include TFHE® EFEEFELETOREE -

regular meetings and irregular meetings. The Board meets formally at

least 4 times a year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Function (Cont'd)

The Board held 6 board meetings during 2007 on 30th March 2007,
19th April 2007, 20th July 2007, 14th August 2007, 20th September 2007
and 1st December 2007. Due notice and board papers were given to all
Directors prior to the regular meetings in accordance with the Articles
of Association and the Code. The attendance records of the board

meetings held in 2007 are set out below:-

Executive Directors
Dr. Ren Xuefeng
Mr. Yu Rumin

Mr. Nie Jiansheng
Mr. Dai Yan

Mr. Hu Chengli

Mr. Wang Jiandong
Mr. Bai Zhisheng
Mr. Zhang Wenli
Mr. Sun Zengyin

Dr. Zong Guoying
Mr. Zheng Daoquan

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Guanghao (Note)
Mr. Cheung Wing Yui

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon

Mr. Lau Wai Kit

Dr. Cheng Hon Kwan

Note: On 21st September 2007, Mr. Wang Guanghao was re-designated as a

non-executive Director of the Company.
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Chairman and General Manager

The Chairman is the leader of the Board and he oversees the Board
so that it acts in the best interests of the Group. The Chairman is
responsible for deciding the agenda of each Board meeting, taking
into account, where appropriate, matters proposed by other Directors
for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has overall responsibility for
providing leadership, vision and direction in the development of the
business of the Company.

The general manager, assisted by other executive Directors, is
responsible for the day-to-day management of the business of the
Group, attends to formulation and successful implementation of
policies, and assumes full accountability to the Board for all operations
of the Group. Working with the executive management team of each
core business division, he ensures smooth operations and development
of the Group. He maintains continuing dialogue with the Chairman, and
all the other Directors to keep them fully informed of all major business
developments and issues. He is also responsible for building and

maintaining an effective executive team to support him in his role.

As disclosed earlier in this report, the role of Chairman was held by Dr.
Ren Xuefeng, the general manager, subsequent to the re-designation
of Mr. Wang Guanghao as a non-executive Director on 21st September
2007. Except for the period mentioned above, the role of the Chairman
and general manager of the Company were separate and performed
by different individuals during the year. Such division of responsibilities
allows a balance of power between the Board and the management of
the Group, and ensures their independence and accountability.
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Responsibilities

In the course of discharging their duties, the Directors act in good faith,
with due diligence and care, and in the best interests of the Company

and its shareholders. Their responsibilities include:

- regular board meetings focusing on business strategy, operational

issues and financial performance;
- active participation on the boards of subsidiaries and associates;

- monitoring the quality, timeliness, relevance and reliability of

internal and external reporting;

- monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest of
management, board members and shareholders, including misuse

of corporate assets and abuse in connected transaction; and

- ensuring processes are in place to maintain the overall integrity of
the Company, including financial statements, relationships with
suppliers, customers and other stakeholders, and compliance with
all laws and ethics.

Board Committees

A number of Board Committees, including Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee, have been established by the Board to
strengthen its functions and to enhance its expertise. These committees
have been formed with specific written terms of reference which deal
clearly with the committees’ authority and duties.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee in 2005.
During the year ended 31st December 2007, the Remuneration
Committee consists of one executive Director, Dr. Ren Xuefeng and two
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon
and Dr. Cheng Hon Kwan. It is chaired by Dr. Cheng Hon Kwan. A written
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee was adopted with

reference to the Code.

As disclosed under the heading “Composition” in this report, Mr. Wu
Xuemin was appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee in

place of Dr. Ren Xuefeng on 31st January 2008.

The Remuneration Committee’s responsibilities are to review and
consider the Company's policy for remuneration of Directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee considers several
factors such as the performance, qualification and experience of the
individual and the prevailing market condition before determining the
remuneration packages of executive Directors and senior management
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
and to recommend to the Board remuneration of non-executive
Directors.

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting on 12th April 2007
at which all committee members were present. At the meeting, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed and discussed the remuneration
policy for 2006, the remuneration packages and bonus arrangements of

the Directors and senior management for 2006.

The Remuneration Committee also held a meeting on 19th December
2007 at which all committee members were present. At the meeting,
the Remuneration Committee considered and approved the granting of
share options to the participants pursuant to the share option scheme
adopted by shareholders of the Company on 25th May 2007 and the
total discretionary bonus for the Company’s Directors or employees for
the year ended 31st December 2007.

The Remuneration Committee also held a meeting on 9th April 2008
at which all committee members were present. At the meeting, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed and discussed the remuneration
policy for 2007 and the remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management for 2007.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon, Mr. Lau Wai Kit and
Dr. Cheng Hon Kwan. It is chaired by Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon. It
reports directly to the Board and reviews matters relating to the work of
the external auditor, financial statements and internal controls. The Audit
Committee meets with the Company's external auditor to discuss the
audit process and the accounting and internal control issues raised.

Set out below is the summary of work done in 2007:

reviewed the financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2006 and for the six months ended 30th June 2007;

- reviewed internal control matters with the external auditor;

- reviewed internal control system review performed by the external
consultant;

- reviewed the external auditor's statutory audit plan and letters to the

management; and

- considered 2007 audit fees and audit work.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during 2007 on 12th April 2007
and 12th September 2007 respectively. All individual members, namely,
Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon, Mr. Lau Wai Kit and Dr. Cheng Hon Kwan
attended the aforesaid meetings.
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Nomination of Directors

The Board has not established a nomination committee. According to
the Articles of Association, the Board has the power from time to time
and at any time to appoint any person as a director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board. In assessing nomination of
new directors, the Board has taken into consideration of the nominee’s

qualification, ability and potential contributions to the Company.

With respect to the re-designation of Mr. Wang Guanghao as a non-
executive Director and the appointment of Dr. Ren Xuefeng as Chairman
of the Board on 21st September 2007, it was reviewed and approved by
the Board at the Board meeting held on 20th September 2007 where
all the then Directors were present, except that Mr. Yu Rumin, Mr. Nie
Jiansheng, Mr. Bai Zhisheng, Mr. Sun Zengyin and Dr. Zong Guoying

were absent.

Save as abovementioned, no new director has been appointed during
the year. However, each newly appointed Director would be provided
with a package of orientation materials setting out the duties and
responsibilities of Directors under the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory and regulatory requirements. Orientation meeting with
newly appointed Director would be held for briefing on business and

operations of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code"). Having made specific enquiry with the
Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the year
2007.

The Company has also established written guidelines regarding
securities transaction on no less exacting terms of the Model Code for
senior management and specific individual who may have access to
price sensitive information in relation to the securities of the Company.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee reviews each year a letter from the external
auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, confirming their
independence, approves their appointment, discusses the scope of their

audit and approves their fees.

PricewaterhouseCoopers provided annual statutory audit services in
respect of the Company’s financial statements prepared under the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKFRSs") and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance for the
year 2007. PricewaterhouseCoopers also reviewed the 2007 unaudited
interim financial statements of the Company, prepared under HKFRSs.

During the year, the fees paid and payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers
in respect of audit and audit related services amounted to approximately
HK$5,730,000. In respect of non-audit services, the fees paid and payable
to PricewaterhouseCoopers relating to tax services amounted to
approximately HK$26,000.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal
controls within the Group and for reviewing their effectiveness. The
system of internal controls is designed to facilitate effective and efficient
operations, to safeguard assets and to ensure the quality of internal and
external reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
It is also designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
that material misstatement or loss can be avoided, and to manage and
minimize risks of failure in operation systems.

Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited (“TPD") and Dynasty Fine
Wines Group Limited ("Dynasty”), being the listed subsidiary and
associate of the Company respectively, engaged external professional
firms to perform a review on the effectiveness of their internal control
procedures up to 31st December 2007. For businesses other than TPD
and Dynasty, the Board engaged an external professional internal audit
consultancy firm (the “Consultancy Firm”) to review the Group's internal
control systems and assess the effectiveness of the Group's fundamental

operating controls.
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The Consultancy Firm, having adopted the “Internal Control and Risk BERAREAEBSHIMAER S RFNARIET
Management-A Basic Framework” issued by the HKICPA in June 2005 MR BRI R R B IR AR ZREMEAIES|  B5%
as a guidance, has completed the internal control review in 2006 and M= ERFZASELRF TE - WERARFE
issued a report to the Audit Committee of the Company. In respect of EEERERHE - -_TEELFEMmMs EFe B
the year 2007, the Board has engaged RSM Nelson Wheeler Consulting REREFHABMERAT([ERHE]) - LIRERER
Limited ("RSM Nelson Wheeler") to formulate a detailed audit plan NERZEENFETZNPEE M AR RET
based on the findings of the internal control review performed by —(EAFENEZTE  BIEVKEE  BIEEERES
the Consultancy Firm in 2006, covering all aspects including financial, RE N EMEIRENEESAE AE » WnmEsE
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions; KB A R TN B ES IR A% ©

and to perform the internal audit function on selected subsidiaries on a

rotation basis.

At the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 9th April 2008, RSM MERZEeN T N\FUANLBERT 2% &
Nelson Wheeler reported their review work done for the year ended HEMBEZE —_ZT+F+_-_A=1+—HBILFEMETT

31st December 2007. The Audit Committee members, together with the el T EmMEZLZECER FBEZREZTEEKEUR
senior management, have reviewed, considered and discussed all the SREEEDRHN EERYUEERAEEANEEL
findings relating to the internal control system that operates within the NEBEE IR R 2 FE &R RE L FTIR Mt 2 B E I 5T

Group and recommendations relating thereto. i o
GOING CONCERN FREE

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the EFEeAEHEEERERE  AAREERSER
Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence LATERITE R PR AEE LS - SRSV SRR ERAR
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to By HELHEE o

adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company so that they

can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives.
These include general meetings, annual reports, various notices,
announcements and circulars. Procedure for demanding voting by
poll has been included in all circulars accompanying notice convening
general meeting and the detailed procedures for conducting a poll has
been explained by the chairman at general meetings.

The general meetings provide with shareholders a useful forum and
encourage the shareholders to attend the general meetings of the
Company to raise comments and exchange views with the Board.
The Chairman, Directors, Board Committees’ chairman/members and
external auditor, where appropriate, are available to answer questions at

the meetings.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN PREPARING
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in preparing
the financial statements. The responsibilities of the external auditor
with respect to financial reporting are set out in the Report of the
Independent Auditor on pages 77 and 78.
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Report of the Directors
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial

statements for the year ended 31st December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities are shown in notes 41, 42 and 43 to the financial statements,

respectively.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2007 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 79.

The Directors have declared an interim dividend of HK5.4 cents per
share, totaling HK$55,923,486.76, which was paid on 9th November
2007.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK5.6
cents per share, totaling HK$57,994,727.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 168.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements. Distributable
reserves of the Company at 31st December 2007, calculated in
accordance with Section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
amounted to HK$1,196,996,000 (2006: HK$216,284,000).

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounted to approximately HK$5,258,000 (2006: Nil).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group and the Company are shown in note 15 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in

note 29 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31st December 2007 are set
out in note 31 to the financial statements.

LOAN AGREEMENT WITH SPECIFIC
PERFORMANCE COVENANTS

Save as disclosed below, the Directors are not aware of any
circumstances which would give rise to a disclosure obligation pursuant
to the requirements under Rule 13.18 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) as at 31st December 2007.

On 21st November 2006, the Company entered into a facility agreement
("Facility Agreement”) with a syndicate of lenders (the “Lenders”),
pursuant to which a term loan facility of up to HK$860 million and
a revolving/term loan facility of up to HK$1,140 million totaling
HK$2,000 million (the “Facility”) was made available to the Company
by the Lenders with a term of 60 months from the date of the Facility

Agreement.

Under the Facility Agreement, it will be an event of default if (i)
the Tianjin Municipal Government of the PRC ceases to maintain a
shareholding ownership directly or indirectly in the Company of more
than 50%, or (i) the Company ceases to be under the direct or indirect
management control of Tsinlien Group Company Limited (“Tsinlien”). If
any of the above-mentioned events of default occurs, it will confer on
the Lenders the right to cancel the Facility and declare all outstanding
borrowings and interest as immediately due and payable on demand.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold
any of the Company's shares during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
The Company

A. 0Old Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”)
at an extraordinary general meeting held on 22nd November 1997,
pursuant to which, the Directors may at their discretion and within
10 years from the approval date, invite any employees or executive
Directors of the Group to take up options to subscribe for shares
in the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated in
the Old Scheme. The Company operates the Old Scheme for the
purpose of promoting additional commitment and dedication to
the long term objectives of the Group by the participants. The cash
consideration payable for each grant is HKS1. The grant of options
under the Old Scheme expired on 21st November 2007.

Prior to 1st September 2001, the subscription price is determined
by the Directors and shall be the higher of nominal value of the
Company's share and a price not less than 80% of the market price
immediately before the options are granted. The maximum number
of shares issued to each employee or Director in respect of which
options may be granted shall not exceed 25% of the total shares in
issue or to be issued under the Old Scheme. On 1st September 2001
when the amendments to the Listing Rules on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) were effective, the
subscription price shall be the higher of the closing price on the
date of grant and the average closing price for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant. The maximum number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each employee or Director shall not exceed 1% of the total shares
in issue in any 12-month period. Shares options granted since 1st
September 2001 shall comply with the prevailing Listing Rules.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25th May
2007 ("AGM"), the termination of the Old Scheme was approved by
shareholders of the Company, such that no further share options
can be offered under the Old Scheme but the share options granted
shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with their
terms of issue and in all other respects its provision shall remain in
full force and effect until the expiry of the Old Scheme. During the

year, no share option has been granted under the Old Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)

The Company (Cont’d)

A. Old Scheme (Cont'd)

Pursuant to the Old Scheme, the Company granted share options in
the Company's shares in favour of certain Directors and employees
on 23rd December 2004, with an exercise price of HK$3.10 and are
exercisable from 28th December 2004 to 21st November 2007.
Details of movements in share options granted by the Company
pursuant to the Old Scheme are as follows:

BrEstE ()
A ()

Eit8)(#)

BIRETE  ARARZETNF+A=+=
BETETEFREEARTEBIR 2 EARE -
TEER3IGEL WAIRZ-ZTZTNF+ A
T NRBEZEEELF+ A+ —AHREfT
o RARRBEFAZ DKL BREZFS 255
ELUNNE

Number of share options

BREHE

Held at 31st
Held at 1st Exercised Lapsed Cancelled December 2007
January 2007 during during during RIZEZTtHF
Directors BE R-BZLHF the year the year theyear +=—HA=+—H
—HA—B&E&E FRITE FRRY FARH BE

(Note 1) (Note 2)

(BtzE1) (BfzE2)
Wang Guanghao TR 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - -
Ren Xuefeng 4% 900,000 900,000 - - -
Yu Rumin TR 900,000 - 900,000 - -
Nie Jiansheng B 700,000 - 700,000 - -
Wang Jiandong TR 600,000 - 600,000 - -
Sun Zengyin FRIGE]) 300,000 - 300,000 - -

Notes: 3T

1. Atotal of 1,900,000 share options were exercised by Mr. Wang Guanghao
and Dr. Ren Xuefeng in May 2007. The weighted average closing price
of the shares immediately before the dates on which the share options

were exercised was HK$7.76.

2. The outstanding share options for 2,500,000 shares were lapsed on 21st
November 2007.

1. TEEAARIBEEBEIR -_TTLFERADTE
& £1,900,000 1) BE AR #E - IR N B B2 S REARER
1T B EART 2 Ik (B AR 7.76 B TT ©

2. 512,500,000 A% E i A% 2 8 AR T B AR AE
EE+—A -+ —BEHR -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)
The Company (Cont’d)

B. New Scheme

At the AGM, the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”) was approved by shareholders of the Company. Relevant
information relating to the New Scheme is set out as follows:

(@) Purpose of the New Scheme
The purpose of this Scheme is to provide the Company with a

flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,

compensating and/or providing benefits to the participants.

S5

Participants of the New Scheme

The Board of Directors may offer to grant options to the
participants which means (i) any executive or non-executive
directors including independent non-executive directors or any
employees (whether full-time or part-time) of each member of
the Group; (i) any discretionary objects of a discretionary trust
established by any substantial shareholders of the Company
or any employees, executive or non-executive directors of
each member of the Group; (iii) any consultants, professionals
and other advisers to each member of the Group; (iv) any
chief executives or substantial shareholders of each member
of the Group; (v) any associates of director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of each member of the Group; (vi)
any employees (whether full-time or part-time) of substantial
shareholder of each member of the Group; (vii) any suppliers
of goods or services to any member of the Group; and (viii)
any customers of any member of the Group, provided that the
Board shall have absolute discretion to determine whether one

falls within the aforesaid categories.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)

The Company (Cont’d)

B.  New Scheme (Cont'd)

©

Total number of shares available for issue under the New
Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the New
Scheme. The maximum number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the New Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue from time to time.

The total number of shares available for issue under the New
Scheme are 91,662,012 Shares, representing approximately
8.59% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue as
at the date of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Except with the approval of the Company’'s shareholders at
general meeting, the total number of shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each participant (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed

1% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of grant.
Minimum period for options to be held
No minimum period for which an option must be held before it

can be exercised unless otherwise determined by the Board of

Directors of the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d)

The Company (Cont’d)

B.  New Scheme (Cont'd)

(f) Period and payment on acceptance of options

=

An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by a grantee
within the date as specified in the offer letter issued by the
Company, being a date not later than 30 days after the date
on which the offer letter was issued. A consideration of HK$1 is

payable on acceptance of the offer of grant of an option.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the New Scheme shall be a price
determined by the Board of Directors and notified to the
participants and shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; (i) the average of the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the

nominal value of a share.

Life of the New Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the Company at general
meeting or by the Board of Directors, the life of the New
Scheme commenced from 25th May 2007, date of adoption,
and will end on 24th May 2017.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d) BIRESTE (8)

The Company (Cont’d) AT (&)

B. New Scheme (Cont'd) B #ErE(#&)
Pursuant to the New Scheme, a total of 11,900,000 share options BEFETEl - 5 2£11,900000EREEN —=
were granted on 19th December 2007 and accepted by the Z+F+_A+HBAEL TR ZZEENF—A
following named grantees on 17th January 2008, with an exercise TR TOAARRAER  THEERSM4E T
price of HK$8.04 and are exercisable from 17th January 2008 to 24th AR-EEN\F—A++tBEE-_ZT—+tFHA
May 2017; Z U H AT

Number of share options granted

B LERESE
Directors )
Ren Xuefeng FE5% 1,100,000
Yu Rumin FzR 1,000,000
Nie Jiansheng mESE 900,000
Dai Yan B 900,000
Hu Chengli AR A 900,000
Wang Jiandong TEHR 600,000
Bai Zhisheng HE4 300,000
Zhang Wenli 5 3 ) 300,000
Sun Zengyin TRIZBE] 300,000
Zong Guoying RER R 300,000
Zheng Daoquan gE e 900,000
Cheung Wing Yui SR K 85 500,000
Kwong Che Keung, Gordon e 500,000
Lau Wai Kit EllgE 500,000
Cheng Hon Kwan B4 500,000
Continuous contract employees BEANER 2,400,000
Total e 11,900,000

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors had exercised any share br FiiB AN FARBEBITEEANARRRBER
option in the Company or none of the Directors of the Company or their B ARAIEEFRHEE 2 BRFERRR T N\ER2T
spouses or children under the age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for ZIEL R RERREAR DR 2B FREITEERZ
the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during LR -

the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)

Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited (“TPD")

By a written resolution passed by the sole shareholder of TPD on 26th
April 2006, a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
approved and adopted by TPD. Subject to earlier termination by TPD in
general meeting or by the board of directors of TPD, the Share Option
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the date
of its adoption, i.e. 26th April 2006.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive and
recognition to eligible persons for their contribution to TPD and its
subsidiaries (“TPD Group”). The board of directors of TPD may offer to
grant options to any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of TPD or any of its subsidiaries; any directors of TPD or any of its
subsidiaries; any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents
to TPD or any of its subsidiaries and such other persons who, in the
sole opinion of the board of directors of TPD, will contribute or have
contributed to TPD Group.

Unless approved by the shareholders of TPD in general meeting, the
total number of shares in TPD in respect of which options may be
granted (including shares in respect of which options, whether exercised
or still outstanding, have already been granted) under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of TPD must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue on the date
on which the shares commence listing on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Date”). The maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of TPD at any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

Unless approved by the shareholders of TPD in general meeting,
the maximum entitlement of each participant (including exercised,
outstanding and cancelled options) in any 12-month period under the
Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares in
issue on the offer date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)

Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited (“TPD")
(Cont’d)

A total of 155,300,000 shares are available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme, representing approximately 8.69% of the issued share
capital of TPD as at the date of TPD's annual report.

HKS$1T by way of consideration for the grant of an option is payable by
the grantee to TPD on acceptance of the option within 30 days from the
offer date.

The exercise period of the options is determinable by the directors of
TPD and shall not exceed a period of 10 years commencing on the
date upon which the option is deemed to be granted and accepted in

accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

Unless otherwise determined by the board of directors of TPD, there is
no minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

The exercise price in respect of any particular option granted under
the Share Option Scheme shall be such price as the board of directors
of TPD in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price
will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the offer
date; (i) the average of the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d)

Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited (“TPD")

(Cont’d)

Details of the options granted, exercised, lapsed and cancelled under

TPD's Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31st December 2007

are as follows:

Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 RIERERQT
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BT E (&)

AREBBRREERARLAD(REEBHRR D
(&)

BREREBE—ZTTLF T _A=1T—"BLFER R
BERRERRBRETERE - 176 - RAKEHEN
BRERREIRIAT -

At 31st
At 1st December 2007
Date of Exercise January 2007 R-BELE Exercise
Grant Pricce R=EZ+E Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled +=A Period
R AH 18 -A-H [BEhe [aXix:d BAN o =1-H e
HKS
B
Directors
Bz
Mr. Yu Rumin 03/02/2007 2.74 - 1,900,000 - - - 1,900,000  03/08/2007 -
TR (Note 1) 03/02/2017
(W3x1)
Mr. Nie Jiansheng 01/08/2006 228 2,100,000 - - - - 2,100,000  01/02/2007 -
BEE 01/08/2016
Mr. Wang Guanghao 01/08/2006 228 2,300,000 - - - - 2300,000  01/02/2007 -
TEE 01/08/2016
Other directors 01/08/2006 228 5,300,000 - - - (1,700,000) 4,200,000  01/02/2007 -
HipE=S 01/08/2016
Employees 01/08/2006 228 1,800,000 (400,000 - - 1,400,000  01/02/2007 -
&8 (Note 2) 01/08/2016
(Fitt2)
Total 11,500,000 1,900,000 (400,000) - (1,100,000) 11,900,000

Az
[=0-)
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont'd)

Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited (“TPD")
(Cont’d)

Notes:

1. The closing prices of the shares immediately before the date on which the

option was granted was HK$2.74.

2. The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the
date on which the option to subscribe for 400,000 shares was exercised was

HKS5.68.

3. All options granted are subject to a vesting period of six months from the

date of grant.

Details of the value of options granted under TPD’s Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31st December 2007 and the accounting
policy adopted for the options are set out in note 9 and note 2 to the

financial statements respectively.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yu Rumin

Dr. Ren Xuefeng
Mr. Wu Xuemin
Mr. Nie Jiansheng
Mr. Dai Yan

Mr. Hu Chengli

Dr. Wang Jiandong
Mr. Bai Zhisheng
Mr. Zhang Wenli
Mr. Sun Zengyin

(resigned on 31st January 2008)
(appointed on 31st January 2008)

Dr. Zong Guoying
Mr. Zheng Daoquan
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DIRECTORS (Cont’d)
Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Guanghao (re-designated as non-executive Director
on 21st September 2007 and resigned on
37st January 2008)

Mr. Cheung Wing Yui

Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon *

Mr. Lau Wai Kit *

Dr. Cheng Hon Kwan *

*  Independent Non-executive Directors

In accordance with Article 92 of the Company's Articles of Association,
Mr. Wu Xuemin will hold office until the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with Article 101 of the Company's Articles of Association,
Dr. Wang Jiandong, Mr. Bai Zhisheng, Mr. Zhang Wenli, Mr. Sun Zengyin
and Mr. Cheung Wing Yui will retire from office and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the

guidelines.

DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACT

Mr. Yu Rumin has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a period of three years commencing 1st December 1997 and will
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less than
six months' prior written notice to the other.

Save for the above, none of the Directors of the Company has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not terminable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETITORS

Mr. Yu Rumin is the chairman and a director of Tianjin Port (Group) Co.,
Ltd. (“Tianjin Port Group”), as well as the chairman and a director of
Tianjin Port Holdings Co., Ltd, which is a subsidiary of Tianjin Port Group.
Tianjin Port Group operates the businesses of handling containerised
and non-containerised cargo through its various subsidiaries and
associated companies, the businesses of which is competing with the
businesses of TPD, the listed subsidiary of the Company.

As the Board of the Company and the board of TPD are independent
of the board of Tianjin Port Group (save for Mr. Yu, who is the chairman
and a director of Tianjin Port Group, is the only common director in both
of these companies) and Mr. Yu has no control over the Board of the
Company and the board of TPD, the Group is capable of carrying on its

businesses independently of the businesses of Tianjin Port Group.

Save as disclosed above and within the knowledge of the Directors,
as at the date of this report, none of the Directors and their respective
associates had any interest in a business which competes or may
compete with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company's business to
which the Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding
company was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.
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EERRM Pz S

RZBEZLF+A=+—H  EFKHEBBARK
NAEISE AR EE (FERFHFRPEERD(F
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within FREBEEG ) EXVES) Ik - BRI RERER
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the o B AERRARRIRIEREF & EE KRG 352
BFE 2 Bz Emgoke - SRRE ETMEITA
ERETEFRZGNRESTR ([RETH ) HgAR
RIS B 22 P 2 RERRTOR BN

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31st December 2007, the Directors and their associates had the
following interests or short positions in shares, underlying shares and

“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”):

(i) Long position in shares of associated corporation of ) RAEQATEBEERGD 2HR
the Company

Dynasty Fine Wines Group Limited (“Dynasty”) FHARERBRAE] ([ FHZ])

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shares in issue
Name of Director Capacity Nature of interests shares held HERITRM
EEME 37 EEME FREROBE BMHOBES
Wang Jiandong Beneficial owner Personal interest 36,000 0.003%
TER EREEA (EPN: £

(ii) Long position in share options of associated

corporations of the Company

TPD

KB E

Number of
shares over
which options
are exercisable

(i) RELATEBEZE 2 BREZHR

Approximate
percentage of

shares in issue

Name of Directors Capacity Nature of interests A F 1T ERE IR R HEBITRS
EEpE 54 ERME BRZBROEE BRES
Wang Guanghao Beneficial owner Personal interest 2,300,000 0.13%
TEE EREEA (EPN

Yu Rumin Beneficial owner Personal interest 1,900,000 0.11%
TR BEmEAA (EPN £

Nie Jiansheng Beneficial owner Personal interest 2,100,000 0.12%

mEE

BEmfiBA

(BN £
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont’d)

(ii) Long position in share options of associated

corporations of the Company (Cont’d)

EERRM Pz Em

(&)

(i) RN FEBEE 2 BRE TR ()

Dynasty T
Number of
shares over Approximate
which options percentage of
are exercisable shares in issue
Name of Directors Capacity Nature of interests Al F1TERE IR R HEBTRSG
HEME 37 RS BRZBRHEE BRED
Wang Guanghao Beneficial owner Personal interest 900,000 0.07%
FTEE BEmlEBA (EPN: £
Nie Jiansheng Beneficial owner Personal interest 1,950,000 0.16%
MLt EREEA (BN £
Bai Zhisheng Beneficial owner Personal interest 2,300,000 0.18%
BE4 BEmEAA (PN £

The interests of the Directors in the share options of the Company as
beneficial owner are set out in the “Old Scheme” and “New Scheme”

under the section headed “Share Option Schemes” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2007, none of the
Directors, chief executive and their respective associates had any
interests or short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2007, the following persons or corporations, other
than the Directors or chief executives of the Company as disclosed
above, had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X322 ZERAER DT
Annual Report 2007 —ZEZEHFFf

FERR

RIBZELF+-A=+—H UWTATIEE(L
XHAREZARREETRERITHRABRIN RAR
Al MARBER O B BB RN AR RIRIERE 7 M ]
BI&HIF 3B EFEZ ERM o EmIAR

Approximate
Number of shares/ percentage of

underlying shares held shares in issue

Name of Shareholders Capacity RS, HERITRAG
REAB 54 HERGHE BRES
(Note 1)
(MHsED)
Tsinlien (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 538,189,143 (L) 51.99%
ERHE (3T 2) REHEEER
Citigroup Inc. Interest of controlled corporation/ 55,099,800 (L) 5.32%
Person having a security interest in shares/ 44,006,000 (S) 4.25%
Custodian corporation or corporation or 10,437,800 (P) 1.01%
approved lending agent
ZEHEE R
H’ifﬁ?ﬁﬁ%*ﬁﬁ}\/
FEERARERAEERE
Fidelity International Limited Investment manager 52,172,000 (L) 5.04%
REKE
Notes: MI3E
1. “L" denotes a long position; “S" denotes a short position; “P" denotes lending 1. TUERTRER  [SIRTER [Pl ARTAIHEERSD

pool.

2. As at 31st December 2007, Tianjin Investment Holdings Limited (“Tianjin
Investment”) and Tsinlien Venture Capital Company Limited (“Tsinlien
Venture”), both being wholly-owned subsidiaries of Tsinlien, held 536,167,143
shares and 2,022,000 shares respectively. By virtue of the SFO, Tsinlien is taken

to have interest in the shares held by Tianjin Investment and Tsinlien Venture.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by any
persons or corporations, other than the Directors or chief executives
of the Company, who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO as at 31st
December 2007.

it -
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered

into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five

largest customers were less than 30% of the Group’'s sales.

The percentage of the Group's purchases for the year attributable to the

Group's major suppliers are as follows:

- the largest supplier 42%
- the five largest suppliers in aggregation 60%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31st December 2007, the Group has entered into
the following connected transactions in the ordinary and usual course of

the Group's business:

(i) Transaction with Coastal Rapid Transit Company
Limited (“Coastal Rapid”) and Starwell Holdings
Limited (“Starwell”)

On 27th July 2007, the following agreements were entered into
between the Company, Coastal Rapid (a non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) and Starwell (a substantial shareholder
of Coastal Rapid) (as the case may be), at a consideration of HK$1

each:

(i) the sale and purchase agreement between the Company,
Coastal Rapid and Starwell (together as warrantor), pursuant
to which, Coastal Rapid conditionally agreed to sell, and the
Company conditionally agreed to purchase, 4,000 ordinary
shares of US$1 in Golden Horse Resources Limited (“Golden
Horse”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Coastal Rapid),

representing 40% of the issued share capital in Golden Horse;
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(i) Transaction with Coastal Rapid Transit Company
Limited (“Coastal Rapid”) and Starwell Holdings
Limited (“Starwell”) (Cont’d)

(i)

(iii

(iv

the sale and purchase agreement between Coastal Rapid and
Starwell, pursuant to which, Coastal Rapid conditionally agreed
to sell, and Starwell conditionally agreed to purchase, 6,000
ordinary shares of US$1 in Golden Horse, representing 60% of

the issued share capital in Golden Horse;

the sale and purchase agreement between Starwell and the
Company, pursuant to which, Starwell conditionally agreed
to sell, and the Company conditionally agreed to purchase,
184,800,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 in Coastal Rapid,
representing 22% of the issued share capital in Coastal Rapid;

the sale and purchase agreement between Coastal Rapid and
the Company, pursuant to which, Coastal Rapid conditionally
agreed to sell, and the Company conditionally agreed to
purchase, 5 ordinary shares of US$1 in Dynamic Infrastructure
Limited (“Dynamic Infrastructure”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Coastal Rapid), representing the entire issued share capital in
Dynamic Infrastructure; and

the sale and purchase agreement between Starwell and the
Company, pursuant to which, Starwell conditionally agreed
to sell, and the Company conditionally agreed to purchase, 1
ordinary share of US$1 in Pearl Harbour Investment Limited
("Pearl Harbour”) (which was held by the Company as to 50%
and Starwell as to 50%), representing 50% of the issued share
capital in Pearl Harbour.

The transaction was completed in September 2007 which

resulting in the increase in the Group's shareholding in Dynamic
Infrastructure from 78% to 100%, Coastal Rapid from 78% to 100%,

Pearl Harbour from 50% to 100% and decrease in Golden Horse from
78% to 40%.

Details of the transaction were disclosed in the announcement
dated 27th July 2007 and the circular dated 17th August 2007 of the
Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) BEXRS (&)

ARETARBRERKERBEREARAT

(ii) Capital injection in Tianjin Tian Fa Heavy Electric

Equipment Manufacturing Limited (“Tian Fa (I—ié’ﬁaﬁﬁl)z}iﬁ
Equipment”)
On 2nd December 2007, Tianjin Tai Kang Industrial Co, Ltd. (‘Tai RZZEZTLF+A-H RERREEBRA

Kang") (a 82.74% owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into
a capital injection agreement with Tianjin Xin Hao Investment
Development Limited (“Xin Hao") and Tianjin Hua Ze Group Limited

("Hua Ze") pursuant to which:

(1) Xin Hao would pay the consideration in land and properties
valued at RMB88,670,400 (approximately HK$92,365,000) less
the consideration to be received in transfer of its shares in
Tian Fa Equipment in value of RMB6,230,000 (approximately
HK$6,489,600) to Hua Ze, dividing between RMB59,739,400
(approximately HK$62,228,500) as contribution to the registered
capital of Tian Fa Equipment and RMB22,701,000 (approximately
HK$23,646,900) as contribution to the capital reserves of Tian Fa
Equipment;

(2) Tai Kang would pay the consideration of RMB41,400,000
(approximately HKS$43,125,000) in cash dividing between
RMB30,000,000 (approximately HKS$31,250,000) as contribution
to the registered capital of Tian Fa Equipment and
RMB11,400,000 (approximately HK$11,875,000) as contribution

to the capital reserves of Tian Fa Equipment; and

(3) Hua Ze would pay the consideration of RMB6,230,000
(approximately HK$6,489,600) in transfer of shares in Tian
Fa Equipment in such value by Xin Hao, dividing between
RMB4,514,500 (approximately HK$4,702,600) as contribution to
the registered capital of Tian Fa Equipment and RMB1,715,500
(approximately HK$1,787,000) as contribution to the capital

reserves of Tian Fa Equipment.

As at the date of entering into the capital injection agreement,
Tianjin Machinery & Electric Industry Holding Group Limited
("Machinery & Electric Group”) was the holding company of Tianjin
Tai Xin Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Tai Xin") and Tai Xin in turn held 17.26%
interest in Tai Kang. Therefore, Machinery & Electric Group was a
connected person of the Company, and Xin Hao was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Machinery & Electric Group. Tian Fa Equipment
being an associate of Machinery & Electric Group, was also a

connected person of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(ii) Capital injection in Tianjin Tian Fa Heavy Electric
Equipment Manufacturing Limited (“Tian Fa
Equipment”) (Cont’d)

The transaction was completed in January 2008. After completion
of the transaction, each of Xin Hao, Tai Kang and Hua Ze were
interested in approximately 59.7%, 34.0% and 6.3% of the equity
interest in Tian Fa Equipment respectively.

Details of the transaction were disclosed in the announcement
dated 3rd December 2007 of the Company.

(iii)Acquisition of the entire equity interests in Tsinlien
Realty Limited (“Tsinlien Realty”)

On 3rd December 2007, Championwin Limited (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Tsinlien (a controlling shareholder of
the Company) to acquire the entire equity interests in, and all the
shareholders’ loan advanced to Tsinlien Realty (@ wholly-owned
subsidiary of Tsinlien) at a total consideration of HK$825 million. The
consideration was satisfied by way of HK$560 million in cash and the
balance of HK$265 million by the issue of 31,850,000 new shares at
an issue price of approximately HK$8.32 per consideration share. The
transaction was completed in March 2008.

Tsinlien Realty is principally engaged in property holding and
property management in Hong Kong and its principal asset is
Courtyard by Marriott Hong Kong, a hotel located in Western
District, Hong Kong.

Details of the transaction were disclosed in the announcement
dated 3rd December 2007 and the circular dated 21st December
2007 of the Company.

Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 RIERERQT

Annual Report 2007 =BT EER

BREXRS (&)
([ RETARBERKERBEREARAA

(TRE#&RME]) 2EE (8])

HERXGR_ZEZNF—ATK - RRBEK
% B TEREEZSNBEBRBEREHY
59.7% ~ 34.0% 5 6.3% AR ANHERS o

BRALERZZHE  #RARAAHR-ZT
tFE+-AZRZAER -

(i) W EHEXRARQT (EHEX ) 22

EBARE

RZZZELF+ZA=0  gBBERAE (EAF
ZEE2EMRBAR]) B (KA R ZIERRER)
AN B E W - LAARR(E 825,000,000 7T Uk =
BMEXCEH2EMBAR) 22 RERER
EMEEELCAERRER - REDURESX
560,000,000/ 7T * #458265,000,00078 7L AliB B 1%
FRRARERD 48328 7T 2 ZE1T{E %17 31,850,000
EFRO S - WBERZGERZTZEN\F=A%
ﬁjz °

AMEXTIBRFETERBAVELYEERE
EIEEERETBEBRERE (—AUNEBARZ
BIE) °

BRALERZZF#E  ERAARRAHA-ZET
TFEFTZAZAZRE  URZZZLF+ A
ZH—HZBEA -




64

Tianjin Development Holdings Limited XZ%RIERER QT
Annual Report 2007 — BB+ EER

Report of the Directors

é%ﬁiﬁ*ti

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
ENTERED INTO BY TPD

TPD has entered into a number of connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions with certain associates of Tianjin Port
Group during the year ended 31st December 2007. The Stock Exchange
has exercised its discretion under Rule 14A.06 of the Listing Rules to
deem Tianjin Port Group as a connected person of the Company and
TPD upon the listing of the shares of TPD on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange.

A. Connected Transactions

Details of the connected transactions for the year ended 31st
December 2007 are as follows:

(i) Disposal of 50% equity interest in Tianjin Jinli International
Container Freight Agency Company Limited (“Tianjin Jinli”)

On 13th June 2007, Tianjin Port Container Terminal Co., Limited
("TCT"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of TPD, and Tianjin
Port Container Freight Company Limited (“Tianjin Port Container
Freight”), a 90.54% owned subsidiary of Tianjin Port Group
as at the date of the agreement, entered into an agreement,
pursuant to which TCT agreed to sell and Tianjin Port Container
Freight agreed to purchase 50% equity interest in Tianjin Jinli at
a consideration of RMB1,658,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,778,000). The transaction was completed in June 2007.
TPD Group no longer held any equity interest in Tianjin Jinli
upon completion of the transaction.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
ENTERED INTO BY TPD (Cont’d)

A. Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

(i) Disposal of 9.46% equity interest in Tianjin Port Container
Freight

On 13th June 2007, TCT, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of TPD, and Tianjin Port Group entered into an agreement,
pursuant to which TCT agreed to sell and Tianjin Port Group
agreed to purchase 9.46% equity interest in Tianjin Port
Container Freight at a consideration of RMB18,559,500
(equivalent to approximately HK$19,900,000). The transaction
was completed in September 2007. TPD Group no longer
held any equity interest in Tianjin Port Container Freight upon

completion of the transaction.

Details of the above connected transactions were disclosed in
the joint announcement of the Company and TPD dated 13th
June 2007.

(iii) Acquisition of 40% equity interest in Tianjin Port Alliance
International Container Terminal Co., Ltd. (“Alliance”)

On 26th July 2007, TPD and Tianjin Port Group entered into an
equity interest transfer agreement, pursuant to which TPD has
conditionally agreed to acquire 40% equity interest in Alliance
from Tianjin Port Group at a consideration of RMB524,343,480
(equivalent to approximately HK$562,226,000). The transaction

was completed in January 2008.

Details of the above connected transaction were disclosed in
the joint announcement of the Company and TPD dated 26th
July 2007 and the circular of the Company dated 16th August
2007.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
ENTERED INTO BY TPD (Cont’d)

A. Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

(iv) Acquisition of 33% equity interest in Tianjin Port Labour Services
Company Limited (“Tianjin Port Labour”)

On 18th December 2007, Tianjin Harbour Second Stevedoring
Co., Ltd. ("Second Company”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of TPD, entered into an equity interest transfer
agreement with Tianjin Port Labour Exchange Service Centre,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tianjin Port Group, in relation
to acquisition of 33% interest in Tianjin Port Labour, pursuant
to which Second Company agreed to purchase and Tianjin
Port Labour Exchange Service Centre agreed to sell 33%
equity interest in Tianjin Port Labour at a cash consideration of
RMB1,260,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,351,000). The
transaction was completed in March 2008.

Details of the above connected transaction were disclosed in
the joint announcement of the Company and TPD dated 18th
December 2007.

B. Continuing Connected Transactions

The Board of Directors has approved and the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company have reviewed and confirmed
that the continuing connected transactions set out below have
been entered into:

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
ii. onnormal commercial terms; and
iii. in accordance with the relevant written agreements governing

them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

X
24

A. BEXS (&)

(iv) WREX R BB R EHR L A ([ X R 84

F51)33% fg 1
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MEBAR)EIES BT RRER O (KE
BEENZENB AR T RESZ G
NAE BRI R AL 75 330 A - &t
ZRARIEEWE  mAEBOBIIRRSE
PLRE L ERERE ST 33%ME - Ber
B A AR 1,260,000 7T (FHEF 471,351,000
JL) o WERSGERZTEZENF=AFK °
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
ENTERED INTO BY TPD (Cont’d)

B. Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

In accordance with paragraph 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the
Board of Directors engaged the auditor of the Company to perform
certain factual finding procedures on the continuing connected
transactions set out below on a sample basis in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Related Services 4400 “Engagements to
Perform Agreed-Upon Procedures Regarding Financial Information”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA"). The auditor has reported their factual findings for the
selected samples based on the agreed procedures to the Board of
Directors.

The auditor of the Company confirmed to the Board of Directors in
writing in respect of the continuing connected transactions set out
below for the year ended 31st December 2007:

have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company;

ii. have been entered into in accordance with the relevant

agreement governing the transactions; and
iii. have not exceeded the cap disclosed in previous announcements.

Details of the continuing connected transactions for the year ended

31st December 2007 are as follows:
(i) Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

On 12th April 2007, TPD entered into new framework
agreements in relation to water supply, communication
and electricity supply services with certain wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Tianjin Port Group to revise the existing annual
cap and modify the parties for the terminated continuing
connected transactions. Further details of the terminated
continuing connected transactions are set out in the section
headed “Terminated Continuing Connected Transactions”.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
ENTERED INTO BY TPD (Cont’d)

B. Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

(i) Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

1.

Water Supply Services

Date of agreement:

e H A -

Parties:

HERE

Term:

B :

Transactions involved:

BRR 5

Annual cap for the year ended
31st December 2007:

HE_ZZLE+_HA=1—H
IEFERNFE LR -

Actual amount for the year ended
31st December 2007:

HE-ZZLF+-A=+—H
IFFENERSHE

REBRRIT U CHAER S RIFE
FEXS (&)

B. FEBRERS (&)
() AR RIFEHELSS ()
1. KRS

12th April 2007 (“Water Services Framework Agreement”)
—ZEHFMA+ B (KBIELERE])

() TPD;

(i) Tianjin Port Facilities Management Company (formerly known as Tianjin
Port Construction and Engineering Company) (‘Tianjin Port Facilities”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tianjin Port Group

() REBER

(i) RBBRMEERRBAF (AT %ﬁa%ir%ﬂ“iili‘“ AA])
(IREEZE])  REEEENZEMRBER

12th April 2007 to 31st December 2009 (extension on similar terms subject
to mutual agreements)

“EEHFNOA+_AEZETNF T A=+ H (EHEERHEAR
BIOMEER)

Provision of water supply services by Tianjin Port Facilities to TPD Group

RAEBR AR EEEREEBIRHIKRE
RMB6,900,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$7,127,000)

AR 6,900,000 7T (FHZE R 497,127,000 7T)

RMB4,713,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$4,868,000)

AR 4,713,000 7T (FBEF4Y 4,868,000 78 7T)
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B. Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

(i) Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X323 RIZERER QT
Annual Report 2007 —ZEZEHFFf

REBBRRIIUCBHBERS RIFE
BRERXS ()

. FEREXS (&)

() FHARIFEBELS ()

2. Communication Services 2. BERS
Date of agreement: 12th April 2007 (“Communications Services Framework Agreement”)
B “ZETHFNA+ A (HREREERRRED)
Parties: (i) TPD;
HESYE (i) Tianjin Communications Navigation Company Limited (“Tianjin

Communications”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tianjin Port Group

() REBERE:

RAEBBREMAR ([ REEBEA]) - REEEENZENEAR

Term: 12th April 2007 to 31st December 2009 (extension on similar terms subject
to mutual agreements)
B TEZHFMAT CHECTEAF T A=+ —H (KEEREAE
BT R)
Transactions involved: Provision of various communications services by Tianjin Communications
to TPD Group
HRR5 REBBAMREBEREERFESEBERS
Annual cap for the year ended RMB2,090,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,159,000)
31st December 2007:
BHE_ZRLF+_A=1—H AEHE 2,090,000 7T (FHE 749 2,159,000 8 7T)
IFFEMERE LR :
Actual amount for the year ended RMB1,120,000 (equivalent to approximately HKS$1,156,000)

31st December 2007:

HE-_ZTtF+-_A=+—H AR 1,120,000 7T (FHZEF 491,156,000 7T)

IEFENEREE
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B. Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)
(i) Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

3.

Electricity Supply Services

Date of agreement:

ek HEA -

Parties:

HESRE

Term:

B :

Transactions involved:

FRR 5

Annual cap for the year ended
31st December 2007:

HE_ZZLE+_HA=1—H
IEFERNFE LR -

Actual amount for the year ended
31st December 2007:

HE-ZZLF+-A=+—H
IFFENER S

iﬁ%%EEQZEEQE&%E
BERXS (&)
B. HERMERS (&)

() FBEIEAESS (E)

3.

e

HEIRTS

12th April 2007 (" Electricity Services Framework Agreement”)
ZZETHFNA+T A (HERBERRRED

(i) TPD;

(i) Tianjin Port Electricity Company Limited (formerly known as Tianjin Port
Electricity Company) (‘Tianjin Port Electricity”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Tianjin Port Group

() REBERE

(i) REBENERAF (AIBREEES
BEENEZEMNBRF

REN(TREEEN]) R

12th April 2007 to 31st December 2009 (extension on similar terms subject
to mutual agreements)

—EEHFNOA+_AEZETNF T A=+ H (EHEEBHEAR
BIOMERSGER)

Provision of electricity supply services by Tianjin Port Electricity to TPD Group

REBENARZEEREBRHHERS

RMB37,850,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$39,093,000)

AR 37,850,000 7T (FHEH 4 39,093,0008 7T)

RMB26,495,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$27,365,000)

AR 26,495,000 7T (#1449 27,365,000 4 7T)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
ENTERED INTO BY TPD (Cont’d)

B. Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)
(i) New Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
On 12th April 2007, TPD entered into framework agreements
in relation to EDI, container reconfiguration storage and labour
services with certain subsidiaries or associate of Tianjin Port

Group.

1. EDI Services

BREBIMZBERZRIFE
R (&)

(i) FrETRIIERRRIFERTER S

“ZETHFMA+=A - %Eiﬁﬁﬁéﬁiiﬁ
BEEETHE AR SEE

BT RSB AER Tz?%u:cw

Date of agreement:

lEISEE

Parties:

HESRE

Term:

B

Transactions involved:

BRRS

Annual cap for the year ended
31st December 2007:

HE-2RLE+-A=t—8
IFENFELR :

Actual amount for the year ended
31st December 2007:

HE-_ZTLE+-H=+—H
IFFENER S

12th April 2007
—FELEMA+=R

(i) TPD;

(i) Tianjin Port Information Centre (“Tianjin Port Information”), a department
under Tianjin Port Group

() REBER:

(i) REBERHL(REBER]  REBEEEH—EEM

12th April 2007 to 31st December 2009 (extension on similar terms subject
to mutual agreements)

CEELFNOA+ZRAEZERNF T A=+ —H (EHEEHREIR
BLEGTER)

Provision of services relating to electronic data information, software utility,
computer maintenance and repair, electronic transmission and similar
services by Tianjin Port Information to TPD Group

REBELEARZBEREBRHAFUESTEREES IR -
BIRE NS - B ER AR -

RMB2,810,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,902,000)

AR 2,810,000 7T (FHZE R 492,902,000 % 7T )

RMB1,305,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,348,000)

AR 1,305,000 7T (FBEEFY 4 1,348,000 7 7T)
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B. Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)
(i) New Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)
2. Container Reconfiguration Storage Services

Date of agreement: 12th April 2007

iﬁ%%EEQZEEQE&%E
BERXS (&)
B. HERMERS (&)

() FATHI RS I B 5 ()

2. SEMERMHTRE

EAH —EEHFINA+TA
Parties: (i) TPD;
HESE (i) Tianjin Port Container Freight, a 90.54% owned subsidiary of Tianjin Port

Group as at the date of the agreement;

(iii) Tianjin Port Limited Storage and Transportation Branch Company,

a subsidiary of Tianjin Port Group;

(iv) Huahan (Tianjin) Container Company Limited, an associate of

Tianjin Port Group

() REBRRE

(i) 3E>‘$5%;‘%§% &

ZME R

BB Wi A EBAREBEEEES 900.54% E

(iii) éﬁ%ﬂxfﬁﬁﬁﬁ AFED A REBEENMHBAR
(v) 8 (R2)EMBRATR - REBEENEE AR

((in), (i) and (|v) together the “Service Companies”™)

(qiy ~ i) B (iv) Z 8 A TREAR])
Term: 12th April 2007 to 31st December 2009 (extension on similar terms subject
to mutual agreements)
B CEEHFOA+ZREZTNF T A=+ —H (EHEEHRER
BEGTER)

Transactions involved:

HRR 5

Annual cap for the year ended
31st December 2007:

HE-ZZLF+-A=+—H
IFFENFE LR

Actual amount for the year ended
31st December 2007:

BHE_TZLF+_A=1—H
LHFENERESER

Provision of stacking yards and warehouses located at Tianjin Port Area for
temporary storage of containers by the Services Companies to TPD Group

BHATAR SRR EEREGRFBEORE LA -+ AR
BFEEA Y -

RMB18,590,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$19,200,000)

AR 18,590,000 7T (FHE 7449 19,200,000 7 7T)

RMBB8,152,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$8,420,000)

AR 8,152,000 7T (FHZE 7 498,420,000 % 7T )
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B. Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)
(i) New Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

3.

Labour Services

Date of agreement:

e A H -

Parties:

AR

Term:

BRI -

Transactions involved:

B 5

Annual cap for the year ended
31st December 2007:
E-FELF+-A=+—H
IFFEMERE LR :

Actual amount for the year ended

Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 RIERERQT
Annual Report 2007 = EBEA4F4F 5§

BAE

B. HEBE

(i) Fra]H) IR RIFAERTE.

X% (&)

X5 (4E)

3. BERS

12th April 2007
—EELFMA+H

(i) TPD;

(i) Tianjin Port Labour, a subsidiary of Tianjin Port Group as at the date

of agreement (Note)
() REBER:
(i REMBEST R

: A HAREBRENME AR ()

12th April 2007 to 31st December 2009 (extension on similar terms subject

to mutual agreements)

TEREAFNAT - HEZERAF T A=t R (EHEERHE AR

BLEGTER)

Provision of labour of various positions to perform various services by Tianjin

Port Labour to TPD Group

RAERmBHHARTLEREBIRHES B SHIARE SRS

RMB4,900,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,061,000)

AR 4,900,000 7T (FBEE R4 5,061,000 7 7T)

RMB4,546,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$4,695,000)

RESMESHENREEERE

31st December 2007:

HE_ZZLF+-A=+—H AR 4,546,000 7T (HH5 1249 4,695,000 B 7T)
IFFENERER

Note: Tianjin Port Labour becomes a 33% owned associate of PI3E

Tianjin Port Group and a 33% owned associate of TPD upon

completion of the acquisition of 33% equity interest in

which by TPD Group, further details are set out in the section

headed “Connected Transactions”.

Details of the above continuing connected transactions
were disclosed in the joint announcement of the Company

and TPD dated 12th April 2007 and the circular of the HEE NS

Company dated 2nd May 2007.

FliHBERER SRS
KEBERBHA-_ZTTLFNMA+-H
EARGBEA—ZTETLFH

REBBRRIIUCBERS RIFE
R (&)

EEEB A
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
ENTERED INTO BY TPD (Cont’d)

C. Terminated Continuing Connected Transactions

The following transactions constitute continuing connected

transactions of TPD under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules.

Conditional waivers have been granted by the Stock Exchange from

strict compliance by TPD with the disclosure requirement for the

three years ending 31st December 2008. The transactions had been

terminated and superseded by the relevant continuing connected

transactions mentioned in the section headed “Non-exempt

Continuing Connected Transactions” during the year ended 31st
December 2007.

1.

Water Supply Services

On 8th May 2006, each of TCT and Second Company entered
into an agreement with Tianjin Port Facilities, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Tianjin Port Group, pursuant to which Tianjin Port
Facilities agreed to supply water to TCT and Second Company
and their subsidiaries nominated by them from time to time.
The agreements were superseded by the Water Services
Framework Agreement.

Communications Services

On 8th May 2006, each of TCT and Second Company entered
into an agreement with Tianjin Communications, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Tianjin Port Group, pursuant to which
Tianjin Communications agreed to provide communication
services to TCT and Second Company and their subsidiaries
nominated by them from time to time. The agreements were
superseded by the Communications Services Framework
Agreement.

Electricity Supply Services

On 8th May 2006, each of TCT and Second Company entered
into an agreement with Tianjin Port Electricity, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Tianjin Port Group, pursuant to which Tianjin
Port Electricity agreed to supply electricity to TCT and Second
Company and their subsidiaries nominated by them from time
to time. The agreements were superseded by the Electricity

Services Framework Agreement.
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D. Exempt Continuing Connected Transaction

During the year ended 31st December 2007, TPD Group had
entered into the following continuing connected transaction which
is exempt from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules, the
disclosure of which is on a voluntary basis in order to enhance the
transparency of TPD Group's transactions with Tianjin Port Group:

Fee Collection Services

On 8th May 2006, each of TCT and Second Company entered into
an agreement with Tianjin Port Group for a term from 8th May
2006 to 31st December 2008, pursuant to which TCT and Second
Company agreed to collect various fees, including but not limited
to port construction fees and port management fees, from their
customers and forward the fees to Tianjin Port Group. No service
fee will be paid by Tianjin Port Group to TCT and Second Company.
For the year ended 31st December 2007, the fee collected on behalf
of Tianjin Port Group amounted to RMB286,154,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$295,550,000).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE OF
THE LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry with the Directors, all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code throughout the year 2007.

The Company has also established written guidelines regarding
securities transaction on no less exacting terms of the Model Code for
senior management and specific individual who may have access to

price sensitive information in relation to the securities of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions except for code
provisions A.2.1, A4.2 and E.1.2 as set out in the Code of Corporate
Governance Practices contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report on pages 30 to 42 for
details.

Details of the audit committee and remuneration committee are set out

in the Corporate Governance Report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee currently comprising three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon, Mr. Lau Wai
Kit and Dr. Cheng Hon Kwan, was established in 1998.

By reference to “A Guide for The Formation of An Audit Committee”
published by the HKICPA, written terms of reference which describe the
authority and duties of the audit committee were prepared and adopted

by the Board of the Company.

The annual results have been reviewed by the audit committee of the
Company.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Details of significant events which have been taken place subsequent to

the balance sheet date are set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

From information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s total issued
share capital are held by the public at all times during the year.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By order of the Board

Yu Rumin

Acting Chairman

Hong Kong, 17th April 2008
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Report of the Independent Auditor

BYZBERES

PRICENVATERHOUSE(COPERS

E,E\Jﬁﬁikﬁg'ﬁ Eﬁjg,}’%ﬁﬁ- PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince's Building

Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of Tianjin Development Holdings Limited BREREEZERERATRR
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) (REBFMERINABRAR])

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tianjin AAZERED (LA T8 [ 810 BRIV ISR E 79= 167

Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 79 to BREZEEREBRAR(ERR] MEREM BT
167, which comprise the balance sheets of the Company and the Group = WEEVBREReERN _EELF+_A=+—
as at 31st December 2007, and the consolidated income statement, the B rkEBEEAEREEEZA LFENGE
consolidated cash flow statement and the consolidated statement of Wk AR RERNEEEREHR - URE

changes in equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant ZETTHER I E M E AL AR o
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE EERPBBRARENSE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and BN BEEAAEREBEESSHMASHEANESY
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements B EER REBR(ARIENDRE R EE M A FEi 7]
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by WEZEVBHRE - SETERIERF - BEELEELR

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong RLREEMA TR B RRMEER RIS - A
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, B BRRTEERRIRGEERMER N E KHER

implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the BRut - BENMEAESOSHEER  JRBEATED
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements AEMEHLE -

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY ZEEET

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated BPNEERRERMOBZEZELREVIEHREIE
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely HER  WIRBEFEBCR THED )EE 141 K E R FEEERR
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong BWRE B ZIMREREEMB R - HIT R
Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume RREHRBEEMEMALTE ESEREERET -
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.
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Report of the Independent Auditor

BYZHERES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st
December 2007 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 17th April 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

mEEER

For the year ended 31st December 2007

HE-TTtFt-A=t+-BILFE

Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X3 RIZERER DT
Annual Report 2007 —EEA4F4F R

2007 2006
—ETLF ZETRF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B st FET FABIT
Revenue WA 5 3,387,663 2,688,457
Cost of sales SHE A (2,417,347 (1,837,649)
Gross profit ES 970,316 850,308
Other income Ha g A 6 84,753 181,166
Other gains, net H bl et 528 7 116,769 64,903
Gain on toll roads restructuring E%ﬁ”&z%;ﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁzﬁé 1(3i) 165,913 =
Gain on deemed disposal of partial SBIELEHE AR
interest in subsidiaries o i 2 W sk 1(ii) - 109,235
General and administrative expenses —MRITERE (500,616) (454,337)
Other operating expenses HihegES H (47,756) (4,837)
Operating profit FESvingl 8 789,379 746,938
Finance costs B E 10 (101,130) (149,293)
Net loss on convertible bonds AR ES FEE - (63,847)
Share of profits/(losses) of PR F(EE)
Associates YNl 220,651 181,215
Jointly controlled entities H R (9,831) (11,779)
Profit before tax A A 899,069 703,234
Tax expense BmEZ 11 (71,830) (66,053)
Profit for the year FEZmA 827,239 637,181
Attributable to: FEMREF -
Equity holders of the Company IREREB A 690,301 552,751
Minority interests DB R 136,938 84,430
827,239 637,181
HK cents HK cents
AL il
Earnings per share BRREF 13
Basic — &R 67.42 57.92
Diluted —#58 66.86 57.62
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Dividends (s 14 113,918 92,241

The notes on pages 86 to 167 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements

F86 % 167 AR EiRAMBMEK L BKED
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

SLeEERER

As at 31st December 2007
RZZET+F+-A=+—H
2007 2006
—EELF TEEIRE
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B st FET FABIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 15 4,466,457 5,813,569
Investment property B 16 — 383,085
Goodwill [EES 17 510,847 586,050
Land use rights s R4 18 797,549 761,516
Interest in associates N 20 1,377,480 1,150,667
Interest in jointly controlled entities REEEFIE 21 764,181 91,903
Deferred tax assets IR IEE B 32 8,899 4,960
Available-for-sale financial assets At ERBEE 22 107,117 108,161
8,032,530 8,899,911
Current assets HENEE
Inventories FE 23 7,098 12,706
Amounts due from associates JFEUSES & A RIFIR 24 23,325 22218
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities RN Rl F B gE T 24 3,205 284
Amounts due from related companies e BAE A B R IE 25 21,748 24,332
Amounts due from a minority shareholder e DB R FRIE 25 — 12,382
Amounts due from investee companies A NG E ] 25 127,738 100,871
Trade receivables W ER 26 714,178 478,692
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HibEINEIE « IRE& RIERI 26 432,739 198,566
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAFEEERER
SR TS E 27 306,417 177,286
Restricted bank balance ZIR IR TAS 28 — 28,640
Time deposits with maturity over three months =EAA LR EHAFR 28 580,341 424,898
Cash and cash equivalents BERIBEEED 28 2,655,841 2,850,740
4,872,630 4,331,615
Total assets BEE 12,905,160 13,231,526

The notes on pages 86 to 167 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements

FE 86 = 167 BZ Mt B EHREMERER 2B D
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

M A F ==
IZI‘Ii\ (= | ﬁ Eﬁ1§
As at 31st December 2007
RZTTEF+=-_A=+—H

Annual Report 2007 = EZ - FF4f

2007 2006
—EZtF ZETRF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
s FE T FABIT
EQUITY Em
Equity holders RERFE A
Share capital %2 29 103,562 98,244
Reserves-others {4 — oA 30 8,062,702 6,762,453
Reserves-proposed final dividend s — R B 30 57,995 45,192
8,224,259 6,905,889
Minority interests DERRER 1,928,264 2,464,540
Total equity AR 10,152,523 9,370,429
LIABILITIES =Rt
Non-current liabilities FkRBEME
Borrowings BE 31 1,245,580 1,714,485
Deferred tax liabilities REFIB B E 32 39,804 93,796
1,285,384 1,808,281
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables FERER 33 186,592 221,123
Other payables and accruals H A RN FRIE R T & A 798,829 632,235
Amounts due to related companies FETRAE A R IR 25 141,852 336,244
Amounts due to minority shareholders FEAS DB FRIE 25 16,894 197,480
Borrowings =, 31 223,836 563,814
Current tax liabilities BIHATHIA B & 99,250 101,920
1,467,253 2,052,816
Total liabilities FN=Ri 2,752,637 3,861,097
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 12,905,160 13,231,526
Net current assets REEEREE 3,405,377 2,278,799
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABERS 11,437,907 11,178,710
Wu Xuemin RE2R Nie Jiansheng {4

Director B

The notes on pages 86 to 167 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements

Director B

F86 % 167 AR EiR A MBHRE L BKED
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Balance Sheet

BEEREX

As at 31st December 2007
RZTTEF+=_A=+—H

2007 2006
—EELF ZETRF
Note HK$'000 HKS'000
BaE FHET T3t
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NE&E 15 3,733 3,726
Interest in subsidiaries RHTEB A A= 19 7,517,322 6,293,962
Interest in an associate R—REGE AR 20 194,865 =
7,715,920 6,297,688
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments EEWIE « e RIBNR 26 26,929 17,081
Amount due from an associate FEUR— R & A EI5RIE 24 — 4,000
Time deposits with maturity over three months =@ ERHMERTFR 28 14,002 20,672
Cash and cash equivalents HENIHSEEY 28 81,637 48,256
122,568 90,009
Total assets wEE 7,838,488 6,387,697
EQUITY s
Equity holders RERE A
Share capital R 29 103,562 98,244
Reserves — others i — HAth 30 6,669,871 5,057,619
Reserves — proposed final dividend s — R AR R 30 57,995 45,192
Total equity RS 6,831,428 5,201,055
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Borrowings BE 31 855,580 908,652
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERB B A TR 75,655 118,772
931,235 1,027,424
Current liabilities REBEE
Borrowings BTe 31 58,389 142,389
Other payables and accruals H A RN FRIE R T & A 17,436 16,829
75,825 159,218
Total liabilities Ha s 1,007,060 1,186,642
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 7,838,488 6,387,697
Net current assets/(liabilities) REEE(BE8)FHE 46,743 (69,209)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABERS 7,762,663 6,228,479
Wu Xuemin RER Nie Jiansheng |24

Director &%

The notes on pages 86 to 167 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements

Director 2%

£ 86 % 167 A RILFEHR A MBS REK L BKEDD
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

AERERER

For the year ended 31st December 2007
HE-_ZTHHF+_A=+—HLLFE

2007 2006
—EZLHF —ETREF
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
B st FET FABIT
Cash flows from operating activities REEBZRERE
Cash generated from operations IR IR E A VIR 36(a) 350,814 730,082
Interest paid BEAFE (96,612) (110,492)
PRC income tax paid B BIFTSEL (90,592) (51,328)
Net cash from operating activities RSB TS IR &R 163,610 568,262
Cash flows from investing activities REEBZRERE
Interest received BUHF S 53,352 148,727
Purchase of property, plant and BAYE - R K& E
equipment (267,891) (444,868)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE « BEN&E
plant and equipment Fr{S /I8 3,266 1,208
Proceeds from disposal of investment property HEREMEMRSIE 407,216 -
Proceeds from disposal of associates S A RIFTS 5KIE 1,978 =
Proceeds from disposal of jointly controlled & LR F B B2 TS UR
entities 15,213 -
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HERIHEENEEE
financial assets Fr{S /I8 20,229 3817
Purchase of land use rights B A -t {55 PR 4 - (518417)
Acquisition of a subsidiary i — R B A A 36(b) - (113,312)
Disposal of subsidiaries i E T E AR 36(c) 542 35,534
Toll roads restructuring SAWEERK 36(d) (13,526) =
Investment in an associate TER—FKEE QA (890) (6,603)
Investment in jointly controlled entities EN LRI HIE S (704,467) (19,231)
Increase in time deposits with maturity over A= 18 A LA EE|Hi g
three months TFHFER (155,443) (78,017)
Increase in available-for-sale financial assets ARSI EE (345) -
Increase in amounts due from associates b 1) AN F S (7,027) 3,171)
Increase in amounts due from a jointly 70 e U — SR [BlE I B B
controlled entity FRIE (3,093) =
Increase in amounts due from investee HEINERRIEE QA EIFRIA
companies (18,749) (18,720)
Dividends received from associates BUEEE AR 2B 226,801 69415
Dividends received from a jointly controlled B —RERIEGIE
entity ZIRE - 261
Net cash used in investing activities B EBFTRIRE R (442,834) (943,377)
The notes on pages 86 to 167 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F 862 167 B 2 Mzt AL S48 MBHRE 2 B EE D

statements
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERTRER

For the year ended 31st December 2007
BE_TTHE+_A=+—HIFE

2007 2006
—EELF —ETREF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 THET BT
Cash flows from financing activities BRETH HERE
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (745,525) (1,538,364)
Drawdown of bank borrowings RRRITEER 829,501 1,484,672
Repayment of loans from a minority shareholder BE—NUILEERRER (109,581) (14,156)
Drawdown of loans from a minority shareholder AP EERER - 40,451
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank balance ZRFVRITEEERR D () 28,640 (28,640)
Dividends paid to equity holders BIRRERE A ZIRE (103,562) (83,387)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders B DERR 2 IR (60,117) (22,450)
Net proceeds from spin off of a subsidiary AIF—KHK B A B TS RIEF R - 1,157,252
Issue of new shares BITHTIR 5,890 1,550
Contribution from minority shareholders VEREREEE 912 =
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities BEES (FrA), e
& FHR (153,842) 996,928
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents EE%&EE% CBYEEE
A1 (433,066) 621,813
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year i%}]Zﬁ%&iﬁ@%E% 2,850,740 2,158,434
Exchange gains FE 5 U8 238,167 70,493
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRZEASRESEEY 2,655,841 2,850,740
The notes on pages 86 to 167 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F86 % 167 B 2T AN S454 B EHRE 2 B E D

statements
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERERBER

For the year ended 31st December 2007
HE_TTLHE+-_A=1+—HILEE

Equity holders
REFEA
Share Minority
capital Reserves  Sub-total interests Total

2

B @E 0 BREE 28
Note HKS'000  HKS$'000 HKS'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000
W  TAT AT TAR TR AR

At 1st January 2006 RZZE F—F—H 91,066 5750244 5841310 1277327 7,118,637
Profit for the year FEEF - 552751 552751 84430 637,181
Issue of new shares: BITHRD

~ Conversion of convertible bonds —ERnRRES 29,30,31 5128 264676 269,804 - 269,804

~ Exercise of share options — (TR 2930 50 1,500 1,550 - 1,550
Dividends ) = (83,387) (83,387) (22,450) (105,837)
Share based payments PARR (D BERE 2 {3357 = 2377 2377 1409 3,786
Contribution from minority shareholders DYRRRHE - - - 1048017 1,048017
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y — KRB AR 2000 111,000 113000 23407 136407
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHEAR - (1978) (1,978) (51) (2,029)
Currency translation differences EmE - 210462 210,462 52451 262913
At 31st December 2006 RZBEAE+-B=1—H 98,244 6,807,645 6,905,889 2,464,540 9,370,429
Profit for the year FER A - 690301 690301 136938 827,239
Issue of new shares: BITHRD

- Conversion of convertible bonds —ERnBRES 293031 5128 209,581 214,709 - 214,709

— Exercise of share options — 1T 29,30 190 5,700 5,890 - 5,890
Dividends RS - (103,562) (103,562) (60,117) (163,679)
Share based payments PARR (D BERE 2 {57 - 1,836 1,836 1,088 2,924
Contribution from minority shareholders PERRLE - - - 912 912
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMBAR 36(c) - - - (8340) (8,340)
Toll roads restructuring SAWBER 36(d) - - - (766,627) (766,627)
Currency translation differences Sl - 509,196 509,196 159,870 669,066
At 31st December 2007 RZBE+F+-F=1—H 103,562 8,120,697 8,224,259 1,928,264 10,152,523
The notes on pages 86 to 167 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F86 % 167 B 2 A S 434 Rk 2 B ER D

statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BrEE SRR M AL

1.

General information

Tianjin Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its

subsidiaries (together the “Group”) is principally engaged in the

provision of container handling and non-containerised goods

stevedoring services, operation of toll roads and supply of utilities.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is Suites 7-13, 36/F, China
Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road

Central, Hong Kong.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the past two years, the major changes in the group structure

are as follows:

(iii)

On 27th July 2007, the Group entered into 5 sale and
purchase agreements which resulted in the increase in the
Group's shareholding in Dynamic Infrastructure Limited from
78% to 100%, Coastal Rapid Transit Company Limited from
78% to 100%, Pearl Harbour Investment Limited from 50% to
100%, and decrease in Golden Horse Resources Limited from
78% to 40% (the “Transaction”). The Group entered into the
Transaction to unwind the previous group reorganisation
completed in 2003 which was effected in preparation for the
application for the separate listing of the toll roads business
of the Group and such application was lapsed in September
2004. The gain arising from the transaction is approximately
HK$165,913,000 (note 36(d)).

The port services business was spun off as a separate listed
company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 24th
May 2006. The Group's interest was diluted from 100% to
62.8% thereafter. A gain of HK$109,235,000 arose as a result of
the spin off.

On 18th April 2006, the Group acquired approximately 90.9%
of equity interest of Tianjin TEDA Tsinlien Heat & Power Co.,
Ltd. ("Heat & Power Company”), a company engaged in steam
and thermal power supply in Tianjin Economic-Technological
Development Area (“TEDA"), for a cash consideration of
HK$306.6 million and an issue of 20 million of the Company’s
shares. Goodwill of approximately HK$184,594,000 arose as a

result of the acquisition (note 36(b)).

1. —REH

REERERBERAR (AR REWB IR (5
[ ARE ) T RN RRHERMERIEMIFRREE
WREIRTS - KLU e AR o
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ERMNEBD T BP 168-20058 1= LB BA
[E361E7-13F ©

ARREEERA XA ERAR (B ) HiR
ER

BEMF - KRB T2ZEHNT

) RZZEZHFLA-++H0  AEETZHND
BB - B AREER Dynamic Infrastructure
Limited ~ B /8 X @ % & A R 2 & &Pearl
Harbour Investment Limited %4 5 Bl 8 78%
78% K2 50% 35 N 2= 100% ~ 100% K 100% * ifi 7
Golden Horse Resources Limited A %4 Al 1 78%
ez 40% ([R5 1) - REBRILZR 5 AE
RR_ZR=FTh EEEH  FHEEHET
REBRSHERF SN EEREBE L LT
B - MAMBRBEER_TTWMFENARKRY -
HB2 5 FEE 4 2 Wz 4975 165,913,000 75 7t (F
E36(d)) °

(i) BOEEER-_ZTAFRAA-TNBESFAE
BERXFTEIR B BT o Bt - AEE 2 #ERH
100% B558 = 62.8% ° 2 Hr %15 W 5 109,235,000
BT °

(i RZZTZRFMNA+TNAH @ XEEUR&NRE
306,600,000 7T % 31T 20,000,000 IR AR 2 7] Z ik
7 - W RRAE Rkt R ([ X2
[@ ]) fe FHLpE 2T MARE R A RV R R TR 2 B
RBEHR AR ([RERAE )X 90.9% #Exm o U
BB EE AP 4 184,594,000 78 7T (P 3£ 36(D)) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BrEE SRR M EE

2. MUEERETHER

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("“HKFRS") and are
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and investment
properties, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in note 4.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations to

existing standards are relevant to the Group and are mandatory for

the financial year ended 31st December 2007:

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements:
Capital Disclosures

HKFRS 7

HK(IFRIO)-Int 8

Financial Instruments: Disclosures
Scope of HKFRS 2
HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and

Impairment

The adoption of these new standards, amendments and
interpretations has no significant impact on the Group's financial
statements and financial position nor any substantial changes in the
Group's accounting policies, except for new disclosures relating to
financial instruments made in the financial statements as explained

below.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 introduces new disclosures
relating to financial instruments and does not have any impact on

the classification and valuation of the Group's financial instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BrEE SRR M AL

2. MAUEER ST HE ()

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

HK(IFRICO)-Int 8 requires consideration of transactions involving the
issuance of equity instruments, where the identifiable consideration
received is less than the fair value of the equity instruments issued in
order to establish whether or not they fall within the scope of HKFRS
2. This standard does not have any impact on the Group's financial
statements.

HK(IFRIO)-Int 10 prohibits the impairment losses recognised in an
interim period on goodwill and investments in equity instruments
and in financial assets carried at cost to be reversed at a subsequent
balance sheet date. This standard does not have any impact on the

Group's financial statements.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the
Group's accounting periods beginning on or after 1st March 2007 or
later periods, but the Group has not early adopted them:

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Share-based Payment Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HK(FRIC) = Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share

Transactions

HK(IFRIC) - Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(FRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

Requirements and their Interaction

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of
these new standards, amendments and interpretations but is not yet
in a position to state whether they would have a significant impact
on its results of operations and financial position.

B (BRYBREREZRE) —2BEHRTL
BRETHESETAZRS @ WE T PREZ AT #E
BERAETERTAZAFER  BAREERSS
BREBVBREERNE 2 K2 BERN o ZAERHA
KEZPBWRLBEAZE -

8 (ERMBHRERERZET) —2BER 107 A LE
AR R R  IRAMES R 2 s T A AN TS
BEZKRAEZRERE HERZEHTARE © Z%E
QSRR E 2 MERR L BAEMTE -

T RMEZER - HIRAERIMER] K2R IR
RAEE —TT+F= f—HARFERI S 2
AR IARIAERL AR E I IR PR -

EEE RIS 1 5% BTSRRI 23R
(R&AERT)

BB RTERSE 2357 fEERA
(BIE7T)

EEEEHERISE 27 57 fra R BB R
(R&AERT)

TRMBMEERE 2R AR BERAON
(&3] 557 28 HR RO 16 1 B R

BEPBHMSEAEI®  EBEH
(R&AERT)

ERUBREERE R HENM

575 (BRI RERE BEMBRSEAE 25
ZEE)-ZRBENR — & B REFRD

25

a8 (BRI GHRERE  RESSTERHE
ZEG)-RBE R

B (BRI BHRERE SPEHE
ZEg) REFE 135

575 (BRBsRERE BEgrERE 195 —

ZEE)-2BE145% SUERNEERHE -
REESEZKEME
HEMHIRER

AEEC AT ALENER - BRI RBREOFE
BRI RS R HH 2B R SIEREA

=, 8
=



Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X3 RZERERLDT
Annual Report 2007 = EZ - F4F4f

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT RS R aR MY aE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)
(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to
31st December.

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost
of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any minority interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in
the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BrEE SRR M AL

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(a) Consolidation (Cont’d)

(i

(ii)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Investments in subsidiaries are carried on the balance sheet
of the Company at cost together with advances by the
Company which are neither planned nor likely to be settled
in the foreseeable future, less provision for impairment.
Provision for impairment in a subsidiary is made when the
recoverable amount of the subsidiary is lower than the
Company's respective cost of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on the basis of

dividend income.

Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with
minority interests as transactions with parties external to
the Group. Disposals to minority interests result in gains
and losses for the Group that are recorded in the income
statement. Purchases from minority interests result in
goodwill, being the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of

net assets of the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT RS R aR MY aE

RREERETEE (8)

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(a) Consolidation (Cont’d) (a) #EHRE (#8)

(i) BFEL Al

(i) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting and are initially
recognised at cost. The Group's investment in associates
includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any

accumulated impairment loss.

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in the income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group's share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted for by the

Company on the basis of dividend income.
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(a) Consolidation (Cont’d)

(iv) Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a contractual arrangement
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an
economic activity which is subject to joint control and none
of the participating parties has unilateral control over the
economic activity.

The Group's share of its jointly controlled entities’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its
interest in the jointly controlled entity, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the jointly controlled entities.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of jointly controlled entities have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in jointly
controlled entities are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend

income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BrEE SRR M EE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(b) Segment reporting

(c)

A business segment is a group of assets and operations

engaged in providing products or services that are subject to

risks and returns that are different from those of other business

segments. A geographical segment is engaged in providing

products or services within a particular economic environment

that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those

of segments operating in other economic environments.

Foreign currency translation

()

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company's presentation currency. The functional currency
of the Company and the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC is
Renminbi.

The Directors consider that presentation of financial
statements in Hong Kong dollars will facilitate analysis of

the financial information of the Group.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date are recognised in the income

statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
held at fair value through profit or loss is reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary available-for-sale financial assets is included in

equity.
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(c) Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

(i) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group's entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the date
of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a

separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are taken to equity. When a
foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity are recognised in

the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT RS R MY aE

2. MUEER ST HE (H)

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (d) Y% - HERRE

Buildings comprise mainly office premises. All plant and
equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. Repairs and maintenance costs are charged in
the income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of building, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their

residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 25-40 years
Port facilities/Leased

berth improvements 35-41 years
Plant and machinery 7-35 years
Leasehold improvement,

furniture and equipment 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-12 years
Others 5 years

No depreciation is provided for construction in progress.

Depreciation of toll roads is calculated to write off their
carrying values on units-of-usage basis whereby the amount
of depreciation is provided based on the ratio of actual traffic
volume compared to the total projected traffic volume over the
remaining toll collection periods. The projected traffic volume
of toll road is reviewed regularly with reference to both internal
and external sources of information and adjusted if appropriate.
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

(e)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater

than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in the

income statement.

Investment properties

Land held for undetermined future use and property that is
held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or
both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the Group,
is classified as investment property. Investment property
comprises land held under operating leases and the buildings
thereon.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment
property is carried at fair value. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in
the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If this
information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are reviewed

by external valuers.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

()

(9)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary, associate and jointly controlled
entity at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions
of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on
acquisitions of associates and jointly controlled entities is
included in investments in associates and jointly controlled
entities and is tested annually for impairment as part of the
overall balance. Separately recognised goodwill is tested
annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, which are at least tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value of an
asset less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
balance sheet date.
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(h) Land userights

(i)

The upfront prepayments made for land use rights are
expensed in the income statement on a straight line basis over
the period of the operating lease or when there is impairment, it
is recognised immediately.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following three
categories:

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;

(ii) Loans and receivables; and

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines the

classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term. Derivatives are classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges. If an asset is
either held for trading or is expected to be realised within
twelve months of the balance sheet date, it is classified as

current asset.

Assets in this category are initially recognised at fair
value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income
statement, and are subsequently remeasured at their fair
values. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
values are included in the income statement in the period
in which they arise, except where the derivatives qualify for
cash flow hedge accounting, in which case recognition of
any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item
being hedged.
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2. MUEERSTHE (&)

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i) HHEEE (&)

(i) Financial assets (Cont’d)

(i) BARERFE

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than twelve months after the balance
sheet date which are classified as non-current assets. Loans
and receivables are classified as trade and other receivables
in the balance sheet.

Loans and receivable are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in any
other categories. They are included in non-current assets
unless management intends to dispose of them within
twelve months from the balance sheet date. Assets in this
category are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs and are subsequently carried at fair value. Gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value are recognised
in equity.

When available-for-sale financial assets are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in
equity are included in the income statement as gains and
loss from available-for-sale financial assets.

Dividends on available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in the income statement as part of other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i) Financial assets (Cont’d)

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the date of trade when the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred

substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

The fair values of quoted investments and derivative financial
instruments are based on current bid prices. If the market for
a financial asset is not active, the Group establishes fair value
by using appropriate valuation techniques. These include the
use of recent arm'’s length transactions, reference to other
instruments that are substantially the same and discounted cash

flow analysis.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered an
indicator that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value less any impairment loss on that financial
assets previously recognised in the income statement, is
removed from equity and recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on
equity instruments are not reversed through the income
statement.

2. MAUEER ST HE ()

(i) HHEE(H)

MBEENTEHRES - HRRH A (AIARKE
HEEZAEERR)ER - EAKECZEFHRE
BEWRE S MEMEND 2 MREREE - X
AEBE AR LKA ENME R RN @ & eE
% BIZEMBEERT TREWER -

BRERERTESRT AN A FEDRRRE
AEFE o WERMBEEZTHLTER - K
SESRAEENGEEDEZEEAFE  BHEK
FIEHR AT RAETZRS  2EEMKRBUR
RzTIH UEREBEFRAE

AEEENREE AN EEEFETEREEDR
—ERBEER AV BEELRRE - HAD
BOMERHEERAES - RIRRERSEE H
HRER - AEERAFERFATEERZAX
RS REVENE R ARBIR © A E BRI H
HEMBMBEEHRRE - AR EE(KEK
RERFRFEEZER) BAZPBEEAER
BRRAER ZEMRER B#EET S5 - Wi
BRERAER - NMERRD BRI EBEL
BiEERDED -



Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X3 RZERER AT

Notes to the Financial Statements

BrEE SRR M EE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

0

(k)

()

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises materials, direct labour and an
appropriate portion of production overheads calculated on a
weighted average basis. Net realisable value is determined on
the basis of anticipated sales proceed less estimated cost to

completion and selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments
are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired.
The amount of the provision is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the
use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement. When a trade receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities on the balance sheet.
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(m) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are

shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(n) Convertible bonds

(i) Convertible bonds with equity component

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holders, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received do not vary,
are accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an equity

component.

At initial recognition, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is determined using a market interest
rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond. The remainder
of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option as
equity component. Transaction costs that relate to the
issue of a compound financial instrument are allocated to
the liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost, calculated using the effective interest
method, until extinguished on conversion or maturity. The
equity component is recognised in equity, net of any tax
effects.

When the bond is converted, the relevant equity
component and the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion are transferred
to share capital and share premium for the shares
issued. When the bond is redeemed, the relevant equity
component is transferred to retained earnings.
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2. MUEER ST HE (H)

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)
(n) Convertible bonds (Cont'd) (n) FATERES (&)

(i) TR A0 2 TR B

(i) Convertible bonds without equity component

All other convertible bonds which do not exhibit the
characteristics mentioned in (i) above are accounted for as
hybrid instruments consisting of an embedded derivative

and a host debt contract.

At initial recognition, the embedded derivative of the
convertible bonds is accounted for as derivative financial
instruments and is measured at fair value. Any excess
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the
derivative component is recognised as liability under the
contract. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bond are allocated to the liability under the
contract.

The derivative component is subsequently carried at
fair value and changes in fair value are recognised in
the income statement. The liability under the contract is
subsequently carried at amortised cost, calculated using the
effective interest method, until extinguished on conversion
or maturity.

When the bond is converted, the carrying amount of
the liability under the contract together with the fair
value of the relevant derivative component at the time
of conversion are transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. When the
bond is redeemed, any difference between the redemption
amount and the carrying amounts of both components is

recognised in the income statement.
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(o)

(p)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings using the

effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for

at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

Current and deferred taxation

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Company, its subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of

amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, the deferred taxation is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax

asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(p)

(q)

Current and deferred taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against

which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Employee benefits

(i) Retirement scheme obligations

Employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the People's
Republic of China (the “"PRC") are members of state-
managed employee pension scheme operated by the
Tianjin Municipal People’s Government which undertakes to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired employees. The Group's obligation is to make
the required contributions under the schemes. In addition,
the Group also contributes to a mandatory provident fund
scheme for all Hong Kong employees. Both schemes are
defined contribution plans. All these contributions are
based on a certain percentage of the staff's salary and are
charged to the income statement as incurred.
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(q) Employee benefits (Cont'd)

(ii) Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
over the vesting period is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to vest. At each balance sheet
date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest. It recognises the impact
of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the income

statement with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are exercised.

(r) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is

recognised as interest expense.
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(s) Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration for the

sale of goods and rendering of services in the ordinary course of

the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax,

business tax, returns and discounts. Revenue is recognised as

follows:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
to customers.

Toll revenue is recognised when services are rendered.

Port service income is recognised when services are

rendered.

Sales of electricity, water, heat and thermal power are
recognised based on meter readings of actual utilisation.

Government supplemental income is recognised on
accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant
document from Government.

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when
the risks and rewards of properties are transferred to
the purchasers, which occurs when the construction
of relevant properties has been completed and the
properties have been delivered to the purchasers and
collectibility of related receivables is reasonably assured.
Deposits and instalments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in
the balance sheet as advanced proceeds received from
customers under current liabilities.

Rental and management fee income is recognised on

accrual basis.

Interest income is accrued on a time-proportion basis

using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

t)

(u

=

(v)

Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the financial period in which the dividend payable

becomes legal and constructive obligations of the Company.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot

be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable,
they will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events

not wholly within the control of the Group.
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3. Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

market risk (including currency risk, price risk and interest

rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s financial

risk management focuses on the unpredictability of financial

markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the

Group's financial performance. The Group does not use any

derivative financial instruments to hedge for its risk exposures.

(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The principal subsidiaries of the Group operate in
the PRC with almost all of the transactions settled in
Renminbi and did not have significant exposure to

foreign exchange risks during the year.

The actual foreign exchange risk faced by the Group
therefore primarily with respect to bank balances and
deposits, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, receivable and payable and borrowings made by
the Group which are denominated in non-functional
currency mainly Hong Kong dollars (collectively “Non-
Functional Currency Items”).

At 31st December 2007, with all other variables
held constant, if Hong Kong dollars had weakened/
strengthened against Renminbi by 5% (2006: 5%), the
Group's post-tax profit would have been increased/
decreased by approximately HK$50,048,000 (2006:
HK$13,533,000) as a result of the translation of those
Non-Functional Currency Items.
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3. Financial risk management (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(a) Market risk (Cont'd)

(i) Price risk

(iii

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
because the Group's investments in listed shares
and unlisted funds are classified on the consolidated
balance sheet as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss specified in note 27. The Group is not

exposed to commodity price risk.

To manage its price risk arising from investments in
equity securities, the Group diversifies its portfolio and
invests in relatively low-risk funds. Since the amount of
the investments in listed shares is not significant to the
Group, management is of the view that the exposure
to equity securities price risk is limited. For the Group's
investments in unlisted funds, due to the difficulty in
estimating the correlation with the market indexes
of the underlying securities of the funds and the
diversified nature of the funds, no sensitivity analysis for

price risk is performed as it cannot be reliably estimated.
Interest rate risk
Other than bank balances and deposits (the “Interest

Bearing Assets”) specified in note 28, the Group has no

other significant interest-bearing assets.
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3. MBERERE (&)

3. Financial risk management (Cont’d)

3.1 IR HEE ()

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(@) Market risk (Cont'd) @) WHEE (&)

(ili) Interest rate risk (Cont'd) (i) F=ER (E)

The Group's interest rate risk arises from borrowings
(the “Interest Bearing Liabilities”) specified in note 31.
Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. The Group's policy is to maintain a mixed
portfolio of borrowings subject to variable and fixed
interest rates. The Group also analyses its interest rate
exposure periodically by considering refinancing,
renewal of existing positions and alternative financing.
The Group's Interest Bearing Liabilities mainly comprise
borrowings at variable rates of HK$1,303,969,000 (2006:
HK$1,707,042,000) and borrowings at fixed rates of
HK$ 165,447,000 (2006: HK$571,257,000).

At 31st December 2007, with all other variables held
constant, if the interest rate on HK dollar-denominated
borrowings at variable interest rate, bank balances and
deposits had increased/decreased by 100 basis-point
(2006: 100 basis-point), the corresponding increase/
decrease in net finance costs (representing interest
income on the Interest Bearing Assets less interest
expenses on Interest Bearing Liabilities) would have
resulted in a decrease/increase in the Group's profit
after taxation by HK$4,777,000 (2006: HK$2,916,000). At
31st December 2007, if the interest rate on Renminbi-
denominated borrowings at variable interest rate, bank
balances and deposits had increased/decreased by 50
basis-point (2006: 100 basis-point), the corresponding
decrease/increase in net finance costs would have
resulted in an increase/decrease in the Group's profit
after taxation by HK$9,447,000 (2006: HK$11,653,000).

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

AEBEHAMFINNERE(TBA
&) EEFIERR - RZEFRELD
BESAKEEEATE SR EER -
RE E M EEL O EE B4 B AR
SAFEEFERR ANEEOBRE
ERFIRZDRETEHEFERBEEHE
BEE - AEENEREEERE  F
TEENERERSERME - TSN
HAZRR AEENGEEBEFED
FHRZBF X EHEE1,303,969,000
FEIL(ZZZ/NEF 1 1,707,042,0007870) K
REE R EHEE 165,447,000 7T
(ZZTZ/NF £ 571,257,000 7T) ©

R=ZZZ+F+=-A=+—A8" EMEH
H2HMEFTE  BERZEF R
BRMATEE  RITEHRERAE
E/RA00EERE (=TT NEF 1 100
EEE)  MEKNFEGEERTEE
ERNBIWARF BB EF S ) KiEE
IR ERRE B B RR B AR F
A, HAN4,777,000 8 T (— BT NE
29160008 7L) c RZZEZELF+ A
=+—A - BERZNETEHNAR
BEE  RITEBRRERFELTHA
50 {EER (ZZFZ/4F : 1001EEEL) - &
BRAFRE G AR D E  EEUR
SEMRBE RN, 5D 9,447,000
BT (ZZTZ/NF ¢ 11,653,00087T) °

R 62 [ 3 45 {56 PR ) ) 2 e A B2 B 2R
FE AR AR R
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3. Financial risk management (Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk mainly arises from cash deposits and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss maintained with
banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures
to jointly controlled entities, associates, related companies,

minority shareholders, investee companies and customers.

For banks and financial institutions, a significant portion of
the Group's cash deposits and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss were placed with state-owned banks
and financial institutions. The carrying amount of amounts
receivable from jointly controlled entities, associates, related
companies, minority shareholders, investee companies
and accounts receivable represent the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risks in relation to its financial assets. The
Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of services
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history
and the Group performs periodic credit evaluations of its
customers. The Group's historical experience in collection
of trade and other receivables falls within the recorded
allowances and the Directors are of the opinion that
adequate provision for uncollectible accounts receivable
has been made in the financial statements.

As at 31st December 2006 and 2007, over 70% of the
Group's financial assets were cash deposits and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss placed with
state-owned banks and financial institutions, which are
considered trustworthy. For trade receivables, over one-
third of which were supplemental income receivable
from the Finance Bureau of TEDA with settlements
throughout the years. The residential, commercial and
industrial customers of the segment of supply of utilities
demonstrated good credit quality in general as residential
customers settled in cash while there are established
relationships with key commercial and industrial customers
with long business track record. Most of the customers of
the segment of port services and the receivables of toll

roads demonstrated timely settlement.

3. BIERERE (&)
3.1 IR HEZE ()

) EEmER

FEERBRIEELSBFHNRITREREE
MRS F R LB AT EEEBIERIRA Y
BEE  ARKFZEGER HEQAR -
BRF - DEBRR  XRERRREPHE
SRR (B4 M AU R H EYRIR)

SLERTT RS REEMN S - AEEAHRE
FRRBRAFEEERBRRIIRNTBEE
B RREERTRSEEE - BURHKR
ZHIER BERQR WEAR - DB
R ZRERQAFRKEKIRSR A ARE B8
ERAKEREMBEERARNESRER
R - REBEEHERE - AEEREERL
BRIFNEPHERY  MAKEINEEH
FHEEPHNEREMRR - AEEBERKDEN
R W 5 R e L At B MUK TR S BB HH EL A\ R
e MEERR  BBHRPEHAAIEKE
BV HRTRIE D BE

R-BERFR_ZFZELF+_A=+—
B RNEEEBB70% N BEEERRSFR
REATEEEBERIIRNVFEE 15
TR BRAEE A SENBEA RIT RS B
B RBEERME =02 AEREK

REFEBU BB THOMEBIKRA « ZHEH
BEER - REDAREES D BOEE
BEMTEEP—REOABREFERES
EEEPURSHEIR  ARETEES
RMXBEECENEIERERTXREFPE
TRERE - BORBEBSBEOREOE
5 R M B S B ) FE IORR G B R (E A -
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3. MBERERE (&)

3. Financial risk management (Cont’d)
3.1 BEREEREZE ()

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(©) Liquidity risk © TEELER

The Group adopts prudent liquidity risk management which
includes maintaining sufficient bank balances and cash and
having funding through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities. The Group aims to maintain flexibility in

funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's
liquidity reserve comprising undrawn borrowing facility and
cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash
flow.

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities
that will be settled into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the

table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

AEBRMBENREDE S AREIEE -
BREARAENRITERRRS  URES
ARNEFHREEERSES - AEEEHE
ERUBAEAREERERESNER
{30

EEEENFERRSREEAEERDES
EENRBIER - B REROEREE
NEB e RREEEY -

TRENGEAESNIH A AT HREBA
SENFBEES R TRNIBHES - R
I BENERER S NARTRE L

Between 1 Between 2
Lessthan 1year and2years and5years Over5 years
—FLAN —FERF WMEERF AFNAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FET AT 5T
Group REE
At 31st December 2007 R-ZZLF
+=A=+-8
Borrowings BE& 278,039 52,532 1,361,636 -
Amounts due to related EBRBEEATR
companies and minority DERRFIE
shareholders 158,746 - - -
Trade and other payables BNERRHEMENSRIE 985,421 - - -
At 31st December 2006 RZZTERF
+=—A=+—8
Borrowings BE 652,994 360,988 1,176,753 589,923
Amounts due to related FETRAE AT R
companies and minority DB R FRIE
shareholders 533,724 - - -
Trade and other payables e & % H A FE 5t Z0E 853,358 - - -
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3. Financial risk management (Cont’d)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital. Total capital is calculated as equity as

shown in the consolidated balance sheet.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the net gearing ratio. Net gearing ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by equity. Net debt is calculated
as total borrowings (including current and non-current
borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less
total cash and cash deposits. During 2007, the Group's policy,
which was unchanged from 2006, was to maintain a net gearing
ratio of not more than 40%.

As of the end of 2007 and 2006, the Group had a net cash

position.

3. MBERERE (H)

3.2 EXEBEE

$%@ﬁ1§§$9’1 B H) RRERE B EL

C URECREEH BRI AR A EREA LR
{ Mad - ARMER RIFOERRBELURIEE AR
o MERIERA B EBERAHNELDE

RERHRABEARZNE - AEEAREERRRIK

MR MEREREER  BTHRIHEE
AR AT
MEMRAZE R AEBIAVFEEAGBLEER

&= Aé%%%ﬁ BB E AL IR ER R
igwmatE - B FRIRBEE (REEREEE
BERMENTELIERBEER) BERE KR
SHERBETE - RZZSLHEN - AEBHR
ZTTAFHER  BFEEABRLERERTS
R 40% °

HE-_TTHER-_TTAFR  AEEREF
REA ©

2007 2006

—EELHF ZETREF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET T T

Total borrowings EEs 1,469,416 2,278,299
Less: Total cash and cash deposits B B RIS TR B 3,236,182 3,304,278
Net cash NG FE 1,766,766 1,025,979
Equity R 8,224,259 6,905,889
Net gearing ratio FEERMRLEX net cash net cash

FREMRR HREAN
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3. MBERERE (&)

3. Financial risk management (Cont’d)

3.3 Fair value estimation

3.3 A FEEEGE

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group
is the current bid price; the appropriate quoted market price for
financial liabilities is the current ask price.

Unlisted investments have been valued by reference to the
market prices of the underlying investments or by reference to
the current market value of similar investments or by reference

to the discounted cash flows of the underlying net assets.

The fair values of cash and cash deposits, trade receivables,
other receivables, deposits, trade payables, other payables,
accruals, current borrowings and balances with associates,
jointly controlled entities, related companies, minority
shareholders and investee companies are assumed to
approximate their carrying amount due to the short-term
maturities of these assets and liabilities.

The fair values of long-term borrowings are estimated using the
expected future contractual payments discounted at current

market interest rates available to similar financial instruments.

EERMSEE ¢RI A ATERBREER
ZTISHREERE - NEEMHPIFEEEZ TSR
EBRERERE  MYTAEIERVHRE
RERZERE -

JEEMIREZRBERENHEIBEURENS
TS EESERFEENHTRESREME

ReFRFR - BRER - EMERFR - %
T BNER - EMENTOR - EHER - B8
fEE BB E AR - HEZESEE - B
BT DBERRERIRE R RERO D FER
EEAREERS  RRRREEEREENE
HR SR -

KRB Z A TFERTRIARR S 49 32 H AR ER
BT RIS RITREE -
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4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based

on historical experience and other factors, including expectations

of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances. The estimates and assumptions that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities of the Group are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Property, plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives and
residual values for the Group's property, plant and equipment.
Management will revise the depreciation charge where useful
lives and residual values are different to previously estimated,
or it will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategy assets that have been abandoned or sold.

As stated in note 2(d), the total projected traffic volume of toll
road is reviewed regularly with reference to both internal and
external sources of information and adjusted if appropriate.
Independent professional traffic studies are performed
periodically and appropriate adjustment will be made should
there be a material change. The Directors of the Company
consider that these are the best current estimates on the total

projected traffic volume.

Impairment of assets

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill or assets
that have indefinite useful lives have suffered any impairment.
Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amounts of assets or cash-generating units have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates, such as discount rates,

future profitability and growth rates.

4. BARETHEETRAVE

ARARBEERRAEE (D5 B & EHER
2 AT T R ERBO G R - AT
AHEARRS SR EMARR A K2 BEEAEH
EABEL H RERZ T -

(a) % BERRE

AEEZME - BERREBZABEHRRSE
EHEEEEE - WA AFHRRSEERTH
EEER  ARESEIITERS - REHHK
MO E T EEBR K EARE R Z R LR
7=

BAPMEE 2(d) it - WX B RBE 2 FHEHARSIR iﬁ%
R%W*ﬁ&ﬁl\*ﬁéﬂx/ﬁmﬁﬁ%u il - W
BR{ERFAE o 1o HH&’ETT?%_LE%%Z‘
MR ZZDEEHEﬁE&i:AVE HEHE -
ARBZEERA/UEHE BB BREZ
TR fESE

@Ent.ﬂ

i

(b) BEBE

AEEHHEILEREERFHCEESFR
DEIT IR - AEEEE A HBRE - §R
HMAE  EAFHHRARBRNERRREE
BRI E SR - BAREETRG - BE
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5. Segment information 5. 7EER
The Group is principally engaged in provision of port services, AEEFZREREE DRSS LN EBRKRRME
operation of toll roads and supply of utilities. ARFE -
The associates of the Group are principally engaged in the AEBEREE AR BN FRBESR - FFBRERKF
manufacturing and sales of winery products, elevators and BBHEH °
escalators.
(a) Primary reporting format - business segments (a) ZEZ2#H = —FEH7 4
For the year ended 31st December 2007
HECRRtETCAZT-HLFE
Operation Supply
Port of toll of utilities Elevator
services roads (note) Winery  and escalator Others Group
RELH
fenE i ABER
A0S E® (M) BE HEER Bt 158
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Thn Thn TEn Thn Thn TEn
Revenue WA 1,157,430 177,156 2,053,077 - - - 3,387,663
Segment results AERE 269,820 93477 198579 - - - 561,876
Gain on toll roads restructuring ERNEERNG - 165913 - - - - 165913
Provision for impairment of R-FBERNTREL
investment in an associate HERE - - - - - (38,261) (38,261)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries,  H/ERBAR
associates and jointly BenE BRI
controlled entities RN/ (BR) 139 - - - - (18,817) (18,678)
Interest income HSBA 53,352
Net corporate incorne RARAFE 65,177
Operating profit -yl 789,379
Finance costs BKER (101,130)
Share of profits/{losses) of FEibaR)/ (58)
Associates BERT 790 (2,149) - 56,576 159,293 6,141 220,651
Jointly controlled entities LR EE - - - - - (9.831) (9831)
Profit before tax PR 899,069
Taxexpense RESH (71,830)
Profitfor the year EEET 827,239
Capital expenditure BRRY 49,142 62 75,032 - - 6,170 130,406
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH 121463 42,261 63,242 - - 4,626 231,59
(Reversal of)fprovision for impaiment  [ERE ZIE
of trade receivables (Bm)/ %R (5812) - 2101 - - 103 16392

117
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5. Segment information (Cont'd) 5. 2 EER (&)
(a) Primary reporting format - business segments (Cont’d) (a) ZEZ2H 5= —FEH5 4 (F)
For the year ended 315t December 2006
HEZENFT_A=t-HItEE
Operation of Supply Elevator
Port services tollroads of utilties Winery  and escalator Others Group
(note)
RELH
gelg Rt HEER
AR el (Bz) B A At A5E
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000
ThL AT Th ThL AT Th ThL
Revenue LN 1005001 207,101 1467672 - - 8683 2688457
Seqment resuls HERE 20761 91,675 160973 - - 1,161 484570
(Gain on deemed disposal of RIELERELR
partal interest in subsidlaries FreEm ha 109,235 - - - - - 109235
(ain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR 2 hE - - - - - 299 2993
Interest income FIBMA 148727
Net corporate expenses RABRFE (18587)
Operating profit -yl 746938
Finance costs B%ER (149293)
Netloss on convertible bonds mEkER FER (63847)
Share of profits/(losses) of EEEH /(BB
Associates BENT 93 - - 52618 129071 (1457) 181215
Jointly controlled entites HARHER - - - 53 - (1183 (11,779
Profit before tax PR 703234
Taxexpense RESH (66,053)
Profitfor the year EERT 637,181
Capital expenditure BRRR 1175851 36125 116684 - - 21% 1330856
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH 97328 45580 1383 - - 4166 20897
(Reversal of) provision forimpaiment  FEME3Et
of trade receivables (Bm) /&4 (4349) - 1761 - - - (2589)
Note: B

Utility supply business is carried out by Tianjin TEDA Tsinlien Electric
Power Company Limited (“Electricity Company”), Tianjin TEDA Tsinlien
Water Supply Company Limited (“Water Company”) and Heat & Power
Company.

The Finance Bureau of TEDA has confirmed to grant to Electricity
Company and Water Company quantity-based government
supplemental income calculated at RMB0.02 per kWh of electricity
supplied and RMB2 per tonne of water supplied for five years to 31st
December 2007 and subsequently extended for a year to 31st December
2008. The Finance Bureau of TEDA also confirmed to grant to Heat &
Power Company quantity-based government supplemental income
calculated at RMB50 per tonne of steam supplied for a period of five
years up to 31st December 2008.

NRARMEHEES S RREREEZBRENERAR(EN
AR REREZH B IKERAR([BHRKRA]]) RE
EVN

BAFNGHE -

4
4

RELBERZMARR ((RERERE ) PEHBERRNEE
—ETEFEF A=+ HLERAFRNREHE TREE
EARK 002 TREHE 1 A FKEARK 2T BIAES
AR R BRKATR TEREEENKRTRHEIKA - WRE
BERA-—FE_FTN\FT_A=+—8 i RERE
EYBRERANBE—TT/\F+_A=+—HILEFRA
REHE R TEARSSOTARERR X TENES
EVER AT B ©
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5. 2EEFR (&)

5. Segment information (Cont’d)

(a) Primary reporting format - business segments (Cont’d)

(a) TEZ2HA —FEH7H (HF)

Note: (Cont'd)

In addition, Heat & Power Company is entitled to additional cost-based
government supplemental income calculated at the difference between
the purchase price per tonne of steam purchased from Tianjin Binhai
Energy & Development Co,, Ltd, the major supplier of steam, and the
selling price per tonne of steam sold to the customers.

Revenue generated from the supply of utilities includes approximately
HKS$41.4 million (2006: HK$56.6 million), HK$80.9 million (2006: HK$74.9
million) and HK$137.9 million (2006: HK$59.6 million) of quantity-
based government supplemental income granted to the Electricity
Company, Water Company and Heat & Power Company respectively. It
also includes approximately HK$13.7 million (2006: HK$19.0 million) of
cost-based government supplemental income granted to Heat & Power

fiE - ()

FI - RB AR A ERANER RN EZZRHER
RERBERERBROBRARDBAZ INSHEREER
HEFPHERINEMEBZ RN EEHTESS —
RN AN BRFHEIEA

HEABZEHBRABESRETFENRAR - BRAKA
B REE R BRI ERHLE S A BT BN A 441,400,000
HBIT (ZZZ/NE £ 56600,000787T) + 80,900,000 (=
TT /N4 1 74900000757 ) & 137,900,000 78 (ZFFX
£F : 59,600,000/57T) ° AR INEIER FRE AR
A9 EL AR 2N B9 BT 17 B AR A 4T 13,700,000 78 7T ( = EIX
4F : 19,000,000 7T) °

Company.
Operation of Supply Elevator
Portservices  tollroads  of utilities Winery and escalator Others  Unallocated Group
feyg  REOR HIEER
EORE £ Ri BE  KFER iy FU5E  1%E
HK$'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TER TR TR TER TéEn  TER
As at 31st December 2007 RZEEtE+A=1-H
Assets AE 2721959 2,088477 1,945,707 - - 301,346 3,706,010 10,763,499
Assocates Bend 4980 192638 - Q8T 462675 - - 1377480
Jointly controlled entities HREGER 704,467 - - - - 59,714 - 764181
Total assets BEE 3451406 2281115 1,945,707 697,187 462,675 361,060 3,706,010 12,905,160
Liabilities af 87,763 31,49% 796,822 - - 75546 1,761,012 2,752,637
As at 315t December 2006 R-EE E+-A=1-H
Assets BE 2556,136 351212 1670611 = = 537,094 3653903 11988956
Associates B0 2847 = = 625,365 463,265 38,190 = 1,150,667
Jointly controlled entities HRirsEE - - - - - 91,903 - 91,903
Total assets EEE 2579983 351,212 1670611 625,365 463,65 667,187 3653903 13231526
Liabilities A 159,655 95860 565,065 - - 76,101 3004416 3861097
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5. Segment information (Cont'd) 5. 2 EER (&)
(a) Primary reporting format — business segments (Cont'd) (a) TEZ2FHH A — B 75 ()
Unallocated assets under business segment reporting primarily FEEREBHDE TN DB EEEARBIER
include available-for-sale financial assets, deferred tax assets, HEEMBEE - BEHIBEE - HAFEES
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, restricted BIERYIBRNMGEE  XBRHRe  =EAL
cash, time deposits with maturity over three months and cash LEHNEREFARR S RIASEEY - 70
and cash equivalents. Unallocated liabilities primarily include HEEBEARIEEE  EHRELEREAE -
borrowings, current and deferred tax liabilities.
(b) Secondary report format - geographical segments (b) REZ2#H =l —hESHE
Revenue Operating results
WA REZEE
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELF ZEERE —ERLF ZEERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T T FET FABT
PRC mainland R B A 3 3,387,663 2,688,457 561,876 484,570
2007 2006
—EELHF —ETREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T BT
Total assets: HBEE
PRC mainland HR A b 10,537,424 11,802,170
Hong Kong a5 226,075 186,786
10,763,499 11,988,956
Associates Nl 1,377,480 1,150,667
Jointly controlled entities HEFEH T 764,181 91,903
12,905,160 13,231,526
Capital expenditure: BEARFR
PRC mainland =e)ilvnpsi) 129,209 1,329,303
Hong Kong BB 1,197 1,553
130,406 1,330,856
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6. Otherincome 6. HfbWA
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEEREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAIT
Interest income B A
— bank deposits —RITIEK 53,352 51,392
— proceeds from initial public offer ——HNBATNE X AH
of a subsidiary BE IS RUE - 97,335
Dividend income from investee REFLEMZHFERAT ZRELA
companies — unlisted 18,750 18,028
Sundries T 12,651 14,411
84,753 181,166
. Other gains, net 7. Hibzs 358
2007 2006
—EELHF —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET AT
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2N F(B{EBE BI85 RN IS EE
— fair value gains — listed —NEEKE— EH 72,089 13,390
— fair value gains — unlisted —RAFEERE LT 9,151 3,049
Gain on disposal of investment property HEREYE 2 W= 10,309 =
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEEMBEE
financial assets ZWEs 10,429 -
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries, HEMRBAR - BEQ A RER
associates and jointly controlled entities | EEE  (B518), WS FHE (18,678) 22,993
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYZE - BE &&E
equipment ol kit (14,202) (12,062)
Net exchange gain PE W e F 58 47,671 37,533
116,769 64,903
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8. Operating profit 8. RK&HF
Operating profit is arrived at after charging/(crediting): SRR T30k (REA) TPIEB &R
2007 2006
—ETLF ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET BT
Employee benefit expense (note 9) EERAFAZ (ML) 546,159 478,731
Purchase of electricity, water and steam for sale ~ BEAFEEH - BRKRES 1,537,940 1,066917
Depreciation TE
— charged to cost of sales — TESHE R AR 188,815 190,770
— charged to administrative expenses —fEfTESZ HHH0RR 23,495 17,504
Amortisation BN 19,282 12,623
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment U E TR E R, (Bm)
of trade receivables 16,392 (2,5898)
Provision for impairment of investment NN NTIRE Y
in an associate B 38,261 -
Operating lease expense on EEFAAF L
— Plants, pipelines and networks —HE - BB ks 67,944 28,126
— Land and buildings — T REF 9,636 7,806
- Berths, railway, storage spaces and equipment  — A7 « EE& - YA N ERE - 30,986
- Others —HAh 2,833 -
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEE 2 5,505 5,776
Management fee for the Jinbin Expressway EESIRNEZ EIRE 12,533 16,644
Toll collection management fee for the INRERBE 2 ZHE
Eastern Outer Ring Road WEEERS 5,982 6,420
Maintenance charges for the Eastern INRERJE 7 e &
Quter Ring Road 30,928 43,902
9. Employee benefit expense 9. EEEFEX
2007 2006
—ETLF ZETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET BT
Wages, salaries and social security costs I% sraehuteREER 498,857 442,859
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BIKNE KA — EZBERETE 44,378 32,086
Share option expenses (note) EENGREE R (MI5E) 2,924 3,786
546,159 478,731

Note: The Company and its listed subsidiary, Tianjin Port Development B
Holdings Limited (“TPD") operate share option schemes whereby
options may be granted to eligible employees and directors, to

subscribe for shares of the Company and TPD respectively.

ARARELTHBAARBEERERERAT

(TREEER ) REBREAE - BUERAERESR
REERBABIATRBEARRRREEERR D 2B
P
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9. Employee benefit expense (Cont'd)
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9. BEBFBFX ()

Details of share options are as follows: BREFBWT
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise
Price 1st January Lapsed/  31st December

Grantor Date of grant HK$ 2007 Granted Exercised Cancelled 2007 Note

THE =BTtH BAR/ ZERLF
BHA RHBH BT —A—8 B BT i TZA=1+—-H WE
The Company 23rd December 2004 3.10 4,400,000 - (1,900,000 (2,500,000 -0
ARA] —EENFE+-A=+=R
TPD 1st August 2006 228 11,500,000 = (400,000) (1,100,000 10,000,000 (i)
REBER —ZTRFN\A—-B
TPD 3rd February 2007 2.74 = 1,900,000 = = 1,900,000 (i)
REBER —TT+F_H=H
Notes: B

(i)  The share option scheme of the Company expired on 21st November

2007.

(i) The share options of TPD are divided into 2 tranches with exercise price
of HK$2.28 and HK$2.74 respectively and exercisable from 1st February
2007 to 1st August 2016 and from 3rd August 2007 to 3rd February 2017

respectively.

The estimated fair value of share options granted is based on the

Binomial model. The significant inputs into the models are as follows:

() ARRNBREAZER _ZZELF+—A-t+—HE

e

(i) REBERMOBIED FIRITEE228ETR274ETH
MR - ZEBEBRED AN =TT LF-_A—HE
2 RFNA-AREELFNAZHE_ZT L
FAZBTATE -

ERHBERENGSATFEERE A GERNG
H o MAZEANEIZ2HT ¢

3rd February 2007 1st August 2006
—2RtLE o
Date of grant B B —A=H JAH—H
Exercise price 1T (B HK$2.74 HK$2.28
27487t 2.28787C

Standard deviation of expected TEHIRR B R AR R
share price return 34.0% 32.4%
Expected option life TEEARE AR F R 2years 2&10years
=F —RtF
Annual risk free interest rate F 2 £ [ B A o 4.06% 4.235% & 4.607%
Dividend pay out rate PSS 40% 40%
Fair value NFEE HK$0.54  HK$0.43 & HK$0.60
0.54 % T 043787TR
0.60787T

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share price

returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share price of TPD.

AR EE RO R R RETE
RS ARG EROST BRI BEEHHBE -

P
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The remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31st

December 2007 is set out below:
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9. Employee benefit expense (Cont’d)

(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

),

Notes to the Financial Statements
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EEREMNFEX (K)
(a) EBREREEASH 2

BEEFREE_ZETLF T -_A=+—HILFE
HBE SIS T -

Salaries
and other Share-based

Fees benefits (i) payments Total

wue HEF (i) EB AR et
Name of Director HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EERE FHET FHET FHET FTHET
Wang Guanghao" FRE&EY 1,500 2,290 338 4,128
Ren Xuefeng"” Fe24e® - 1,411 - 1,41
Yu Rumin FrE 1,300 695 1,035 3,030
Nie Jiansheng EEA 1,400 2,524 M7 4341
Dai Yan BT - 1,639 - 1,639
Hu Chengli AR A - 1,639 - 1,639
Wang Jiandong FER - - - -
Bai Zhisheng AE4E - - - -
Zhang Wenli &3 - - - -
Sun Zengyin TRIZE] - - - -
Zong Guoying =B - - - -
Zheng Daoquan BEE - - - -
Cheung Wing Yui R K 300 - - 300
Kwong Che Keung, Gordon o 360 - - 360
Lau Wai Kit (RS 360 - - 360
Cheng Hon Kwan B 85 360 - - 360

5,580 10,198 1,790 17,568
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9. Employee benefit expense (Cont’d)
(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (Cont’d)

The remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31st

December 2006 is set out below:

Annual Report 2007 —EEA4F4F R

9. BERFBFX ()

(a) EEREREZNSHZ (&)

BESREE_TTFET_A=T—HILFE
BB eHZINT

Salaries
and other Share-based
Fees benefits (i) payments Total
ek VARR 19 %%

we E A F () ER R #aEt
Name of Director HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERHE BT BT BT T
Wang Guanghao" TEEC 1,000 2360 650 4010
Ren Xuefeng” F255" = 1036 = 1036
Yu Rumin THR 134 417 - 551
Nie Jiansheng EmEA 933 1248 834 3015
Dai Yan" BT " - 504 - 504
Hu Chengli” HARK A = 504 - 504
Wang Jiandong FER = = = -
Bai Zhisheng"”’ BEE"Y - - - -
Zhang Wenli" SRICH Y = = = =
Sun Zengyin FRIE ) = = - =
Zong Guoying" REIZE D = = = =
Zheng Daoquan"’ HpEe - - - -
Cheung Wing Yui SRk 270 - - 270
Kwong Che Keung, Gordon BRRE5R 330 = = 330
Lau Wai Kit BURHE 330 - - 330
Cheng Hon Kwan B 85 330 - - 330
Zhang Hongru™” RBME " - 3% - 3%
Ho Xiuheng""” R F4E " - - - -
Yang Liheng™ B hE "> - - - -
Peng Jinhua"” EEeE"" - - - -
Ye Disheng"” E S - - - -

3327 6,405 1484 11,276

(i) Other benefits include leave pay, insurance premium and club
membership.

(i) Resigned on 31st January 2008.
(i) Appointed on 10th July 2006.

(iv) Appointed on Tst January 2006.
(v) Appointed on 20th March 2006.

(vi) Appointed on 1st December 2006.

(vii) Resigned on 10th July 2006.
(viii) Resigned on 1st January 2006.

(ix) Resigned on 20th March 2006.

() HtEMeRaHEs ReEkames -

iy R=TZNF—

A=+—BBE -

iy R=ZZRFEATHEEE-

vy R=ZFZX

—A—BEZE-
=R tREXRE-

V) R=ZZTRFT+_A—HEZfE-

i) REZEZRELATHBHE -

—A—BEHE -
=RA=tHEE-

P
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9. Employee benefit expense (Cont’d)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

9. EEBFBFX ()

(b) EIREFHAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the

Group for the year include three (2006: two) directors whose

emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.

RER  AEBRUGRHFALEE=((=F
TRF: MADEF - EHFSDR EXE50DH
R RER  BNEBRUZ(ZTERFE: =

The emoluments payable to the remaining two (2006: three) i) A zBenmT :
individuals during the year are as follows:
2007 2006
—EELF ZETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FABT
Salaries and other emoluments BEARFE RAMENE 2,794 4,455
Share-based payments PARRAD B BRI R 616 1,077
3,410 5532
The emoluments of the five individuals fell within the following AEmEFA T ZEFHHN T T EE :
bands:
2007 2006
—EELF ZEETRF
Emolument bands (HK$) B % E (BT)
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T — 2,000,000 7 7T 1 2
HK$2,000,001-HK$ 2,500,000 2,000,001 7T — 2,500,000 7 7T 1 1
HK$3,000,001-HK$ 3,500,000 3,000,001 7T — 3,500,000 7% 7T 1 1
HK$4,000,001-HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7 7T — 4,500,000 78 7T 2 1
10.Finance costs 10. B & A
2007 2006
—EELF ZETREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET BT
Interest expenses: FMEEHR :
— bank borrowings —HRITEE 88,777 104,490
— loans from a minority shareholder —— (I DB E K 9,447 14,639
— convertible bonds (notional charge) — AR ES (ZRER) 2,906 30,164
101,130 149,293
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11.Tax expense 1M.BIEXH

2007 2006
—ETLF ZETRF
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET AT

Current taxation BNERF: 18
PRC income tax R RS 92,212 55,201
Deferred tax (note 32) MEERT A (F1EE32) (20,382) 10,852
71,830 66,053

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as there is
no estimated assessable profit for the year for the Group (2006: Nil).
Provision for the PRC income tax has been made at the applicable
rate of taxation on the estimated assessable profit for the year for

each of the Group's subsidiaries.

Tax rates applicable to principal subsidiaries:

On 6th November 1997, the Tianjin Finance Bureau approved
that Tianjin Harbour Second Stevedoring Co., Ltd. and Tianjin Port
Container Terminal Co., Ltd. be subject to a concessionary enterprise
income tax rate of 15% and remained effective as at 31st December
2007.

Pursuant to an approval document issued by the State Tax Bureau
of TEDA, Tianjin Jinzheng Transportation Development Company
Limited (“Jinzheng") is entitled to an exemption from the income
tax for two years commencing from its first profit-making year of
operation and thereafter, Jinzheng is entitled to a 50% relief from
income tax for the following three years. The applicable tax rate of
Jinzheng for the current year is 15% and remained effective as at
31st December 2007, being the preferential tax rate applicable after

the tax relief period.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, Tianjin
Mass Transit (Group) Development Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries
("MTD Group”) is exempted from the income tax for two years
starting from the first year of profit generation and thereafter,
MTD Group is entitled to a 50% relief from PRC income tax for the
following three years. The reduced tax rate for the relief period is
7.5%, after the expiry of the tax relief period, MTD Group is subject to

an income tax rate of 15%, being the preferential tax rate applicable.

PSR R PO A 3 AR BET - A BB
FEBEHRRE (CTTAF &) - REFEBIRE
YRR ENAEEE WBAT A ERBOMTINE
B -

T EMBATZEARE -

REBBRR—NNEF+—ARBHRERZEE -
BEARARMERNEEEEMBEABRAR 2EED
ERERERI15%  WR_TE+F+_A=+—H
HRER -

AR FR R R 2 [ B SR B A /B 3 H ) — I LS i
REZBBERER AR (EB]) &SRR M1
BEEFNFEERAMEZEH HE=FrERE
FriS8i50% o REAEE 2 BRAMER15% (R _F
+tFETZA=+—AMNARER) @ RBEZHER
B ZEREERE -

RIFPEIBEES - RRRE(EE)BRERAFAK
HM B AR ([RFRREE | ) ERA R = R
FREBAMEZAEN - RR=F - REREEET]
RS BIFTSH 50% » HIREEHARE R R
#75% - BEHEME - REREBEEFEZERNE
BB 15% BAPTEHL

P
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11.Tax expense (Cont’'d)

M. BIEXZH (F)

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, Electricity
Company, Water Company and Heat & Power Company are
exempted from the income tax for the two years starting from 2001
followed by a 50% reduction for the next three years. The applicable
tax rate for the current year is 15% and remained effective as at 31st
December 2007, being the preferential tax rate applicable after the
tax relief period.

On 16th March 2007, the National People’s Congress approved the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China (the
“New CIT Law") which is effective from 1st January 2008. Under the
New CIT Law, both domestic and foreign invested enterprise will
be subject to a single income tax rate of 25%. For those subsidiaries
of the Company which are applying 15% tax rate, the tax rate will
gradually increase to 25% over the next five years.

The income tax expense on the Group's profit before tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the applicable tax
rate, being the weighted average of rates prevailing in the territory

in which the Group's principal subsidiaries operate, as follows:

BIEFPEARESR - EHRAE - BRKATRBER
AIERBHNE =T Et;ﬁr‘mEWZFﬁ S H
B=FRERL50% - NFE ZHEAHER15% (A=
TTLFT_A=T—HMAER) - BB K EE
[EimiE 2 BREBE -

RZZZLF=A+~B 2EARREASEB
TCREARKMBREMERE) ([FEEMEH
%) - BT N\F—A—BRAER - BT
SBUE - A RINE R EM B EFTER RS —
7525% ° St B AR 15% i R BANTIE 2 R AR B A

RIS @ MRGRARAFESIEINE 25% o

AREEA BBADRN 2 P i s b B RE SRR E AT
R (BNANER | = 20 B N RS Pt R 3R 1T 2 A
FIRER) MatE 2R w28

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT T

Profit before tax Gz beal 899,069 703,234
Less: Share of profits less losses of associates B E(EEE AT bz

and jointly controlled entities B A ES (210,820) (169,436)

688,249 533,798

Calculated at applicable tax rates REARETE 2 A 119,387 91,402

Change in PRC tax rates due to BT R EPEHUA
New CIT Law 5| Bl R BIT R E ) (24,403)

Income not subject to taxation IR Z WA (70,612) (96,638)

Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes ARIHRE 2 S 43,371 69,815

Tax losses not recognised REMERZBIBEE 4,087 1474

Tax expense HMEXH 71,830 66,053

The weighted average applicable tax rate is

13.3% (2006: 13.0%).

The increase is caused by the increase in the profits of the Group's

subsidiaries who have higher applicable tax rates.

INEFEATEE133% (=TT RF ¢

13.0%) ° i

FHEIE MR AR AR SEABE MR B A

RIS INFIEL o
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12.Profit attributable to equity holders

The profit attributable to equity holders is dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company to the extent of profit of
HKS$1,084,274,000 (2006: loss of HK$824,000), of which a gain of
HK$821,299,000 arose from the toll roads restructuring (note 1(i)).
The parties to the restructuring entered into the transactions at a
nominal consideration whereas the investments, now acquired by
the Company upon restructuring, were accounted for on a fair value

basis in the financial statements of the Company.

13.Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on
profit attributable to equity holders of HK$690,301,000 (2006:
HK$552,751,000) and the weighted average number of 1,023,825,000
shares in issue (2006: 954,330,000 shares) during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share for 2007 is based
on adjusted profit attributable to equity holders of HK$693,207,000
and 1,036,748,000 shares which is the weighted average number
of 1,023,825,000 shares in issue during the year, plus the weighted
average number of 12,923,000 shares deemed to be issued at no
consideration if all outstanding options have been exercised and all

outstanding convertible bonds have been converted.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share for 2006 was based
on adjusted profit attributable to equity holders of HK$552,751,000
and 959,382,000 shares which was the weighted average number
of 954,330,000 shares in issue during 2006, plus the weighted
average number of 5,052,000 shares deemed to be issued at no
consideration if all outstanding options had been exercised.

12. RERH AEIEEF

RARRMBREANEIE 2 RERE ARGRTA
w7 1,084,274,000 87T (ZZ T34 ¢« [E518 824,000 7
7T) - B EIERE BHEKEER 2 W e 821,299,000
BT (KisE16) - BEEEFREBEREITIIRS -
MIRE AR RN EABRWE R ERIR AT EEE
AR A Z B BERR P HIRR

13.8R&F

BRERBFHREFARKREZE AEGGF
690,301,000 70 (ZZZ 754 : 552,751,000 70 ) R E
BEATI AR 2 IR A% E01,023,825,000 K (ZZZ /X
4 1 954,330,000 %) 5+ & -

T FERBERANDREAENRERE AR
1653 1 693,207,000 7% 7T, )2 1,036,748,000 AR A& 13+ BI4F
ME AT (D 2 hNHE T35 £1,023,825,000 AR H0 L fis 2
BB ARITEE 2 (B B AR TR R R A E T =
AT 2 BRI R PR AR B AR AR (E 5 B BRI 1D 2
DNHEF Y92 12,923,000 BETE ©

T NFEREE RN TIRBEARNRESE A
FEAE M F 552,751,000 7 7T & 959,382,000 A& A% {5 + BR=
TRRNEB BTG 2 IR F 921 954,330,000 A% » A
I R AR TR 2 B AR TR R AR (E LA B S
HBIT 2 IR 2 IR 805,052,000 iREH & -

14.Dividends 14.B 2
2007 2006
ZEELF —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T T
2007 final, proposed, of HK5.6 cents BREERE-TTLFREARE
(2006: final, paid, of HK4.6 cents) HRR 56 B (ZZTTREF ¢
per share EIRARAIR ST 4.6 7810) 57,995 47,639
2007 interim, paid, of HK5.4 cents REZZTLFERTEHRE
(2006: HK4.6 cents) per share HRR S4B (ZZTTREF ¢
T 467510L) 55,923 44,602
113,918 92,241

At a meeting of the Board of Directors held on 17th April 2008, the
Directors proposed a final dividend of HK5.6 cents per ordinary
share. This proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend
payable in these financial statements, but will be reflected as
an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31st
December 2008.

RZZZNFHA+CRBTNEEESE L EF
BRE TR RS 6 B RS - ZEKE
WA AR AR SRR UL S TS $RR T - RN E
T N\F+ A=+ HIEFEARRBRE ST
I ©
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15.Property, plant and equipment 15. 9% - BERRE
Group REE

Leasehold
improvement,
Port  Plantand furniture and Motor Construction
Buildings  Toll roads facilities  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Others Total
LIS
£
BER i
BT WEME  EORE He& Rk hE  ARIE it At
HK$'000  HKY'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TER TR TERL TERL TER TR TERL Tén  TER

Cost A
At 15t January 2007 RZZEtE-F-A 70364 3755843 624964 1694473 57,549 50,702 83902 14892 6,962,689
Eichange diferences EXEE 54181 2133 47833 128238 4212 3116 5510 1726 458,108
Addiions KE 6,667 - 6,670 32,059 4128 2981 70,066 7835 130406
Disposal o subsidiaries (note 36(c)) ~ HEMBAR (H536(0)) (11,316) - - (863) (1,59) (781) - - (14555
Toll roads restructuring (note 36(c) ~ EARREEH (K3 36(d)) - (1,752012) - - (1,192) (4427) - - (1,757,631)
Transfers Ex 51 - - 6,09 543 - 6,690) - -
Disposals e (18,185) - (4,534) (5,533) (650) (6,852) - (609)  (36,363)
At 315t December 2007 RoBBLELZA=t-R 751762 2217063 674933 1854470 63,055 4739 112788 B84 5,742,654

Accumulated depreciation ZRiE
At st January 2007 RZFZt5-A-A 133340 414720 73668 475621 21,575 21,140 - 9056 1,149,120
Eichange diferences EiER 11,114 26,656 6,170 4021 1,901 1419 - 920 88391
Charge forthe year TEEHE 29,530 41,019 13937 110840 9476 4752 - 275 212310
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36(c)  HEMEAR (Hizk36(0) (2,077) - - (347) (860) (296) - - (3,580)
Tollroadsrestructuring (note 36(d)  EAEBEH (K 36(0)) - (148833) - - (438) (2.349) - - (151,620
Disposals e (6,054) - (2.217) (3,334) (592) (5,680) - (547)  (18424)
At 315t December 2007 RoBBLELZA=T-A 165853 333562 91558 622,991 31,062 18,986 - 12185 1,276,197

Net book value FEFE

At 315t December 2007 W-Z2BLE+-A=t-0 585909 1,883,501 583375 1,31479 31,993 25,753 112,788 11659 4,466,457
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15.Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d) 15. 9% - RERRHE (&)
Leasehold
Leased improvement,
Toll berth Pot  Plantand fumitureand Motor - Construction
Buildings r0ads improvement ~ faclities  machinery  equipment  vehicles i progress Others Total
HEn%
£
A BRER ik
BY KEAR  gE  AOR G2 B REIR Ef aif
HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Thr Thr  TEr  TEr TR TEr TR TR TEr TiEn
Cost A
At 1st January 2006 REZERE—A—B 45009 3595857 377757 - 130097 SIS0 M43 61571 10818 5919599
Exchange differences EHER 19371 125907 - 145719 50673 1868 1507 3066 66 21763
Additions RE 66,04 34606 - - 35004 4429 7635 47691 3688 628,747
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36(c) it EMBAR (H360) = = - - - (209 (377) - (19 (609)
Acquisition of asubsidiary (note 36(b) ~ WEE—FHEAA
(HizE36(0)) 16895 - - - W0 - 2477 125 - 24080
Transfers g 157,669 - (371,757) 611,081 106,759 1157 8 (49895) - -
Disposals HE (1484) (527) - (696) (459) (946) (4903) - (257) (26,765)
At 315t December 2006 REZENE
TZh=1-H 720364 3755843 = 624964 1694473 57,549 50,702 43902 14892 6962689
Accumulated depreciation 2EE
At 1t January 2006 RIZERNE-A-H 8% 357601 44401 - 30 13542 18564 - 6510 917214
Exchange differences EHER 3991 13325 - 2345 16,264 627 662 - B 38
Charge for the year KEEHE 3486 44305 SR 1043 8292 5209 = W1 1
Transfers & 17359 - (M) 5930 (3230) - - - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries note 36(c) it ERBAR (H360) - - - - - (140) on) - B (416)
Disposals irt= (5450) (511) - (151) (339) (746) (3022 - (222) (13500)
At 315t December 2006 RIZE/E
T-h=1-H 133340 414720 = 73668 475621 1575 21,140 - 9050 1,149,120
Nethook value RERE
At 315t December 2006 RZE/E
T-h=1-H 58704 334113 S 55120 1218852 35974 29562 43902 586 5813569
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15. 903 ~ BB KRR E (E)

Company AAT
Leasehold
improvement,
furniture and Motor
equipment vehicles Total
HEWEEE -
FERRRE RE &t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THET FHET
Cost A
At Tst January 2007 RZEELF—H—H 3,808 4,211 8,019
Exchange differences WEH =5 284 319 603
Additions NE 103 1,094 1,197
Disposal HE - (858) (858)
At 31st December 2007 R-_ZBZELF+=-A=1+—H 4,195 4,766 8,961
Accumulated depreciation RENE
At Tst January 2007 R-ZEZT+F—HF—H 1,670 2,623 4,293
Exchange differences bE 5 = %A 161 177 338
Charge for the year REEITE 1,048 407 1,455
Disposal HeE - (858) (858)
At 31st December 2007 R=-ZE+&+=-A=+—H 2,879 2,349 5,228
Net book value BREFE
At 31st December 2007 R-ZEZELF+=-A=1+—H 1,316 2,417 3,733
Cost R
At Tst January 2006 RZZEZERFE—HA—H 3,644 2,574 6,218
Exchange differences bEE 7, = &E 128 120 248
Additions INE 36 1,517 1,553
At 31st December 2006 R-TEERF+_A=+— 3,808 4,211 8,019
Accumulated depreciation 2BRTE
At 1st January 2006 RZZEERFE—HA—H 585 2372 2,957
Exchange differences [ i, = RE 41 86 127
Charge for the year REEHE 1,044 165 1,209
At 31st December 2006 RZEZEF+-_A=+—H 1,670 2,623 4,293
Net book value BREFE
At 31st December 2006 RZBERF+-A=+—H 2,138 1,588 3,726
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with undetermined future use. The land use right of which will

16.Investment property 16. 1R EW
2007 2006
—EELF ZETREF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET AT
At st January n—HA—H 383,085 370,192
Exchange differences bE N ZRE 13,822 12,893
Disposal HeE (396,907) =
At 31st December W+ZA=+—H - 383,085
Investment property represents a parcel of land located in Tianjin A Y IR RLA R T B 8 RIRTE AR IR A8 13

ZIRE - LHMEAESN TR A +=A%

expire on 13th February 2052. B
On 10th September 2007, the Group disposed of the parcel RZZEZELFNATH AEEUREBARYK
of land for a consideration of RMB395,000,000 (approximately 395,000,000 7 (#7407,216,000787C) HH &% I8 4 ©
HK$407,216,000).
17.Goodwill 17. B8
2007 2006
—EELF —ETREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET AT
At st January R—HA—H 586,050 400,746
Exchange differences PEH =58 806 710
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36(b)) W BE — KM B 2 &) (FiFE 36(b)) 184,594
Toll roads restructuring (note 36(d)) EHRE B (FiEE36(d) (76,009) =
At 31st December ®W+=—A=+—H 510,847 586,050

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units (“CGUs")

identified according to business segment.

A segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation is presented

BEREBIEIREAREMEENRSELS

fi

TXE2JEBEDENDEERME -

below.
2007 2006

ZEELF “TERF

Operation of Supply of Operation of Supply of
toll roads utilities Total toll roads utilities Total

e fitrE g fikfE
W ER RS @t WEER N st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
THET THET THET BT BT BT
The PRC wh - 510,847 510,847 75,203 510,847 586,050

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based on value-

in-use calculations.

ReEL B RIREETDREERBEBNEER

METE °

P
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17.Goodwill (Cont’d)

17.758 (&)

For the segment of supply of utilities, the calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial forecast prepared by the
management covering a forty-year operation period. The key
assumptions include revenue, cost of raw materials, staff costs and
other production costs and unchanged government supplemental
income policy which were determined by management based on
the past performance and its expectations on market development.
The growth rates of revenue for the CGUs range from 7% to 17%
for the next year, 7% for the second to fifth year and nil for the years
thereafter. The present value of cash flow projections for the CGUs
are calculated by using pre-tax discount rates ranging from 13.1% to
14.8%.

Based on the assessment test of goodwill, in the opinion of the
Directors, no impairment against the Group's goodwill as at 31st

December 2007 is considered necessary.

R ARREA M S - AT EAEAER
SRETEH - RBRBHEEEHRE+EELHMR
WA BIERFTHIE « FERZBEWA - BB
K BIRAREMAERERAE - AR
RRFNE - ERERBAERR AT SEEN
%E%ﬁﬂifzmitﬁigfﬁjé o G EEHE BRI A RF 1

ENFI%E17%  E_FEERFR%  HigR
0% ° ﬁé%iﬁhﬁﬁéméﬁ;ﬁﬂZIEJE@EFH T
13.1% 2 14.8% MBI AT IR R E

REHHEONR  EFRRBAHAEEN_ZT
tE+ A=+ —BORBELRERE -

18.Land use rights 18. T ih fiF FI#E

2007 2006
—ETLF ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET AT

In the PRC, held on: REPE - ATFARIFE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years NF10ES0FHMHEE 797,549 761,516
2007 2006
—EELHF —ETREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET BT
At 1st January n—HA—H 761,516 69,787
Exchange differences b = %A 57,391 2,243
Additions NE - 702,109
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 36(c)) HE—RKTE A 7] (B :E 36(0) (2,076) -
Amortisation B (19,282) (12,623)
At 31st December Rt+t=-—A=+—H 797,549 761,516

The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating

lease payments.

AREER L AR RIS TR R SR EFIA -
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19.Interest in subsidiaries 19. A B A R
2007 2006
—EELF ZETREF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FABT
Unlisted investments, at cost JEETMRE (?Zi}ﬂZZIX) 4,031,729 3,143,713
Advances to subsidiaries BRTHBA 3,485,593 3,150,249
7,517,322 6,293,962
The advances to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free except BRTHBA R REER - %2 (BRr2893,380,000% 7T
for the amount of HK$2,893,380,000 which carries interest at rates BNF4% 2 679%5HBIN) (ZTTRF « &) RITE
ranging from 4% to 6.79% (2006: Nil) and have no fixed repayment EIEZ A ©
terms.
Details of principal subsidiaries, which in the Directors’ opinion, EERAHAKREZEER HR =TT +F+ A
materially affect the results and/or net assets of the Group at 31st =t BRRRERKEAYEZTEMB AR ZEF
December 2007 are set out in note 41. TEERATFE4T ©
20.Interest in associates 20. ABEE N R RER
Group Company
PN L] AT
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZERLF ZEERE —BRtHF ZETRE
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT FHET FHT
Group's share of net assets REBRIGFEE
~ Listed sharesin HongKong  —fE&B L2
of Dynasty Fine Wines THEEER
Group Limited BRAA
(‘Dynasty’) B2 697,187 625,365 - =
~Listed sharesin HongKong  — BB M2
of Wah Sang Gas EL R R
Holdings Limited AR
("Wah Sang") (st ) iin
(Note (i) (PHEE () 158,261 158,261 - -
— Unlisted shares of —BHHTE S
Otis Elevator (China) (PR EE
Investment Company AR
Limited (TRRETREL])
("Otis China”) 23k EThzin 412,523 422,806 - -
— Other unlisted shares —H I EmAR,
(Note (ii)) (BREE i) 267,770 64,235 194,865 -
1,535,741 1,270,667 194,865 -
Impairment of investment REL 2 IHERE
in Wah Sang (Note () (B&EG) (158,261) (120,000) - -
1,377,480 1,150,667 194,865 -
Market value of listed shares A T{E
— Dynasty — 1% 1,729,800 1,573,560 - =
— Wah Sang —HELk (Note (i)) (Note (i)

(BFEE () (FF=E @)
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20.Interest in associates (Cont’d)

Notes:

() The audited financial statements of Wah Sang for the year ended 31st
March 2007 was announced in February 2008. Provision for impairment
of investment in Wah Sang of HK$38,261,000 was made in 2007 due to
the total equity holders’ deficit of Wah Sang as at 31st March 2007. As
of the date of this report, the trading of its shares remained suspended.
Wah Sang is continuing its business operations and actively seeking a
resumption of trading of its shares.

(i)  The Group's other unlisted shares include HK$192,638,000 representing the
Group's investment in 40% equity interest of Golden Horse Resources Limited
since the toll roads restructuring completed on 7th September 2007.

Interest in associates at 31st December 2007 included goodwill of
HK$4,107,000 (2006: HK$3,825,000). Share of associates’ taxation
for the year ended 31st December 2007 of HK$56,860,000 (2006:
HK$60,860,000) are included in the consolidated income statement

as share of profits of associates.

The Group's interest in its associates is as follows:

20. B E D R RS ()

Wi

() ERBE_TTLF=A=+—HILFEZEERIMB
BREN=_ZZN\F-_ARM - ARFELR-_TTLHF
Z A=+ AZEERFAABMY  RZEELFHRR
L2 A THRRER38,261,000087T - HEARE
BE - BODALEEE - FLEBHXVERE - LR
BERIRERFTERD -

(i) ANEBEEEMIE ETARD 251926380008 7T - HHER
AEBME-_ZTTLFNALARBEEEHTHER
Golden Horse Resources Limited 40% A% AN4E25 R 2 4% ©

R-ZTTLF+-_A=1+—0 REE AR 2R
FERGE 4,107,000 7T (Z T T /X4 £ 3,825000787T) °
HE-ZTLHF+_A=1+—"HLLFE  EEHEQ
A)BE1E 56,860,000 % 7T (=T Z 754 60,860,000 #57T)
EAIVERELES & A BlR Rt AR A 18a R -

AEEPERBE A RHRERSIT

Profit/(loss)
attributable % interest

Assets Liabilities Revenues to the Group held
AEEEMNL
Name £4 1 BE =L WA BFL(B5E) FEEE%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBxT FBxT T
2007 —EEF
Otis China BT 1,381,323 968,800 1,867,453 159,293 16.55
Dynasty T 837,147 139,960 503,475 56,576 44.82
Others EAh 1,125,787 858,017 213,669 4,782
3,344,257 1,966,777 2,584,597 220,651
2006 —ETRF
Otis China BryHTR 1,258,309 835,501 1,498,287 129,071 16.55
Dynasty F&A 750,043 124,678 499,360 52618 4482
Others Hih 427,702 325,208 162,414 (474)
2,436,054 1,285,387 2,160,061 181,215

There is no contingent liability relating to the Group's interest in the

associates, and no contingent liability of the associates themselves.

Details of associates, which in the Directors’ opinion, materially affect
the results and/or net assets of the Group at 31st December 2007

are set out in note 42.

AEENEE R RHERMELARE  BERARA
FIMERARE -

EERBHALEZEER SN _TTLF+ A
=+ B FEERBREAYE B AT ZFEH
HFTEE42
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21.Interest in jointly controlled entities

21 AR EEFIEEES

2007 2006

—EZtF —ETXREF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FABIT

Group's share of net assets AEEELFEE 764,181 91,903

The Group's interest in its jointly controlled entities, all of which are

unlisted, is as follows:

THRAE

¢

=

BRARZEGEE (2ERIELD) R

Profit/(loss)

Current Non-current Current Non-current attributable to

assets assets liabilities liabilities Revenues the Group

FRa FRE AEEERS

REEE EE RBEE af KA &R (EBR)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FHET FHET TET  TEn THET

As at 315t December 2007 RZEZ+F+=A=1+—H 177,790 812,865 13 226,461 124,444 (9,831)
As at 31st December 2006 RZZEER F+=A=+—H 63,718 116,441 88,256 - 116,710 (11,779)

There is no contingent liability relating to the Group's interest in the

jointly controlled entities, and no contingent liability of the jointly

controlled entities themselves.

Details of the jointly controlled entities are set out in note 43.

AREEN KRG BRI ERAAE - HEE
HERAS IESARE -

HEESE 2 FHEH M43

22. Available-for-sale financial assets 2. HHEMBEE

2007 2006

—EELF TEERE

HK$'000 HKS'000

FHET AT

At 1st January Kn—H—H 108,161 110,495
Exchange differences b =%8 8,195 1,236

Addition INE 345

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36(c)) HEK B AT (Mt 36(c) - (146)
Disposal k=) (9,584) (3/424)
At 31st December Rt+t—A=+—H 107,117 108,161

The available-for-sale financial assets are principally unlisted equity

in certain entities established and operating in the PRC. They are

mainly denominated in Renminbi.

These unlisted equity investments of the Group are not carried at fair

value but at cost less any accumulated impairment losses because

they do not have a quoted market price in an active market and

the Directors consider that performing valuation for these unlisted

equity investments will involve cost that are out of proportion to its

value to the shareholders of the Company.

AHEENBEELIERERERIMEENETE
BHZE Lk - TEAARKIIE -

REB LS IE E TSR EWIHRATEERTIE -
SRR RTEREE R - RESELEE
BN RENEER/UZETI LHRAREET
MEFEERRBRRMN S T LEELH 2B
e

P
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23.Inventories 23.17 8
2007 2006
—ETLF ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
Raw materials B 5,863 5,402
Work in progress s a 47 4,571
Finished goods UK A 250 1,522
Consumable stocks HEFE 938 1,211
7,098 12,706

24.Amounts due from associates and jointly controlled
entities

The balances are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed repayment
terms and are mainly denominated in Renminbi.

As at 31st December 2007 and 2006, all the receivable balances

were fully performing.

25.Amounts due from/(to) related companies, minority
shareholders and investee companies

24 EHE A TR AR ERKE
ZERBABEN RERYEETMEFH I35
AN RMEFE o

R-ETLFR_TEF+-_A=+—H " Bt
TREKZIESETEREA -

25. Y (B BEAR - PBRRERER
BERREA

2007 2006

—EELHF ZETRF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FATT

Amounts due from related companies (note (i) JFEE LAt B 2R /1 ) R (AT 5 () 21,748 24,332
Amount due from a minority shareholder (note (i) FEU — & DB ARER 2k TE (BTEE G)) - 12,382
Amounts due from investee companies (notes (i) & (iii) FEUZIEE A BIFIA (MEEE () K (i) 127,738 100,871
Amounts due to related companies (note (i) JEAHREE A B kI8 (BTEE i) (141,852) (336,244)
Amounts due to minority shareholders (note (i) RIS DB B FRE (R (i) (16,894) (197,480)

Notes: P& -

(i) The balances are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed
repayment terms and are mainly denominated in Renminbi.
As at 31st December 2007 and 2006, all the balances were fully
performing.

(i) The balances are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed
repayment terms and are mainly denominated in Renminbi
except that approximately HK$226 million payable as at 31st
December 2006 for the acquisition of land use rights, berths and
railways were settled in May 2007.

(iii

The amounts due from investee companies is of good credit
quality in view of their operational profitability and sufficiency of
cash for settlement.

() ZEEHAERR 2RV ERTEEEFH
FEUARKINE R_BEZLFR_ZTTF
+TZRA=+—H ' FIE&ERHIETEREL -

(i) RSHEHBERT REREBRTERSR I
FEUARBIE ER_ZZEF+A
=+ — Bt T e AR - TR R 24
226000000 BTTER =TT LFRAZN -

(i) BIBFZIRE N A2 8= BRI A
SREREE  BRZEEQT
BE=-

ENRREEE 2R
AIFBEABRIFZIE
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26.Trade receivables, other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X3 RZERERLDT
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26. BE R - HfbBIKRFIR - BERFANR

Group Company
REE PN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELF ZETREF —ETLF —ETREF
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T FE T FATT
Trade receivables FEUCE R
Fully performing (note (7)) TEEA (M) 525,389 341,445 - =
Past due but not impaired B ER{E RIFE
(note (i) (B &E (i) 188,789 137,247 - -
Impaired (note (iii)) = RUE (BT sE (i) 94,323 74,712 - =
Trade receivables — gross JEWE R — 4858 808,501 553,404 - =
Less: Provision for impairment 3 : J/{E & (94,323) (74,712) - -
Trade receivables — net W EHR—F5E
(note (iv)) (F%E (v) 714,178 478,692 - =
Other receivables, deposits  E-fh &I FRIE -
and prepayments (note (v))  1&Z& M FE R
(BfsE (v) 432,739 198,566 26,929 17,081
1,146,917 677,258 26,929 17,081
Notes: Mz :

(i) The various group companies have different credit policies which are
dependent on the requirements of the markets and the businesses
which they operate. In general, credit periods of about 30 to 90 days are
granted to customers of the segment of port services. No credit terms
are granted to customers of the segments of supply of utilities and
operation of toll roads.

As at 31st December 2007, the Group was entitled to government
supplemental income of HK$285,288,000 (2006: HK$200,626,000) which
is receivable from the Finance Bureau of TEDA as referred to in note 2(s)
(v). Annual supplemental income receivable does not have credit terms
and the amount of which is finalised subject to the checking of quantity
sold performed by the Finance Bureau subsequent to each year end.
Continuous settlements have been received by the Group throughout
the years.

(0]

P

SEAZRARFHETETRANEERR ' BT EEL
WS REBFEME - —MME - BTEORED
EENEEHNAI0RENK - AEBWES TIRE
R RS LN B EBRE S ENE S EREER -

=
N

RZET+F+—A=+—R0 ' ~AEEEEARERE
[ B I PR ERAS PR 2(5) (v) Pt 22 TR 47 B LA 285,288,000
BT (=TT /N ¢ 20062600078 7T ) ° 5 fE U 4 B Uk
AN EEEE - MERNSBEARTUBRENEGFEFLE
BETZHESZEME - AEBEBFFEFERE
LS EE o

P
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26.Trade receivables, other receivables, deposits and
prepayments (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(ii)

Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired relate to a wide
range of customers and management believes that no impairment
provision is necessary as there has not been a significant change in the
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

26.EIRE K - HtBWKIER - RERFANAR
(#&)
s+ ()
() WEHERREZ BUEKERZEC AN - B EEE
RUMEANE - BEBNRRATR2KE - HEE

ARG RERZ S FRELRERE - ZFRKERK
ZERERDITIAT

2007 2006
—BTF —TTREF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Within 30 days 30RIAA 111,389 69,193
31 to 90 days 31 REOK 20,931 18,942
91 to 180 days 91 XE 180K 14,799 12,067
Over 180 days A 180 K 41,670 37,045
188,789 137,247

(i) As at 31st December 2007, trade receivables of HK$94,323,000 (2006:

iy R=ZTLF+-_A=+—H " EK

94,323,000

HK$74,712,000) were impaired. The age and settlement track record of
individual receivables are considered in the review for their impairment.
The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

TC(ZFTRF 74,712,000 77T ) ER(E © IR ERIFE
WERIBZ MER - B2 REHRR RERTEDLE -
FEWGRIE Z BRECIA T

2007 2006
—EELHF —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Within 30 days 30 RAA 1,164 1,260
31 to 90 days 31 RE0 K 169 1,242
91 to 180 days 91 RE 180K 342 916
Over 180 days Bi@ 180 K 92,648 71,294
94,323 74,712
Movements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as ERER 2 REEESENT
follows:
2007 2006
—EELF —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
At 1st January W—A—H 74,712 69,480
Exchange differences [ 5 =58 6,012 2,541
Provision made during the year FER R 16,392 (2,588)
Write off against receivable FEURERIE R 5H (2,793) (4,854)
Acquisition of a subsidiary U BE —KHT B A Al - 10,133
At 31st December W+=A=+—8H 94,323 74,712

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have
been included in general and administrative expenses in the income
statement. Amounts charged to the provision account are generally
written off when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

FhE BB R RIS K R R 2 BB E ST AR SRIRN Z — &
RATEXZ M » RBERT RN EE RN EH TS K EE
SR SRS
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26.Trade receivables, other receivables, deposits and
prepayments (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(iv) The ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables (net of provisions) is

26 BRNER - HtbEWRATE - RERFAARK

(&)

MieE : (&)

(v AEERKERORERBEMBR) ZREIMTOT

as follows:
2007 2006
—EELHF —ETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Within 30 days 30RIAR 503,446 366,557
31 to 90 days 3T REIOKXR 32,768 18,329
91 to 180 days 91 RE 180K 14,814 10,031
Over 180 days B3 180 K 163,150 83,775
714,178 478,692

(v) As at 31st December 2007 and 2006, all other receivables were fully
performing.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits approximate their fair value and are mainly denominated
in Renminbi. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the fair value of the receivable mentioned above. The Group

does not hold any collateral as security.

27.Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

v REBERLFR-FERFT-A=+—RH AL

FEWGRIRIGE e 2 ELD °

JEUE R ~ B RRFIARIZS 2 REEEEATE

BE  TEUARBIIE - RREBRE

TBASH) &

SEERRA L2 RUGRIEAFEE - AEEILHE

FETMRERERZERR -

27. RAVEEEBERIRNUBEE

2007 2006

—EELF —EER
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FATT
Listed shares in Hong Kong Bt EHRG 15,091 12,542
Listed shares in the PRC P ET AR 13,813 55,432
Unlisted funds in the PRC FREFEETES 277,513 109,312
306,417 177,286
Market values of listed shares EmigpzmE 28,904 67,974

The balances are denominated in Renminbi except for
approximately HK$15,091,000 (2006: HK$12,542,000) which is

denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The fair value of all listed shares are based on their current bid
prices in an active market. The fair value of unlisted funds are based
on their net asset values quoted by the relevant investment trust/

securities companies.

FZERBRAAREDIE » HEL15,091,0008 T( =

7N 112,542,000 70 ) LA TTHIME ©

P L 2 A HEERBERNART S ERE
REE - FLHESZAFEEREENGRIRE

e

AR EEFEHE -

P
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28.Cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank balance 28.RERBREEEY  TRFBITERR=

and time deposits with maturity over three months

18 A A LR ERER

Group Company
RE ¥ N
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELHF ZETRF —EELF ZETRF
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T FET AT
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 2,193,298 1,796,300 20,100 6,508
Time deposits in bank with =& B LAREIER
maturity less than H9E BB 17Kk
three months 438,054 976,790 61,537 41,748
Balances with other RE AL & Bk
financial institutions 217 24,489 77,650 - -
Cash and cash equivalents BeMEeEEY 2,655,841 2,850,740 81,637 48,256
Restricted bank balance PR GIIRTTAEER - 28,640 - -
Time deposits in bank with =& A LA L3
maturity over three months A E BRTE R 580,341 424,898 14,002 20,672
3,236,182 3,304,278 95,639 68,928
Maximum exposure to EERZNERS
credit risk =E&E 3,235,958 3,304,074 95,619 68,834

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, restricted
bank balance and time deposits with maturity over three months
approximate their fair value and are mainly denominated in

Renminbi.

The effective interest rates on cash at bank and time deposits in
bank range from 0.72% to 4.14% per annum (2006: 0.17% to 3.53%
per annum); these deposits have maturity from 3 to 356 days.

RehReEEY  ZREIRTEHRR =10/ LE
HNERFRNRAEEEAFEERS - TEUA
R¥7IME -

RITRE RRITEBRTFRZEREFNENT072% %
414% (ZZTZRNFE « FRENTF017%FE3.53%) -+ Ut
EERZEHANTFIREI56K o

29.Share capital 29. R A

Number of shares

RHEE
(thousands) HK$'000
(FHR) Tt
At 1st January 2006 RZZTTRF—H—H 910,656 91,066
Issue of shares TR D 20,000 2,000
Exercise of share options (note (c)) 1T RN AE (PR (0) 500 50
Conversion of convertible bonds (note (a)) Hga gk ES (3T Q) 51,282 5,128
At 31st December 2006 R-TBEF+-_A=+—H 982,438 98,244
Exercise of share options (note (c)) TR ARAE (BT () 1,900 190
Conversion of convertible bonds (note (a)) HB|AaRES (M3 Q) 51,282 5,128

At 31st December 2007 N-_ZEEZL+F+-_H=+—H 1,035,620 103,562
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29.Share capital (Cont’d)

The authorised share capital of the Company is HK$300,000,000,
comprising 3,000 million shares (2006: 3,000 million shares) with a
par value of HKS$0.10 per share (2006: HKS0.10 per share). All issued
shares are fully paid.

@)

On 19th December 2005, the Group issued zero coupon
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$400 million (which was changed to RMB400 million on 28th
December 2006) (the “Bonds”). On 2nd February, 6th March and
7th May 2007, holders of the Bonds with face value of RMB200
million exercised their option to convert the Bonds into shares
of the Company by subscribing for a total of 51,282,049 new
shares of the Company at HK$3.9 each.

The shares issued arising from (a) above rank pari passu with the
existing shares.

The Company had an equity settled share option scheme (the
"Old Scheme”) approved in an extraordinary general meeting
on 22nd November 1997 under which the Directors might, at
their discretion and within 10 years from the approval date,
invite any employees or executive Directors of the Group to
take up options to subscribe for shares in the Company subject
to the terms and conditions stipulated in the Old Scheme.
The Company operated the Old Scheme for the purpose of
promoting additional commitment and dedication to the
long term objectives of the Group by the participants. The
cash consideration payable for each grant was HKS1. The
Old Scheme was terminated on 25th May 2007 but the share
option granted continued to be valid and exercisable until the
expiration of the share options on 21st November 2007.

Annual Report 2007 —EEA4F4F R

29. 2 (%)

PiN/N
B0I0BT(ZEE
3,000,000,000 % (==

Al Z 3% TF B 7K 4300,000,00058 7T 0 B &R T
NE: BREEI0E ) &£
734E : 3,000,000,000 A% ) 485K ©

FIEBETROEEHRE -

(a)
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A /3400,000,0008 TT(RZZEERFT_AZ+N
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#([EH]D  -RZTTEF-_A=H = AXH
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29.Share capital (Cont'd)

(b) (Contd)

The Company has adopted an equity settled share option
scheme (the "New Scheme") on 25th May 2007 under which
the Directors may, at their discretion and within 10 years from
the approval date, offer to grant options to the participants
pursuant to the criteria set out in the New Scheme. The
Company operates the New Scheme for the purpose of
providing the Company with a flexible means of giving
incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or
providing benefits to the participants. The grant will expire on
24th May 2017. The cash consideration payable for each grant is
HKS1.

Details of the options accepted subsequent to year end are set

out in note 38(c).

Movements in the number of share options outstanding during
the year are as follows:

29.f& < (4&)
(b) (&)

RRBRR-FZLFH A =+ I BRAARARES
BZBEBRESS(THE ) Eit EFAE
B B IR+ F AIRIR TRt BIPTEL 2 (5
HR2EATZORERE - NABMETH
2 BEARRARRHEAIEEAZ2EALEAT
®E- M HEk SRKAESREERN %
B REBEN_T—LFRAA-THBER °
RhEShERERN ZRERER 1T

o

BN FHEBEREW 2 BREBE M T
38(c) °

© FA - HARITEBRERE ZZBIT

2007 2006
—¥RLE “TTAF

Average exercise Average exercise
price in HKS per share Number of options  price in HKS per share Number of options

BRRGZ BRkH 2

PR TTRE fBREHE FEETITRE BIREHE

At 1st January ®—A—H 3.100 4,400,000 4029 96,900,000
Exercised Bt 3.100 (1,900,000) 3.100 (500,000)
Lapsed B 3,100 (2,500,000) 4078 (92,000,000)
At 315t December B+=-A=+—H - 3.100 4,400,000

From 11th to 21st May 2007, options for 1,900,000 shares (2006:
500,000 shares) were exercised at the price of HKS$3.1 each. The
related weighted average closing share price at the date of
exercise was HK$7.84 (2006: HK$6.2) per share.

R=ZTZt+tFRA+—HZ==+—H 1,900,000
B (ZZZ 754 : 500,000 B%) B 1n 2 RE AR TE B A%
3BT BRETE - RIIEER - BREZKRG
MEFHR M EATRARRD 7848T (ZTT R
F:6287T) °
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30.Reserves 30.f#%fE
Group REE
Share based
Capital Share  General Statutory payment Exchange  Retained
feserve  premium  reserve  reserves  reserve  reserve  eamings Total
DY GE]
B4R RORE -REE LERE EENGR EXRE REEF fit
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
TEr TEx  TEr  TEx  FEx  FEx  TEx  TEx
At Tst January 2006 R-ZE 5—A—-H 9430 4247684 86,893 202918 - 122604 1080715 5750244
Issue of shares iRkt
~ Conversion of convertible bonds — BB ES - 264676 - - - - - 264676
- Exercise of share options —{T{FERkE = 1,500 = = = = - 1,500
Acquisition of a subsidiary e EllENG - 111,000 - - - - - 111,000
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36(c)) HEMBAR (FizE36() (185) - 122 = - (1915) = (1978)
Profit for the year FERT - - - - - - 55751 552,751
Dividends RE - - - - - - (83,387) (83,387)
Transfers B - - 374 35,500 - - (35,874) -
Share based payments MR BERS AT - - - - 2377 - - 2377
Currency translation differences EHnEET 9 = - - - 210369 - 210462
At31st December 2006 RZZE E+=A=1—H 9,338 4624800 87,389 238418 2377 331,058 1,514,205 6,807,645
Issue of shares Bl
~ Conversion of convertible bonds — BRI ES - 209,581 - - - - - 209,581
- Bxercise of share options — BB - 5,700 - - - - - 5,700
Profit for the year EERA - - - - - - 690301 690,301
Dividends sy - - - - - - (103,562) (103,562)
Transfers B - - - 53848 - - (53,848) -
Share based payments MR BERS AT - - - - 1,836 - - 1,836
Currency translation differences EEnEEE - - - - - 509,19 - 509,19
At 31st December 2007 R_EE+tE+-A=1t—-H 9,338 4,840,141 87,389 292,266 4213 840,254 2,047,096 8,120,697
2007 proposed final dividend “EERLEREERIRS 57,995
Balance after 2007 proposed MR —BEHFEE
final dividend RERE R 8,062,702
8,120,697
() Retained earnings attributable to associates and accumulated (@) REEERRRIRE BT KRS LEEHZEELN

losses attributable to jointly controlled entities amounts to
HK$534,093,000 (2006: HK$532,108,000) and HK$43,337,000
(2006: HKS$31,313,000) respectively. All other reserves of the
Group are dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries.

(b) Statutory reserves and general reserves are reserves required by
the relevant PRC laws applicable to the Group's subsidiaries and
cannot be used for distribution in the form of cash dividends.

2FEEED B A 534,093,0008 70 (ZZT/N4F ¢
532,108,000 78 7T ) 543,337,000/ 78 (ZEZ /N 4+
31,313,000/ 7T ) © AKE 2 2 EE A FEET R A
AE R EMER A B2 B SRR BRE

EEREBERHEEARBEANASENEA
Bl 2B BARREFTRT 2 6 o Ui
TEREANKERERE -
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30.Reserves (Cont’d) 30. %% (&)

() According to the Articles of Association of each of the Group's (c

subsidiaries established in the PRC, a percentage of net profit as
reported in the PRC statutory accounts must be appropriated
to reserve fund and enterprise expansion reserve, both of
which are classified under statutory reserves. The percentage
of appropriation is determined at the discretion of the board
of directors of the respective subsidiaries. The reserve fund can
be used to set off accumulated losses whilst the enterprise
expansion reserve can be used for expansion of production
facilities or increase in capital.

) RBAREBEEPBIKZ B AR 2 EREIZA

8 AREAERA A2HOATNEEE S
BRAERBEMEFHRES (BRERETER
) - ERASLLHBRMBEARNEZERIE
EE - R REREEEEE  MEERR
Her BIERAEERERIEMER -

Company AT
Exchange Share Retained
reserve premium earnings Total
LA R E REEF &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FE T FHET FHET
At 1st January 2006 RZTTRF
—H—H 93,165 4,247,684 300,495 4,641,344
Issue of shares BITRMD
— Conversion of — Hian s
convertible bonds RE &2 - 264,676 - 264,676
~ Exercise of share options — TR - 1,500 - 1,500
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—MK B AR = 111,000 = 111,000
Loss for the year FEEE = = (824) (824)
Dividends 85\ = = (83,387) (83,387)
Currency translation differences &E##E =28 168,502 - - 168,502
At 31st December 2006 R-ZEREF
+=-—A=+—H 261,667 4,624,860 216,284 5,102,811
Issue of shares BITRMGD
— Conversion of — Hians
convertible bonds e - 209,581 - 209,581
— Exercise of share options — (TSR A - 5,700 - 5,700
Profit for the year Syl - - 1,084,274 1,084,274
Dividends A% B - - (103,562) (103,562)
Currency translation differences & #E =28 429,062 - - 429,062
At 31st December RITTLF
2007 +=—A=+—H 690,729 4,840,141 1,196,996 6,727,866
2007 proposed final dividend ~ —ZFZ+4F
BEEARHRE 57,995
Balance after 2007 proposed Nk —EEFE3
final dividend REARL B AR A AR 6,669,871

6,727,866
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31.Borrowings 31.f8 8
Group Company
REE RAF
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EZEt ZEEX —EZ2t ZETX
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FABIT FET FABIT
Non-current JEENER
Convertible bonds (note (i)) AIARE S (FIRE ) - 211,803 - =
Bank borrowings RITIEE
— Secured (note (i) — G A (I Gi)) - 594,030 - =
— Unsecured — AR 1,245,580 908,652 855,580 908,652
1,245,580 1,714,485 855,580 908,652
Current BN ER
Bank borrowings RITEE
Current portion of long term ~ REISRITEE
bank borrowings 2 BNERER 7
— Secured (note (ii)) — B (PR i) - 9,453 - =
Short term bank borrowings 2 HASRITEE
— Secured — G - 9,950 - =
— Unsecured — IR 58,389 284,558 58,389 142,389
Loans from a minority RE—BLVHIRE
shareholder (note (jii)) K9 58 (B & Gii)) 165,447 259,853 - =
223,836 563,814 58,389 142,389
Total borrowings BERE 1,469,416 2,278,299 913,969 1,051,041

The carrying amounts of all bank borrowings approximate their fair

va

lues.

Notes:

(iii

All outstanding zero coupon convertible bonds with face value
of RMB200 million as at 31st December 2006 were converted
into 51,282,049 shares of the Company at a conversion price of
HK$3.90 per share in 2007. The balance of the convertible bonds
was transferred to the share capital and share premium upon

conversion accordingly.

As at 31st December 2006, the secured bank borrowings were
secured by a bank deposit of approximately HK$28,640,000, toll
revenue arising from the operation of Jinbin Expressway and

equity interests in certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Loans from a minority shareholder are unsecured, have no fixed

terms of repayment and carry interest at 6.4% per annum.

FERITIEEZ FREESE AT EERE

MIEE

(i)

(ifi)

FBER=ZZEAFE+_A=1t—HHRLBRZET
F R A AR E 77 (E1E & A K # 200,000,000 7T )
ERZZELFERABEFRIOBTRAR
51,282 049BR AR RIAR D o RIHAPRE ST 2 SRR
HIE B RE R B S R AN R AR I3 (E

RZZBTAF+_A=+—8 FAHEBRITEE
28,640,000 T 2 IRITIFK « LEREBERER
BEEZERBRARREBRETHB AR ZK
IE AR

RE—BVBBRROERAEKIT - EETEEN
B R IRE T 6.4% 5T B ©
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31.Borrowings (Cont’d)

31.168 (%)

The maturity of bank borrowings is as follows: RITIEE ZEMEROT
Group Company
rEE PN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EEL TR —EEt TR
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHET FABIT
Bank borrowings: RITEE
Within one year —FR 58,389 303,961 58,389 142,389
In the second year g - 73,065 - 53,164
In the third to fifth E=FFENF
years inclusive (EEMF
BIEEAN) 1,245,580 964,940 855,580 855,488
After the fifth year FERFLAE - 464,677 - -
1,303,969 1,806,643 913,969 1,051,041

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the

following currencies:

EENREENL FIEEIIE

Group Company
REE RAF
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EEL —ETER —EEL ZEER
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS'000
FHBxT T FHBT AT
Bank borrowings: IRITEE -
Renminbi AR - 755,602 - -
US dollar =TT - 54,600 - 54,600
HK dollar BT 1,303,969 996,441 913,969 996,441
1,303,969 1,806,643 913,969 1,051,041
Convertible bonds: AT AR ES
Renminbi AREE - 211,803 - -
Loans from a minority RKE—BDH
shareholder: RERAER
Renminbi NG 165,447 259,853 - -
1,469,416 2,278,299 913,969 1,051,041

The effective interest rates of bank borrowings at the balance sheet

date are as follows:

REHER  RITEEZERAENAT

Group Company
EE AT
2007 2006 2007 2006
—z2t —TTX 2t —TEX
% % % %
Bank borrowings: IRITEE -

Renminbi ARE - 598 - =
US dollar ETT - 5.89 - 5.89
HK dollar BT 4.20 450 4.26 450
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32.Deferred taxation 32 REAERIE
2007 2006
—ETLF —ETRAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Deferred tax assets: RIEFIIAEEE ¢
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered after — R+ @ A&
more than 12 months 8] 2 EIEFR IR & BE (8,899) (4,960)
Deferred tax liabilities: RERIBEE ¢
— Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after —BRT @A ®%REE
more than 12 months ZIREFIE S (& 4,347 63,456
— Deferred tax liabilities to be settled within —BRT @A RNEE
12 months ZIREBIEA R 35,457 30,340
39,804 93,796
Deferred tax liabilities, net EEHIB B EFE 30,905 88,836

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method using tax rates of the relevant subsidiaries
applicable to the period when the asset is expected to be realised or
the liability to be settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset tax assets against tax liabilities and when

the deferred taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.

The net movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

BERIERA R EEN AR E AR EREEZR K
BEAHEZHRMERZHE (REHHERMKE
BEM) (ERBURE -

BERATRENASRAEEERAREERR - MiET
B K (Rl — BA TR MR - R R] KR A TR & B B A
TEEE R -

BRIETIRRR B 2 BT ¢

2007 2006

ZEELF —ETRF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET T T

At 1st January m—A—H8 88,836 75311
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36(b)) U fE — BB~ 7] (B9 =E 36(b)) - 4,655
Toll roads restructuring (note 36(d)) B/AN BB (FisE36(d) (53,520) =
Transfer from tax payable ER e EATIE 11,701 =

Deferred tax (credited)/charged to FEEEE Gt A) /B

income statement (note 11) RAERIE (FHEE11) (20,382) 10,852
Exchange differences b 5 =58 4,270 (1,982)
At 315t December R+=ZA=+—H 30,905 88,836

P

149




Tianjin Development Holdings Limited K23 RIERER DT
Annual Report 2007 —ZEZHFFH

150

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT RS R MY aE

32.Deferred taxation (Cont’d) 32 EERLIE (&)

EAETIRE E M B BERFRNZ 28 CRET KRR AR
BRAEHZ AR T

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year,
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within

the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities BEEBEAE
Revaluation of
Accelerated Accrued investment
depreciation income property Total
InERITE Bt EfHREWME &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAIT T FAT FAIT
At st January 2006 R-ZEEAE—HA—A 71303 24,258 5112 100673
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — KM B A A (208) 10,049 = 9,841
Deferred tax charged to EIES IR
income statement FEIERLIA 301 14,138 = 14,439
Exchange differences EH Z=RE 2,483 1,426 178 4,087
At 31st December 2006 RIZZTRNF
+=A=+—8 73,879 49,871 5,290 129,040
Toll roads restructuring FHWEBE
(note 36(d)) (B = 36(d)) (53,520 - - (53,520)
Transfer from/(to) tax payable & H /(Z) B FHE 28,774 (11,593) (5,480) 11,701
Deferred tax charged to B ARFIBREY
income statement (note) RIEFIE (MIRE) 368 10,360 - 10,728
Exchange differences bR ERE 4,564 3,632 190 8,386
At 31st December 2007 RZTTLF
+=A=+—8 54,065 52,270 - 106,335
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32.Deferred taxation (Cont'd) 32 EERIIE ()
Deferred tax assets BELEBIRERE

Accelerated

depreciation Provisions Total
InERE B’ &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T8I BT T
At st January 2006 RZZTZEF—HA—H 2,715 22,647 25,362
Acquisition of a subsidiary WhE—KMEB AR - 5,186 5,186
Deferred tax credited to income EE&ERET AR
statement RIERR IR 95 3,492 3,587
Exchange differences MEH =5 % 5973 6,069
At 31st December 2006 RZZETRF+=A=1+—H 2,906 37,298 40,204
Deferred tax credited to income TEE&RET AR
statement (note) RIEFIE (MIRE) 2,174 28,936 31,110
Exchange differences bR ERE 294 3,822 4,116
At 31st December 2007 RZBBLF+=HA=+—H 5,374 70,056 75,430
Note: Bff5E
The net deferred tax credited to income statement was mainly related to STABSREERIEFRTIZERNAKEE THBEAR
the change in PRC tax rate according to the New CIT Law effective from 1st FEBEANTECEMERER 2T N\F—A— B4R
January 2008 for certain subsidiaries of the Group. IR 2 ) o
There is no material unprovided deferred taxation at 31st December R-ZEZLF+_A=+—0  AEEBELFEXR
2007 (2006: Nil). AMELBEBEOEERIR (ZTTRF ) °
33.Trade payables 33.BHER
The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables is as follows: REBENERORROMAT
2007 2006
—EELF —ETREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Within 30 days 30 KAA 18,354 24,738
31 to 90 days 31 RE 90K 24,081 14,142
91 to 180 days 91 RZE 180K 7,419 13,931
Over 180 days i@ 180 K 136,738 168,312
186,592 221,123
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their fair value EAEFHNEREEEATEERS TEUARE

and are mainly denominated in Renminbi. (& -
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34.0perating lease commitments 34. K& HAAIE
Group Company
rEE b NG|
2007 2006 2007 2006
i —E2ER —EEt ZETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET BT FHET T T
Land and buildings T RAEF
Not later than one year A —F 6,547 7,295 2,923 3,944
Later than one year and Ham—F{E
not later than five years TBBAF 1,854 5474 688 2,013
Later than five years hFE - 210 - =
8,401 12,979 3,611 5,957
Plants, pipelines and networks ~ BRE ~ & 38 M A4S
(Note) (M%)
Not later than one year B —F 25,270 30,748 - =
Later than one year and iR —4F
not later than five years BTEBBRSE 48,005 28,847 - -
73,275 59,595 - -
81,676 72,574 3,611 5957
Note:  All the plants, pipelines and networks are leased from state-owned Mz PIERE  BEREKRHEEARERX -
enterprises.
35.Capital commitments 35. B AEE
Group
rEE
2007 2006
ZETLF —ETREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Authorised but not contracted for in respect of B IRAEERETL)
— Improvements on plant and machinery — B KRS 2 & TA 424,561 380,863
Contracted but not provided for in respect of EEENEES
— Improvements on plant and machinery — B Rias 2 s g 48,118 29,527
— Acquisition of hotels (note) — W B S (M) 865,950 -
— Investment in jointly controlled entities —RERESI B 2 IEE 562,226 504,838
1,476,294 534,365

Note:

In December 2007, the Group entered into agreements to acquire interests in

hotels (notes 38(a) and 38(b)).

B

#38(a) & 38(b)) °

REZBLE+F - AREBERT I IREE S a2 ek (K
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36.Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement 36.AERERMEBRME
(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash generated from (a) ABE B FBARE T > B LA FEEL R
operations
2007 2006
—ETtEHF ZEEREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Operating profit FESvingl 789,379 746,938
Adjustments for: TERBIVEL FHEE -
Interest income FLEMA (53,352) (148,727)
Depreciation e 212,310 208,274
Amortisation BN 19,282 12,623
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWF  BREREEZ
plant and equipment (note) EEFEE (MisE) 14,202 12,062
Gain on disposal of investment property I ERE Y 2 W (10,309) =
Unrealised gain on financial assets RATEERBERIRY
at fair value through profit or loss WA E 2 KRR - (4,194)
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment FEM S SRR B B (E14)
of trade receivables 16,392 (2,588)
Net exchange gain b i 2 5 58 (47,671) (37,533)
Gain on deemed disposal of partial BRIELEMB AR
interest in subsidiaries ot 2 W - (109,235)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries, HEMBAR - e e kLR
associates and jointly controlled entities EHEREEE (W) FE 18,678 (22,993)
Provision for impairment of investment in R—REERRIRE 2
an associate B 38,261 =
Gain on toll roads restructuring SHKEER 2 W (165,913) =
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale o S ATt B B A
financial assets B2 W (10,429) (333)
Share based payments VARG (R BT 2 3R 2,924 3,785
Changes in working capital: LEEHE)
Inventories e (1,121) (3,680)
Trade receivables FEUCE R (227,002) (58,642)
Other receivables, deposits EAbEYGRIE « e
and prepayments EEIREN (236,872) (38,748)
Financial assets at fair value through RAFEEEBERS R
profit or loss BB TS B E (117,419) (3:462)
Trade payables FERTER (50,495) 25,933
Other payables and accruals E A R RIE R EET B A 108,656 153,561
Completed properties held for sale FHELE 2B AR - 5,064
Net amounts due from the ultimate FEMIE AR R A B
holding company FRIRFRE - 207
Net amounts due to/(from) related PR (W) BRiE A R R D
companies and minority shareholders & 3R /IR F R 51,313 (8,230)

Net cash generated from operations KE XSRS TR 350,814 730,082
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36. Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement (Cont’d)

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash generated from

operations (Cont’d)

Note:  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

comprise:

e -

36. mERTMBRME (H)

(a) A& HFESERB R M A TR (F)

HEWE - BE RREMBFERSRE

2007 2006
—EEts = 1N
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TAT
Proceeds from sales HEFTS A 3,266 1,208
Less: Net book amount B BREDFE (17,940) (13,265)
Exchange differences PN ZERE 472 (5)
Loss on disposal HEEE (14,202) (12,062)
(b) Acquisition of a subsidiary (b) WIE—Z B A A
2007 2006
—EELF ZEERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET BT
Net assets acquired EBAFEE
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) E RN E A AR, - 224,080
Inventories e - 334
Trade receivables R E R - 135,954
Other receivables, deposits and B fib R MRS
prepayments Be RIBARK - 12,222
Cash and cash equivalents Re RS EEY - 193,288
Amounts due from related companies FEUL RS A AI5RIA - 11,224
Trade payables FERTER - (179,398)
Other payables and accruals E b fETRIE K FERT B A - (47,944)
Amounts due to related companies T A& A RIFIA - (61,183)
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFE BB E - (1,229)
Loans from a minority shareholder KB DERRAIE R - (24,280)
Net deferred tax liability (note 32) RIERIR B EF 5 (fEE32) - (4,655)
Net assets BEFE - 258,413
Minority interests D ERR R ER - (23,407)
- 235,006
Goodwill on acquisition (note 17) BRANE 2mE (MF17) - 184,594
- 419,600
Satisfied by: SRAAR
Cash paid EfHRE - 306,600
Fair value of shares issued BEITRHN 2 AFEE - 113,000
- 419,600
Analysis of net cash outflow in respect BRAKE—RELAT
of acquisition of a subsidiary: 2B e R FEAN
Cash paid BfE2 - (306,600)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BEEARE MR EEY - 193,288
Net cash outflow in respect of the ERAWEEMT B AR
acquisition of a subsidiary ZBRE - (113,312)
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36. mERTMBRME (H)

2007 2006
—EBTEHF ZETREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Net assets disposed BHEEETE
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) W - R IR (HdaE15) 10,975 189
Land use rights (note 18) -t fsh R (FitEE18) 2,076 =
Available-for-sale financial assets (note 22) A it &S B i & B (B 22) - 146
Inventories e 7,520 34
Trade receivables FEUCE R 797 584
Other receivables, deposits HEAbEWGRIE - e
and prepayments EEIREN 9,216 35,733
Completed properties held for sale ESERR 2 5B - 1,320
Cash and cash equivalent ReRBLEEY 20 33,602
Trade payables JERTER (337) =
Other payables and accruals E b T RIE K ERT B A (5,681) (17,074)
Current income tax liabilities BVEAFTS BB & - (69)
Minority interests DEIRER R (8,340) (51)
Net assets disposed BEHEFEE 16,246 54,414
Other reserves released upon disposal SR 2 HAb RS - (1,978)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKBARZ (B18) s (15,684) 22,993
562 75429
Satisfied by: AR
Cash received 2H3RE 562 69,136
Cash to be received MR & - 6,293
562 75429
Analysis of net cash inflow in respect ERLEMRBARIZESRA
of disposal of subsidiaries: SFRADAT -
Cash received BE £ 562 69,136
Cash and cash equivalents disposed BEHERE KRESEEY (20) (33,602)
Net cash inflow in respect of disposal ERLEMB AT
of subsidiaries ZBRERANFE 542 35,534
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36. Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement (Cont’d)

(d) Toll roads restructuring

(e)

(d) EAWEEE

36. ZERTMBRME (H)

2007 2006
—EELHF ZETREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T TT
Net assets disposed BEHEFEE
Goodwill (note 17) & (feE17) (76,009) -
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) W - RS IR (FfdRE15) (1,606,011) -
Amount due from associates JEUES: & A B 5RIR (7,186) =
Trade receivables FEME X (5,623) =
Other receivables, deposits EAbEYGRIE « e RIFBRRK
and prepayments (2,533) -
Cash and cash equivalent ReRBSEFEY (13,526) -
Other payables and accruals E A I R EET B A 47,080 -
Amounts due to minority shareholders FERT DB R R 204,121 =
Borrowings BE 620,361 -
Deferred tax liabilities (note 32) EERIR S E (M1EE32) 53,520 =
Interest in an associate N NG 3,552
Minority interests DERAR R M A 766,627 -
Net assets disposed BEHEFEE (15,627) =
Interest in an associate acquired BUEER — R = N al s 188,035 =
Exchange reserves released B 2 BB (6,495) =
Gain on toll roads restructuring FHAWE B 2 W 165,913 =
Analysis of net cash outflow in respect BRAEHENEEK
of toll roads restructuring: ZBEEREFEIN
Cash received BEEER & - -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed BHERS KRSEEY (13,526) =
Net cash outflow in respect of SHKEBR 2R
toll roads restructuring RE (13,526) =

Non-cash transactions

During the year, RMB200,000,000 convertible bonds were
converted into 51,282,049 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of

the Company.

(e) #HREXE

F£R - AR 200,000,000 7T A %S 5 1 B 1R A
ANAR] 51,282,049 IR EAREE0.10 BT Z AR5 ©
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37.BEAEXRS

37.Related party transactions

The ultimate holding company of the Group is Tsinlien Group
Company Limited, a company which is ultimately controlled by
the PRC government and is hence a state-owned enterprise. In
accordance with HKAS 24, “Related Party Disclosures’, state-owned
enterprises and their subsidiaries, directly or indirectly controlled
by the PRC government are also deemed as related parties of the
Group (“other state-owned enterprises”).

There are business activities of the Group which are conducted
with state-owned enterprises. For the purpose of the related party
transactions disclosure in accordance with HKAS 24, the Company
and its subsidiaries have established procedures to determine, to
the extent possible, the identification of the ownership structure
of its customers and suppliers as to whether they are state-owned
enterprises. However, many state-owned enterprises have a multi-
layered corporate structure and the ownership structures change
over time as a result of transfers and privatisation programs.
Nevertheless, management believes that all material related party
transactions and balances have been adequately disclosed.

The following are significant related party transactions and balances
during the year ended and as at 31st December 2007 in addition to

those disclosed in note 20, 21, 24 and 25:

(a) Tsinlien Group Company Limited and its subsidiaries

REE 2 ZAER AR BB EBARAR]  Z A
R BB RAIES b A—READRE - RIER
BEEERE 4R BB IE | BREEATE
B HIR B (3R K H I8 A B AR AR R E R
BEAL ([HMEAERE]) -

AEERYXHEEA X LRET - HREFESR
FHERIFE24ERBEA LR IERRE - AARRE
MEBAREHIERR - BRIt RS R EREHIAT
BRABOHEETTBEALE - AW - FZEAD
FEEZELENE  HMARAEe MEEEEREK
TLA(LETEImE - el - BEEEREERI K
BIAEEABREANLIR S MR

AR ABBREIRE20 221 24 RS T BINNEE T
+tFE+ A=+ HLEFEANERFEALRS R
MR Bz &

(a) BHEBERAIREHE LA

2007 2006
—EELHF ZETREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET BT
Transactions with Tsinlien Group Company ~ E2E2EtEBEHR A A
Limited and its subsidiaries FEWBRRIZRS
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36(b)) W g — AT B A /) (BdRE 36(0)) - 419,600
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(b) Other state-owned enterprises
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37.BEALRS (&)

(b) RftEEEH

2007 2006
—EELHF ZETREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T TT
(i) Transactions with other state-owned EEEHMBEELEZRS
enterprises
Income WA
Containerised and non-containerised SRERIFEEEREY
goods handling income FRIRIA 374,575 424,241
Toll fee income BEWA 119,649 128,401
Income from provision of utilities YN AL N 204,144 330,820
Interest income JSON 30,803 25,860
Expenses A
Dredging expenses ZRE 2,555 6,491
Labour services 25 71 AR5 4,695 -
Purchases of electricity, water REREHEZE
and steam for sale Bk KRR 1,531,579 1,066,721
Rental for berths, railway, storage space  JAfZ + B {FEIRS K& EHES
and equipment - 6,995
Rental for land TiiEE 2,984 4,128
Rental for equipment REES 775 1324
Rental for plants, pipelines and networks /5 * B8 kA% HES 65,309 26,256
Service fees for port related supporting 78 C #8738 2 1% AR 7% &
services and auxiliary services BERTS 2 i E - 7,595
Temporary storage fees TRERE 8,420 5,241
Toll road maintenance charges BB MESER 30,928 43,902
Interest expense MEZH 45,653 58,858
Others Hit
Acquisition of Wik
Land use rights T {sE AR - 680,339
Berths and railway BRI R =R - 210211
Machinery TS - 35,345
Disposal of an associate HE—REE AT 2,994 =
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37.Related party transactions (Cont'd)

(b) Other state-owned enterprises (Cont’d)

37.BEALRS (&)

(b) RfttE AL (&)

2007 2006
—EELF ZETERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET AT
(i) Balances with other stated-owned HEMEE L E 2 L8R
enterprises
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEEEBERYE
profit or loss K15 & = 285,455 158,873
Trade receivables FERER 218,947 125,194
Other receivables H b pEGRIE 1,165 18,670
Amounts due from related companies FENSEEE A RIRIA 21,748 24332
Amount due from a minority shareholder ~ FEUR > EIAX R IE - 12,382
Amounts due from associates and FEUSER & A R R
jointly controlled entities HEEH B R IE 26,530 20,399
Deposits with state-owned banks .ﬁﬁﬁ TR 3,035,673 2,521,628
Liabilities =L
Trade payables ERER 185,457 205,883
Other payables H A fEFIE - 126
Amounts due to related companies FEfT A& AT RIR 141,852 336,244
Amounts due to minority shareholders & D EARRFIE 16,894 197,480
Borrowings from state-owned banks B HRITEE - 755,602
(c) Key management compensation () ZEEENSHHE
2007 2006
—EELF ZETEREF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FAIT
Fees 2k 6,990 5,620
Salaries and other emoluments e REMmBE 15,683 13,712
Share-based payments LARR R B EE R Y TR 2,624 4917
25,297 24,249

P
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38.Events after the balance sheet date

(@) On 4th January 2008, the Group completed the acquisition

of the entire issued share capital of Lethia Limited (‘Lethia”)
for a consideration of US$7,500,000. Lethia's net assets mainly
comprise 50% equity interest in a sino-foreign equity joint
venture company (the “JV Company”) holding a five-star hotel

property situated at Tianjin managed by Hyatt Corporation and
total liability of approximately HK$95,000,000.

On 4th March 2008, the Group completed the acquisition of
25% equity interest in the JV Company through Lethia for a
consideration of RMB75,500,000.

The considerations were satisfied by internal resources of the
Group. With the completion of these transactions, the Group
effectively holds 75% interest in the JV Company. The Group is
in the process of finalising the amount of the fair values of the
identifiable assets and liabilities acquired.

On 28th March 2008, the Group completed the acquisition
of the entire equity interests in, and all the shareholders’ loan
advanced to, Tsinlien Realty Limited, whose principal asset is
“Courtyard by Marriott Hong Kong”, a four-star hotel located in
Hong Kong, for a consideration of HK$825 million, satisfied by
way of HK$560 million in cash financed by debt and the balance
of HK$265 million by the issue of 31,850,000 new shares of the

Company at an issue price of approximately HK$8.32 per share.

Details of this transaction are set out in the circular issued by the
Company dated 21st December 2007.

3B.EHEHEKEE

(a)

(b)

R=ZZTZEN\F—AMA - & E LA7,500000%
T2 RET W IE B BT FER A A ([ FIE
F]) o FRFZFEEEZRERN—KFIEE
BEAR([EERR]) 25000 A (R A R
AR RERISAERE TR AR RE
JE) R A8 8 547 95,000,000 3T ©

R-ZTZTN\F=ZANHE  AEBFEBFEFAA
R ¥ 755000002 REZKBEREERAZ
25% AR AR ©

RERAEBZABEREN - ZFXHTK
% AEBERIFSEEE AR 75%En - AEHE
FAEZBEREZIHBEERABZATEE

RZZTZNEF=A=+N\A AEENBNKE
825,000,000/ 7T e W BRI B X AR AR (HE
BEEER—FINREAZNERBE [EESR
BE]) 2 2R AEIEL Z FTERRER
1B 560,000,000 BT B BEENRS M - 8
#H 265,000,000 7 7T 437 38 LA B AR AR 19 89 8.32 B 7T
2 HITIEEITANA T 31,850,000 BT AR D S A

BHRRSZHERREATR T LF+ =
A=+—BHEZBES -
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38.Events after the balance sheet date (Cont'd) 38.EERARSEE ()
(© On 19th December 2007, 11,900,000 share options were © RZZEZTLEF+A+IA AEEMES
offered to Directors and employees and accepted by them K g 8 E4711,900,000 15 HEARHE - RER_-F
on 17th January 2008, with an exercise price of HK$8.04 and TNF-A+ERENZEERE 258
are exercisable from 17th January 2008 to 24th May 2017. B2 ITEBRSMABL RZETENF—
At+tRE=Z—tFHA=-+HAHEA
TATE ©
(d) On 26th July 2007, TPD entered into a conditional equity
interest transfer agreement with Tianjin Port (Group) Co,, d RZZZTELFEAZ+NH @ RESERRE
Ltd. to acquire a 40% equity interest in Tianjin Port Alliance REE (RE) BRARRI M —IBE FHRE
International Container Terminal Co,, Ltd for a consideration R - ARE AR 524,343,000 T4 HE
of RMB524,343,000. All the conditions were fulfilled in RO 7 Bk B B R £R S AR TS SR G R 8 A1 #) 40%
January 2008 and the acquisition was completed after year [RHE - MBRGEKCER=ZZZTNFE—RE
end. B - WIE S TBE B R AER T
39.Ultimate holding company 39. RARER AT
The Directors of the Company consider Tsinlien Group RAREBEERA  EABEMK L 2 EHERE
Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong, as FRA R REAIER AR ©

being the ultimate holding company.

40.Approval of financial statements 40. FHL I &K

The financial statements were approved by the Board of EEEN_TT) \FHA - AERMBRE
Directors on 17th April 2008.
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41.Principal subsidiaries N ETENBEAF]
Issued and
paid up capital/ Attributable
registered capital to the Held by the Held by
Name Principal Activities EERTRAR Group Company subsidiaries
£ TEXH B/ EER KEBEL ARARE WEARRE
Established and operating in
the PRC
EHET RS
Tianjin Harbour Second Provision of stevedoring RMB481,821,700 62.78 100
Stevedoring Co, Ltd. and storage services
AEBE_BEARAT RAGEIE R R R ARHE481,821,7007T
Tianjin Port Container Provision of containers RMB672,890,000 62.78 100
Terminal Co, Ltd. transportation and storage services
REREERBEARAR REEEEERX AR%672,890,0007C
KRR
Tianjin Heavenly Palace Investment holding RMB80,018,400 100 100
Winery Co, Ltd.
AEXEREBEARAHF RAER AR 8001840070
Tianjin Tai Kang Industrial Investment holding RMB1,030,269,400 82.74 82.74
Co, Ltd.
AERREFERAA RAER ARH1,030269400 7T
Tianjin Development Assets Investment holding RMB32,076,000 100 100
Management Co, Ltd.
ARYREEERARAH RAER AR%32,0760007C
Tianjin Jin Zheng Operating and management of RMBT,104,596,200 83.93 83.93
Transportation Eastern Outer Ring Road (note a) (notea)
Development Co, Ltd. (fizEa) (fizEa)
AERRBERAR AT RERERINRRE AR 1,104596,200 86.67 86.67
(note b) (note b)
CiE) (M&Eb)



Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X3 RIZERER DT

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT RS R R MY RE

Annual Report 2007 = EZE - F4F4R

41.Principal subsidiaries (Cont'd) N EEHBAE (E)
Issued and
paid up capital/ Attributable
registered capital to the Held by the Held by
Name Principal Activities ERTRER Group Company subsidiaries
£ TEXH BE/EMER TEBEL ARARE WEARRE
Tianjin TEDA Tsinlien Supply of electricity RMB 314,342,450 94.36 94.36
Electric Power Company
Limited
REFEEHENBRAR HEES AR 31434245070
Tianjin TEDA Tsinlien Water Supply of water RMB 163,512,339 91.41 91.41
Supply Company Limited
ARFERBERKBRAR  HERKK AR 1635123397
Tianjin TEDA Tsinlien Heat Supply of steam and thermal power RMB 262,948,258 90.94 90.94
& Power Company Limited
AERERHREARATA HERTRAE AR 262948258 T
Established in the British
Virgin Islands and
operating in Hong Kong
CEEEREENT
REZFE
Dynamic Infrastructure Investment holding US$5 100 100
Limited REZR SETL
Team Resources Limited Investment holding Uss1 100 100
REAER 1570
Leadport Holdings Limited Investment holding Uss1 100 100
REAER 1570
Famous Ever Group Limited Investment holding Uss1 100 100
REER 17T
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41.Principal subsidiaries (Cont'd)

4. FTEREAT (&)

Issued and
paid up capital/ Attributable
registered capital to the Held by the Held by
Name Principal Activities ERTRAR Group Company subsidiaries
£ TEXH B/ EMER FEBEL ARARE WEARRE
Established in the Cayman
Islands and operating in
Hong Kong
EHERENT
REZFE
Coastal Rapid Transit Investment holding HK$84,000,000 100 100
Company Limited
RERERERAR KA 84,000,00037C
Established in the Cayman
[sland’s, operating in and
shares listed in Hong Kong
EHEHESHY G EBHLE
RIRGEZE LT
Tianjin Port Development Investment holding HK$178,710,000 62.78 62.78
Holdings Limited
RNEBEREREBAT KA 178,710,000 7T
Notes: Fff%E

(@) Represents equity interest in the paid up capital of the subsidiary
(b) Represents profit sharing ratio in the subsidiary

(@ FERHERRMERA R
(b) ERIERRZFEDFLLx
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42.Principal associates 42. FEBENT
Issued and
paid up capital/ Attributable
registered capital to the Held by the Held by
Name Principal Activities ERTRAR Group Company subsidiaries
£ TEXH RE/EMER TEBEL ARARE WEARRE
Established and operating in
the PRC
EFER RS
Otis Elevator (China) Investment holding US$79,625,000 16.55 20
Investment Company
Limited
BEETER () RERR 7962500037
REBRAA
Tianjin Tian Fa Heavy Electric Design, manufacture and sale of RMB86,343,714
Equipment Manufacturing equipment used to generate
Limited electricity by water
REMAEEKE A REHKNEERE AR 8634371478
RESEBRAR]
Established in the Cayman
[slands, operating
inand shares listed in
Hong Kong
EHERSHT  aEE
HERBRAEEE LT
Dynasty Fine Wines Group Investment holding HK$124,500,000 44.82 44.82
Limited
IHEEEEERAA REZR 12450000057
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42.Principal associates (Cont'd) 42. T EBENT ()
Issued and
paid up capital/ Attributable
registered capital to the Held by the Held by
Name Principal Activities EERTRAR Group Company subsidiaries
£ TEXH B/ EMER FEBEL ARARE WEARRE
Established in the British
Virgin Islands and operating
inHong Kong
EEEEKHESH TR
Golden Horse Resources Investment in joint ventures 1S$10,000 40 40
Limited operating the Jinbin Expressway in
Tianjin
REERZLERERRDR 100003 7T
AT
Established in Bermuda,
operating in and shares
listed in Hong Kong
EERENT
REEEER
ROEZE LT
Wah Sang Gas Holdings Investment holding HK$21,770,000 22.79 22.79
Limited

ELRRERERAA RAER 2177000087
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43. Jointly controlled entities 43. HEEFIER
Issued and
paid up capital/ Attributable
registered capital to the Held by the Held by
Name Principal Activities ERTRAR Group Company subsidiaries
£ TEXH RE/EMER TEBEL ARARE WEARRE
Established and operating in
the PRC
EFE T RS
Tianjin Port Euroasia Container and cargo handling RMBT1,260,000,000 25.11 40
International Container services
Terminal Co, Ltd. (pre-operating as at 31st December 2007)
R BEEARER ERMREERERE ARE 126000000070
ERBRAT (RZZZ2LETZA
—T-HEREREERE)
Tianjin Port Haifeng Bonded Logistics relates services RMB300,000,000 32,02 51
Logistics Co, Ltd. (pre-operating as at 31st December 2007)
REBGERVIRERAR  DEERSE (RS2t F AR 300,000,000 7
ToA=t - HEREREERR)
Tianjin Haihe Dairy Manufacturing and sale of dairy RMB200,000,000 40 40
Company Limited products
REETAFERAA EERHEDER ARHE 2000000007
Tianjin BaiLi TianKai Production and sale of electrical RMBA43,184,400 24.46 29.56

Electrical Equipment
Company Limited
RETBNRFEER

BRAF

44.Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with

equipment

TERHESHRE

the current year presentation.

AR 43184400 7C

44 Lt B B F

57T -

AETHRBFREENHE  UNaELFEZE




—3

168 Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 RIZERER DT
Annual Report 2007 —ZEZHFFH

Financial Summary

Y

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
—TE= —TENE —TERF —TERF ZBTEHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TSI FABIT T FBT
Results #&
Revenue WA 1927,377 2102473 2,239,102 2,688,457 3,387,663
Operating profit less finance cost BRI E R 281,355 924,903 565,659 533,798 688,249
Share of profits/(losses) of: (SRR (BE)
Associates d=/NG] 86,955 77,764 146,095 181,215 220,651
Jointly controlled entities HEEHIER (4,521) (1,981) (13,859) (11,779) (9,831)
Profit before income tax AT 363,789 1,000,686 697,895 703,234 899,069
Income tax expense BIER (79,741) (137,156) (73015) (66,053) (71,830)
Profit for the year FREHM 284,048 863,530 624,880 637,181 827,239
Attributable to: FEA &R -
Equity holders of the Company IRIERA A 212,79 563,803 573,169 552,751 690,301
Minority interests DERF 71,252 299,727 51,711 84,430 136,938
284,048 863,530 624,880 637,181 827,239
Dividends e 52626 62,592 80,665 92,241 113,918
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets BEE 6,618991 9,701,631 10,379,680 13231526 12,905,160
Total liabilities BAR 3,088,969 3,039,988 3,261,043 3,861,097 2,752,637
Total equity ks 3,530,022 6,661,643 7,118,637 9370429 10,152,523
Note: iz -
The effect of adopting new HKFRSs in 2005 was included in 2005 and the amounts RZZTRE  RPNNEAUBME LN HEFAERN =&

prior to 2004 have not been restated to reflect this change. TIUFLART 2 S REN 5 AR B ILTH B -
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